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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. 2020
was an extraordinarily difficult year. Impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic,
the economies across the globe have been adversely affected by different
extent of severity. The China’s economy, being the second largest and one
of the largest trading partner in the world, was not immune from it and
shrank in the first quarter of 2020 for the first time in decades. Through
effective implementation of a series of epidemic containment measures
by strong governance, the situation got under control and the economy
bounced back notably in the second half bringing its GDP in 2020 to
a mild year-on-year growth of 2.3%. However, the overall customer’s
spending and certain hardest hit aviation and hospitality sectors are not
recovered to the pre-pandemic level. The financial market has been
turbulent when some of the industry leaders and state-own enterprises
of the affected sectors experienced liquidity problems to repay debts.
Being engaged in financial market in the PRC, the Group’s performance
succumbed to it and recorded a significant loss of HK$356.6 million in
2020 (2019: HK$51.0 million) mostly derived by the impairment loss on
the receivables of recourse business in the financial leasing segment.
Against all the odds, the Group relentlessly looked for an impetus. The
Group initiated trading business of medical and health products and then
acquired entire interest in Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”) to horizontally
integrate with its wholesaling business of personal and household hygiene
products and its extensive distribution network with small-medium size
pharmaceutical shops in Hong Kong. It is believed that the demand of
related products continues to look promising as a result of increase in
public health awareness during the pandemic. It diversifies the business
risk of the Group and will possibly give a boost to the Group'’s financial
result in the future.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

HEAIRE

AANEARTHAEEZREHEEEARLF
(Fp8E) 8% ((BF) g (EFg) 2

NAREWB AR (&) #E—T—F
F+A=+—HLIFEZFERE - —T°F
FRIFEEEMN—F - ZCOVID- 19K RITHE >
EMEERETRREENRERE - PEIEES
HREZARREANEZBEHZ— TMEAER
PRt WS- TFEE-FERRTHER
BB RER - BRmE IR AEANER—RY
T IBERIE > BRSEIESR K T FR
ERE HE_T_TENERNEEBERLLR
M R2.3% < 28T MBRE P ST HU R B TX4T
BRBEIMERBETELRMEERRT
RIBYKF - ERF BTN TERMKEE
B BEREHIVRBEREER > SRS
BAZ - EHEEMHHUEES 2EENE
REENEERRBIN _Z2EFREEKX
[E538356,600,00078 7T (ZZE—.4 : 51,000,00078
7T)  TERMERE D BEREFHBUTRIR
REREPTER - mE—RE > AEEZHF
s nE ) AEEFREBRFEERE X
%o RRWEER) IBEARAE (R HEE
B LR EARRETEERIILEEB K
HEZR DI EE RAE BT/ BB EEITER
Bo -AEEERE ARERRITRBAREE
BHEpRES HRERNBREEEF -BOM
TAREENEBRR AR ETERKESAE
EENEEEES =



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For the year under review, the financial leasing segment recorded a
segment loss of HK$234.0 million mainly driven by impairment losses
on the receivables of HK$199.4 million (2019: HK$45.8 million). The
food additives business, being classified under others in the segment
information, recorded a net loss of HK$17.1 million in 2020 (2019:
HK$12.6 million). The investment segment recorded a greater net profit
of HK$12.1 million in 2020 (2019: net profit of HK$0.7 million). The
trading segment, commenced in 2020, recorded a net loss of HK$5.5
million mainly due to the start up cost in the developing business and
fair value loss on the contingent consideration receivable arising from the
acquisition of Tripler. After considering the corporate expenses (2020:
HK$98.3 million; 2019: HK$35.8 million), share of results of associates
(2020: share of net losses of HK$5.7 million; 2019: share of net profits
of HK$29.4 million), impairment loss on reclassification of interest in an
associate as asset held for sales of HK$31.0 million (2019: nil), certain
unallocated other income, gains and losses (2020: net gain of HK$34.6
million; 2019: net gain of HK$12.0 million), finance cost and other
expenses, income taxation (2020: expense of HK$14.0 million; 2019:
credit of HK$1.8 million), the Group recorded a net loss of HK356.6
million (2019: net loss of HK$51.0 million) and a net loss attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$242.9 million in 2020 (2019: net loss
of HK$34.1 million).

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In spite of the enormous challenging environment in China and the
globe posed by the pandemic and the geopolitical tensions, the Group
is confident to weather any adversity that may lie ahead by lie ahead by
the experienced management team, sound risk management and robust
internal control. By leveraging the existing resources and capabilities,
the Group will cautiously and diligently look for new potential growth
opportunities, undervalued assets and business expansion in order to
diversify the income sources and attain a long term growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERH S

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Here, on behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby wish to extend
my gratitude for the hard work contributed by all the staff and the
Directors, as well as the support to the Company from all our customers,
creditors, business partners and the shareholders. We will adhere to
proven management strategy, grasp market trend and opportunities,
and endeavour to bring greater value to our shareholders and make new
contribution to the community.

Wong Lik Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$66.2 million in 2020 as compared
with HK$71.2 million in 2019, gross loss of HK$16.4 million in 2020 as
compared with the gross profit of HK$21.8 million in 2019 and net loss of
HK$356.6 million in 2020 as compared to the net loss of HK$51.0 million
in 2019.

For the year under review, the Financial Leasing Segment has contributed
a segment loss of HK$234.0 million, as compared with a segment loss
of HK$45.8 million in 2019 (definition of segment profit or loss and
detailed analysis set out in note 6). The increase in loss is mainly due to
the increase in impairment loss on finance lease and loan receivables by
HK$163.3 million and the increase in operating loss by HK$24.9 million
mainly as a result of the net negative interest spread of two financial
leasing businesses on recourse basis where the interest cost accrued from
the borrowings was greater than the income from the respective defaulted
receivables.

The Food Additives Business, classified under others in the segment
information, mainly carried out manufacturing and sale of solid sorbitol
and compound food additives. It also performed research & development
of new products such as Advantame, highly extreme sweeteners and
EPS, clinic diagnostic reagent. During the year under review, the segment
recorded a net loss of HK$17.1 million in 2020, up HK$4.5 million as
compared with HK$12.6 million in 2019. The increase in loss is mainly
attributable to an one-off impairment loss on the property, plant and
equipment of HK$5.1 million. The persistent loss was mainly due to
the segment operation disrupted and slashed demand caused by the
COVID-19 in most of the first half of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

The Investment segment recorded a net profit of HK$12.1 million in 2020
as compared with the net profit of HK$0.7 million in 2019. The improved
result in 2020 was a net effect of (i) increase in fair value gain on financial
asset at FVTPL from a net loss of HK$7.8 million in 2019 to a net gain
of HK$6.0 million in 2020, (ii) increase in fair value gain on and rental
income from investment properties of HK$5.0 million, further net off with
(iii) decrease in loan interest income of HK$10.1 million from money
lending business.

Trading segment includes (i) a newly acquired business in August 2020
which carries out production, wholesale, distribution and trading of daily
necessities, including personal care and sanitising products as well as
face masks under its own brand or as OEM for other brands and related
commercial activities in Hong Kong (the “New Business”) and (ii) sale of
medical and heath products in Hong Kong that commenced in the first
half of 2020. Due to the greater start-up cost incurred in the developing
stage of the trading business and fair value loss on the contingent
consideration receivable arising from the acquisition of the New Business,
the segment recorded a net loss of HK$5.5 million (2019: nil).

After considering the corporate expenses (2020: HK$98.3 million; 2019:
HK$35.8 million), share of results of associates (2020: share of net
losses of HK$5.7 million; 2019: share of net profits of HK$29.4 million),
impairment loss on reclassification of interest in an associate as asset held
for sales of HK$31.0 million (2019: nil), certain unallocated other income,
gains and losses (2020: gain of HK$37.3 million; 2019: gain of HK$12.0
million), finance cost and other expenses, income taxation (2020: expense
of HK$14.0 million; 2019: credit of HK$1.8 million), the Group recorded
a net loss of HK356.6 million (2019: net loss of HK$51.0 million) and a
net loss attributable to the owners of the Company of HK$242.9 million in
2020 (2019: net loss of HK$34.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A significant increase in net loss from HK$51.0 million in 2019 to
HK$356.6 million in 2020 was primarily due to the increase in impairment
loss on the finance lease and loan receivables of HK$163.3 million,
the decrease in gross profit of HK$38.2 million primarily as a result of
negative net interest spread from Financial Leasing Segment, an one-off
impairment loss and the relevant income tax of HK$45.0 million upon the
reclassification and disposal of remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao
Lanshan, decrease in sharing of the net profits of associates of HK$35.1
million and increase in staff cost especially the management incentive
expenses.

Revenue and gross profit

During the year, the Financial Leasing Segment recorded revenue and
gross loss of HK$21.6 million and HK$22.0 million (2019: revenue of
HK$56.4 million and gross profit of HK$10.6 million), representing 33%
and 134% of the Group's revenue and gross loss respectively (2019: 79%
and 49% respectively). The revenue of this segment mainly represents (i)
service fee income for financing arrangement and consultancy services
and (ii) interest income generated from financial leasing and provision
of loan facilities. The cost of sales mainly represents (i) service cost
to banks and other non-bank financial institutions on various kinds of
factoring and consultancy services and (ii) interest expenses on back-to-
back borrowings from banks and other non-bank financial institutions.
The main customer base primarily includes large corporations covering
industries of energy resources, manufacturing, transportation and public
utility construction.

During the year, the segment saw a persistent slump on revenue. The
segment has been grappling with the unfavorable operating environment
in the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”), especially the stringent
regulatory oversight of the industry which inhibits the segment from
obtaining back-to-back credits from banks to finance the prospective
finance lease transactions and resulted in reduction in the number of
the conventional finance lease transaction and the service fee income
therefrom. The gross loss was incurred primarily because of the negative
net interest spread of two financial leasing projects on recourse basis
where the interest cost accrued from the borrowings was greater than
the income from the respective delinquent receivables. The magnitude of
such outnumbered gross profit of the segment and even the Group'’s and
consequently turned them into the gross loss position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

The money lending business and property development (both classified
under the Investment segment) recorded revenue and gross profit both
at HK$4.2 million in 2020 (2019: both at HK$12.7 million in 2019),
representing 6% and negative 26% of the Group’s revenue and gross loss
respectively (2019: 18% and 58% respectively). The revenue represents
loan interest income from the provision of loan facilities carried out by
a licensed subsidiary in Hong Kong and rental income from letting out
office properties in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Liaoning in the PRC.
The reduction in the segment revenue and gross profit is mainly due to
decrease in loan interest as a result of the decrease in provision of loan
volume in 2020.

The food additives business recorded revenue of HK$3.5 million (2019:
HK$2.0 million) and gross loss of HK$1.8 million in 2020 (2019: HK$1.5
million). The revenue and cost of sales of the business mainly represent
the sales income and manufacturing cost of solid sorbitol from the
production base in the Liaoning province, the PRC respectively. Due to
lack of economy of scale mainly as a result of the lower-than-expected
productivity of the established line hampered by the COVID-19 and others,
the business still recorded the gross loss in 2020.

The trading segment just commenced and recorded revenue and gross
profit of HK$36.8 million and HK$3.2 million in 2020 respectively in which
HK$7.0 million and HK$2.8 million were contributed by the New Business
since the acquisition.

The decrease in the Group’s revenue was mainly caused by the decrease
in revenue of the Financial Leasing Segment, partially offset by the growth
in revenue of the trading segment. The turning into the gross loss position
was mainly caused by the above-said negative net interest spread from
the two financial leasing projects outnumbering the gross profit from other
segments.

Other income

The other income of the Group in 2020 mainly comprised of dividend
income from equity investment at FVOCI, bank interest income, interest
income from trust products and highly liquid wealth management
investments issued by the non-bank financial institutions in the PRC and
the government subsidies of the employment support scheme launched
by the Hong Kong government. The decrease was primarily due to the
decrease in interest income from banks and trust products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other gains and losses

The other gains and losses in 2020 amounted to net gain of HK$34.8
million (2019: net loss of HK$0.6 million), mainly comprising of fair value
gain on an unlisted option (classified as financial liability at FVTPL) of
HK$15.7 million (2019: HK$11.7 million) and foreign exchange gain of
HK$17.8 million (2019: loss of HK$0.5 million).

Administrative expenses and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the year
mainly included staff costs (including directors and chief executive’s
emoluments) of HK$94.3 million (2019: HK$35.5 million), legal and
professional, depreciation of property, plant and equipment and various
administrative expenses. The increase was primarily due to increase in
discretionary management incentive expenses in 2020.

Share of associates’ results

The share of results of associates amounted to net loss of HK$5.7 million
as compared with net profit of HK$29.4 million in 2019. The reasons for
such adverse change is twofold. One is the shorter profit sharing period
of a profitable associate (i.e. Rizhao Lanshan) from a full year in 2019 to
only a half year in 2020. The other reason is the sharing of a significant
operating loss due to recognition of impairment losses of loan receivables
from a new associate which is engaged in money lending business in
Hong Kong.

Income taxation

Income tax expense for the year amounted to HK$14.0 million (2019:
income tax credit of HK$1.8 million), mainly comprising of the net effect
of (i) the income tax expense of HK$19.6 million relating to the disposal of
equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan and (i) partially offset by the deferred tax
credit of HK$5.6 million from undistributed profits of the same classified
as an associate upon the disposal.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

FINANCIAL POSITION

The total asset amount of the Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted
to HK$1,185.7 million, representing a decrease of HK$361.0 million
as compared with HK$1,546.7 million as at 31 December 2019.
The decrease in total asset was mainly due to the above-mentioned
impairment loss on finance lease and loan receivables and repayment of
finance lease receivables from the existing finance lease projects. Likewise
but with lesser extent, the Group’s total liabilities and borrowings as at
31 December 2020 dropped to HK$611.1 million and HK$473.4 million
by HK$74.6 million and HK$119.9 million from HK$685.7 million and
HK$593.3 million as at 31 December 2019 respectively. The gearing
ratios (measured as total liabilities over total asset) increased from 44.3%
as at 31 December 2019 to 51.5% as at 31 December 2020 mainly
as a result of the above-mentioned two financial leasing projects on
recourse basis where the delinquent receivables were impaired while
the corresponding borrowings remained unchanged. The current ratios
(measured as total current assets over total current liabilities) decreased
from 1.4 as at 31 December 2019 to 1.1 as at 31 December 2020.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits, deposits placed with non-bank financial
institutions and cash of approximately HK$192.4 million (of which
HK$20.7 million was pledged to the banks to secure bank borrowings
granted to the Group for financial leasing business (2019: HK$19.5
million)) as compared to HK$217.1 million as at 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and other borrowings
amounting to HK$458.6 million (2019: HK$523.7 million), HK$14.8
million (2019: HK$55.7 million) and nil (2019: HK$13.9 million) which
are due within one year, one to two years and two to five years respectively.

For the year under review, the Group has financed its operations with
facilities provided by banks and other non-bank financial institutions, issue
of new shares and internally generated cash flows.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
no material foreign currency exposure as material transactions such as
revenue and cost of sales were denominated in local currencies in which
the relevant entities operated.

CREDIT EXPOSURE

The Group's major credit risk is primarily attributable to finance lease
receivables and loan receivables.

Any deterioration in collectability of the finance lease receivables and loan
receivable from a sale-leaseback transaction and the underlying quality
of leased assets and collaterals could adversely affect our business and
financial conditions. In order to mitigate those credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for evaluation of credit
risk stemming from the financial viability of customers and guarantors (if
any) and the prospect of the industries in which the customers operate
and critical assessment on adequacy of the value of the leased assets,
collaterals and any forms of securities provided by customers at the
inception of the lease. Throughout the lease term, the Group closely
monitored the recoverability and will consider requesting additional
collaterals or any form of security from customers in case of any adverse
change in credibility.

As at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment loss on a finance
lease receivable of HK$140.1 million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$33.6
million) was related to a finance lease transaction with a principle amount
of RMB200.0 million or equivalent to HK$237.5 million, secured by
machineries and equipment initially worth more than the principle
amount, and guaranteed by the customer’s ultimate holding company
which is regarded as one of the largest Chinese state-owned aluminum
product manufacturer. The transaction was fully financed by a back-
to-back bank borrowing on recourse basis. Given the deteriorating
creditability of the said customer, who has defaulted since 2019, and the
guarantor as a result of the application of reorganisation petitions being
granted against it and the said customer by a provincial court in June
2020, the provision for impairment loss increased remarkably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
&@E HTDW& \1;)?

As at 31 December 2020, the provision for impairment loss on a loan
receivable from sale-leaseback transaction of HK$108.1 million was
related to a finance lease transaction with Sanya Phoenix International
Airport Company Limited (the “Customer”) at a principle amount of
RMB135.0 million or equivalent to HK$160.3 million, secured by aviation
facilities and other security(ies) initially worth more than the principle
amount and guaranteed by HNA Airport Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. The
reason for a significant increase in recognition of impairment loss on the
loan receivable from the Customer as compared with that of HK$5.7
million in 2019, because of the worsening credibility of the Customer who
defaulted in January 2020 and the recent reorganisation petitions both
served against the customer and the guarantor, details of which refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 11 February 2021.

The key considerations of the calculations of the above-mentioned two
provisions at least include the estimated recoverable amount of the
securities, empirical loss rate of the relevant industry, estimated time of
recovery and other relevant forward-looking factors with the assistance of
independent professional valuer as management's adviser.

In response to the two defaulted customers of the recourse business
under the reorganisation petitions, the Group has taken/will take a series
of actions to protect the Group’s assets including but not limited to seeking
legal advice and appointment of the relevant PRC legal practitioners to
follow up with the legal matters, registering of debt declaration return
forms with practitioner to assert the receivable amount, guarantee and
securities in due course, continuous communication and participation
of meetings with practitioners to understand the current development of
the customers, and more importantly, continuous negotiation with the
relevant borrowers to amend the deal structure so much so that fully or
partially retract the Group from it. With the experienced management
and professional team, the Group is capable to manage the credit risk to
a controllable level, and therefore takes a view that they will not currently
have an adverse impact on the Group’s operations.

Before investing in other loan receivables, the Group also assesses the
credit quality of the loan borrowers & guarantors (if any), evaluation of the
value & liquidity of the collaterals, and defines the terms of the loans. The
Group regularly monitored recoverability to ensure prompt follow up action
is taken to recover any overdue debt.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the restricted bank deposits of HK$20.7
million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$19.5 million) and the finance lease
receivables of HK$ 97.4 million (2019: HK$283.4 million) were pledged to
the banks and other non-bank financial institutions for facilities granted to
the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments of HK$0.1
million (2019: HK$0.1 million) for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

PROSPECT

2020 is a difficult year for the Group, especially for the Financial Leasing
Segment in the PRC. The pandemic has wreaked havoc on almost every
sector to a different extent, the aviation and hospitality sectors are one
of the hardest hit. Some of the customers of the segment experienced
unprecedented operating difficulties and heightened liquidity risk to repay
their debts, even though they are a state-owned enterprise or an industry
leader. Being engaged in financial industry, the Group’s performance
succumbed to the headwind and recorded a significant loss mostly from
the impairment loss on the receivables of recourse business.

Looking ahead, with the commencement of the use of vaccines for
COVID-19, the pandemic is expected to be under control while the global
economy is expected to recover steadily in a loose monetary environment
and under government financial supports. China was a major economy
that has recovered relatively rapidly as a result of effective epidemic
containment measures. However, the long term economic prosperity
of China may be hindered by the escalating geopolitical tensions and
deglobalisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

As to the Financial Leasing Segment, the segment has been struggling
for a business transformation to prosper under the stringent regulatory
requirements. To that end, the segment has been exploring and
developing a new business model and opportunity such as bundling
finance lease transaction with letter of credit issued by banks to customers
that would lower their overall finance cost. Exploring and developing
new financing varieties other than the conventional way of factoring from
banks and peers will also continue to proceed. What's more, the segment
has been targeting and exploring business opportunities with customers
engaged in domestic consumption related industries and environmental
industry, those areas are currently supported by the Chinese government.
It is also imperative to adhere to the risk management and control policies
to critically oversee and timely manage the increasing or potentially
adverse change in credit risk of the existing and new finance projects. The
segment will closely monitor credit risk of each customer and promptly
take recovery actions over delinquent finance lease projects in a bid to
protect the Group's assets.

As to the Investment Segment, the Group will continue to adopt a
conservative investment strategy towards the investment portfolio
comprising of equity, debt and real estate. With the robust risk
management and control policies, the Group closely assess its
performance and optimize its composition in order to generate a stable
income and provide the necessary liquidity to the Group amid volatile
financial markets when needed.

As to the Food Additives Business, since full resumption of customers’
operation, the segment has almost restored the sale order amounts of
solid sorbitol seen in the pre-pandemic time especially in the last quarter
of 2020. It is anticipated such momentum will persist. In the meantime,
the segment will continue to enhance the production stability, diversify
the customer base in different provinces and industries, and optimize the
production to cut down on operating costs. The Group will closely assess
the segment performance and resume the expansion plan including
establishment of the second production line of solid sorbitol and the one of
Advantame in due course.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As to the Trading Segment, the Group will diversify the products and
broaden the customer base and distribution channels, either physical or
virtual, to bolster the business volume. To that end, the segment has been
granted a wholesaler licence in proprietary Chinese medicines (“PCMs”)
and applying for exclusive distributorship of certain PCMs and health
products. The recent acquisition of Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”),
details of its operation refer to the Company's announcement on 29
July 2020, has brought and will further bring about synergic effect by
gaining access to its extensive distribution network of small and medium
size dispensaries almost scattered every district of Hong Kong. Further
leveraging personal network and expertise of the new management in
the industry and the increase in public awareness of hygiene and health
during the pandemic, the future demand of pharmaceutical products,
health supplement, personal care and other medical products looks
promising. The Group will cautiously set aside sufficient resource to
cultivate the business and considers it as a growth impetus in the future.

Having faced the enormous challenging environment in China and
across the Globe in 2020, the Group is confident to weather any adversity
that may lie ahead by the experienced management team, sound risk
management and robust internal control. Heading toward the post-
pandemic time, the Group is cautiously optimistic about the economic
recovery. By leveraging the existing resources and capabilities, the Group
will cautiously and diligently look for new potential growth opportunities,
undervalued assets and business expansion in order to diversity the
income sources and attain a long term growth.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND MATERIAL
DISPOSALS

At 31 December 2020, the Group held loan receivables (excluding from
a loan receivable from sale-leaseback transaction and those from money
lending business) of HK$47.1 million (2019: HK$95.0 million), equity
investments at FVOCI of HK$123.8 million (2019: HK$55.5 million) and
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$156.1 million (2019:
HK$25.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B e B o A

During the year, the Group invested in loan receivables through 1 to 2
years trust products of HK$45.4 million (2019: HK$83.8 million) issued by
financial institutions in the PRC. The Group recorded loan interest income
from loan receivables amounting to HK$5.9 million (2019: HK$7.0 million)
and an impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$3.4 million (2019:
HK$1.2 million). The equity investment at FVOCI of HK$123.8 million
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$55.5 million) represented unlisted
equity securities issued by the PRC and Hong Kong private entities with
operations including property development in shopping malls, software
development in the PRC and SFC licensed business activities of type 1,
2,4, 5 and 9 in Hong Kong. There was a fair value loss of HK$3.6 million
recognised through other comprehensive income in 2020 (2019: nil) and
dividend income of HK$1.0 million recognised in profit or loss in 2020
(2019: nil).

The financial assets at FVTPL of HK$156.1 million as of 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$25.7 million) comprised of (i) 7 different listed and
unlisted equity fund products in the PRC of HK$88.0 million (2019: 2
unlisted equity fund products in the PRC of HK$14.9 million) and (ii)
numerous listed equity shares and bonds of HK$68.1 million in the Hong
Kong and the Chinese stock exchanges (2019: HK$10.8 million). There
was a fair value loss of HK$2.5 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020
(2019: fair value loss of HK$5.2 million).

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with Simagi Finance Company Limited (“Simagi”) to subscribe for
8,000,000 subscription shares or approximately 7.46% of the enlarged
share capital of the target company at a consideration of HK$40,000,000.
Simagi principally engages in money lending business in Hong Kong.
The investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with
a shared loss of HK$21.1 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020
due to significant impairment loss on loans since the completion of the
subscription took place on 24 January 2020. Details of the subscription
in Simagi were disclosed in the announcements of the Company on 30
December 2019, 23 January 2020 and 24 January 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with Era Bright Limited (“Era Bright”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability to subscribe approximately 18.55% of the
enlarged share capital of Era Bright at consideration of HK$15,000,000.
Era Bright principally engages in money lending business in Hong Kong.
The investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with a
shared loss of HK$0.5 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020 since the
completion took place on 17 March 2020.

On 13 July 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Top Insight Holdings Limited (“Top Insight”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and mainly engaged in
property investment and leasing activities in Hong Kong, to subscribe
the 350 subscription shares or 35% of the enlarged share capital of Top
Insight immediately after the subscription, at the aggregate subscription
price of HK$67,300,000 which was settled in kind by the Group by
transferring the entire issued share capital of Jumbo Hall International
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to Top Insight. The
investment has been accounted for as interest in an associate with a
shared loss of HK$1.8 million recognised to profit or loss in 2020 since
the completion took place on 16 July 2020. The Group is entitled to a
dividend income receivable of HK$1.2 million, being a guaranteed return
of 4% on the investment cost during the holding period in 2020. Details of
the subscription in the Top Insight were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company on 13 July 2020.

On 26 August 2020, the Group entered a sale and purchase agreement
(the “Disposal Agreement”) regarding a disposal (the “Disposal”)
of the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan Wansheng
Harbour Company Limited (the “Rizhao Lanshan”) at a consideration
in accordance with the exercise price of the call option that the Group
granted pursuant to the call option undertaking dated 15 May 2018. On
23 October 2020, all conditions precedent of the Disposal Agreement
were fulfilled and the completion of the Disposal took place on 23 October
2020. The Group recorded a shared profit of HK$17.7 million from the
beginning of the year to the exercise date of the call option(i.e. 30 June
2020) (2019: HK$29.4 million). References of the Disposal are made to
the Company’s announcements dated 23 October 2020. Reference of
the grant of call option are also made to the Company’s announcements
dated 15 May 2018, the Company’s circular dated 25 June 2018 and the
Company’s poll result announcement dated 17 July 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 12 November 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with the Imagi Brokerage Limited (“Imagi Brokerage“), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaged in SFC licensed business of type
1,2, 4,5 and 9, to subscribe for 43,000,000 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$1.38 per subscription share. The consideration
for the subscription is HK$59,340,000. Upon the completion and as at 31
December 2020, when aggregated with the previous subscription shares,
the Group held a total of 55,500,000 shares of the Imagi Brokerage,
representing approximately 9.99% of the enlarged share capital of the
Imagi Brokerage. The investment has been accounted for as investment
held at fair value through other comprehensive income. There has
been no significant change in fair value since the acquisitions in 2020.
Details of the subscription in the Imagi Brokerage were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company on 12 November 2020.

On 27 November 2020, the Group purchased the land use right in
the land with total areas of approximately 119,000 sg.m. in Liaoning
Province, the PRC and the four factory buildings with a gross floor area
of about 40,528.12 sg.m thereon (the “Property”) in the consideration
of RMB56,260,000. The acquisition took place on 8 December 2020
when the Property was leased back to the vendor and accounted for as
investment property. Details of the acquisition and leaseback arrangement
refer to the announcement of the Company on 27 November 2020.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 103 (2019: 100)
employees (excluding employees of the Company’s associates) in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The employees are remunerated with basic salary,
bonus and other benefits in kind with reference to industry practice and
their individual performance.

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016. As at 31 December
2019, a total outstanding number of share options were granted to
the eligible employees, including directors of the Company, amounted
to 19,833,334. With no share options lapsed and new share options
granted during the year, the outstanding number of share options as at 31
December 2020 shrunk to 1,983,333 solely due to the completion of the
share consolidation of the basis of every 10 issued and unissued shares
consolidated into 1 consolidated share on 26 March 2020. Details of the
share options granted are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 12 January 2021, the Group entered into a loan agreement with an
individual, pursuant to which the Group provided a loan in the principal
amount of HK$56,000,000 for 12 months, interest bearing at a fixed
interest rate of 10% per annum, secured by the entire equity interest of a
company majority owned by the individual.

UPDATE ON USE OF PROCEED IN RELATION
TO FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 30 December
2019 and 31 March 2020 in relation to placing of placing of new shares
under general mandate and change in use of proceeds from the placing
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(collectively refer as to “Announcements”) and the 2020 interim report
dated 26 August 2020. Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used
herein shall bear the same meanings as defined in the Announcements.

Intended use of proceeds
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Actual and update on use of proceeds
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Total of HK$26.0 million for the Food Additives Business
in which (i) HK$19.7 million will be allotted to capital
expenditure and related expenses on establishing a

new production line for the manufacturing of crystalline
sorbitol and a new production line for the manufacturing
of Advantame (i) HK$6.3 million will be set aside

as additional working capital of the operation of the
production lines.
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The remaining proceeds of HK$6.2 million will serve as
general working capital of the Group.
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The re-allocated HK$15.0 million will be for purchasing

of the medical, health and hygiene products for trading

purpose.
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(i) Due to the expansion plan of the Food Additives
Business was disrupted by the recent outbreak of the
COVID-19, HK$15.0 million out of HK$19.7 million

was re-allocated to the trading business. The remaining
proceeds of HK$4.7 million has been unutilised and
deposited into bank accounts of Hong Kong head office;
(ii) an amount of HK$6.3 million was fully utilized as
working capital of the Food Additives Business.
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An amount of HK$6.2 million was fully utilised as general
working capital of the Group.
6,200,000 T2 MR ERN —REEES

An amount of HK$15.0 million was fully utilised as
payment for purchasing the medical, health and hygiene
products for trading purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULT OF PROFIT GUARANTEES AFTER
ACQUISITION

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements on 29 July 2020
and 21 August 2020 in relation to acquisition of the entire issued shares
in Tripler involving issue of consideration shares under general mandate.
According to an unaudited management account of Tripler for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the profit guarantee of not less than HK$6
million for the same period is met. However, the actual financial results of
Tripler for the same is still subject to potential adjustments and finalisation
of company level audit account of Triple by the Company’s auditor and
therefore the actual result of profit guarantee may be different.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

OBJECTIVE OF THE REPORT

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is
pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
called “ESG”) Report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year 2020"), with an aim to
provide details of the system establishment and performance of the Group
in terms of sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, highlights the environmental
and social measures and activities of the Group during the Year
2020. Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of finance lease and
related consulting services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
investment properties in the PRC and Hong Kong, investment in securities
and money lending business in Hong Kong, research and development,
manufacturing and sale of food additives, new food ingredients and
nutritional enhancers in the PRC and trading of medical and health care
products in Hong Kong. The Group mainly operates in Liaoning, Beijing
and Hong Kong. Therefore, the disclosures in this report focus on the
policies and performance of factory and offices in Liaoning, Beijing and
Hong Kong in the Year 2020 in relation to three environmental aspects
and eight social aspects.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is a key success factor in formulating
environmental and social strategy, defining the Group's objectives,
assessing materiality, and establishing policies. The Group's key
stakeholders include government, shareholders, customers, employees,
suppliers or service providers, community and the public. The Group
has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated with stakeholders
to understand their views and respond to their needs and expectations,
evaluated and prioritised their inputs to improve the Group’s performance,
and finally strived to provide value to the stakeholders.
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Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
Fn& HAZ R ER BB K [0l FE
Government o Operate in compliance with the law ° Law-abiding operations
BT HOEEE TERE
° Tax payment in accordance with the laws e Tax payment on time and in full
LR EERRER
Shareholders ° Implement corporate governance and o Optimise internal control and risk
B e create value management
BEThEERIRIEERE BB T R R S
° Information disclosure ° Release operating data in due course
ERIKE FEES NGRS ¢ 7
Customers ° Demand for funds o A wide range of financial leasing
b= HESMWEX products
e Direct communication EENREREER
BiRER . Direct hotline
. Food safety RERE
BmZE o Fulfil the requirements of ISO
° Guarantee product quality 22000:2005
EmE 2R FHERT&1S0 22000 : 200537 E

° Optimise the quality management
control
BLE S SRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B & RIS

Stakeholders Expectations and requirements Communication and response
FinE HAE R EKR B8 K [0l FE
Employees ° Career development platform ° Transparent promotion channel
(== EEERETA ZEENEFAEE
° Remuneration and benefits ° Competitive remuneration package
i Bt A BiRFIMEM A2
° Occupational health and safety ° Implement health and safety
BEREREZS management system
BERERENZ2EERR
Suppliers or service ° Receive payment on time ° Payment schedule
providers Tz B W ER AT =X EGE
e S AR TSR e Business ethics and credit standing e Fulfilment of obligations under any
EEEEREESE contract in accordance with laws

REBITEAESNETHEE

Community and the public
HERAR

Open up a financing channel for small
and medium-sized enterprises

FWFIEERMBERE

° Protect the nature

REBAR

Based on the stakeholder engagement, the Group has identified issues
with significant environmental and social impact and issues concerning
stakeholders.

MATERIALITY MATRIX

In the Year 2020, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial to the
Group’s business and were of the utmost concern to stakeholders. It helps
the Group to ensure its business development can meet the expectations
and requirements of stakeholders. The Group has identified 22 ESG
issues covering environmental, social and operation, and has invited both
internal and external stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG
issues through a scoring tool and interviews. The Group’s management
has reviewed the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then
disclosed the results in this report. The results of materiality assessment
prioritised stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material
aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.

° Provide sale and leaseback
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° Adhere to green operations
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The Group’s materiality matrix of ESG issues in the Year 2020: T ETEFEEAERRE - HENEAEENE
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Environmental issues
RIREH

Importance of topics to business
HEBEENmE

Social issues
HEEFE

High

|

Operation issues
CESEH

1. Greenhouse gas emissions
AERBBIEN

2. Energy consumption
AERIHFE

3. Water consumption
Ak

4. Waste
BEY)

B, Environmental impact of construction 13.

MIHIRENTE

6.  Green buildings certification
AR

7. Customer engagement in

environmental issues

ERHIRIEEEMNS A

8. Use of chemicals
FRtER

9. Local community engagement
EHirtE 2R

10.  Community investment
HeErE

11.  Occupational health and safety
Rz e

12.  Labour standards in supply chain

HAEFEAS TIRE

Training and development

Bl R

14.  Employee welfare
(E=EE]

15.  Inclusion and equal opportunities
OERTPEHRE

16. Talent attraction and retention

O 4P 52 ¥ BB A A
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17.  Economic value generated
FREAMKEEE

18.  Corporate governance
TEER

19.  Anti-corruption
k&5

20. Supply chain management
HAEHEIE

21.  Customer satisfaction
BERMEE

22.  Customer privacy

ESEN



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

EMISSIONS

Emissions refer to air and greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

Combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the Group is the main
sources of nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and particulate
matter (PM) emission. It could likewise generate GHG such as carbon
dioxide (COz2), methane and nitrous oxide.

The Group believes that green transportation brings benefits, which
include reduction of transportation costs and reduction of energy
consumption and pollution. As such, the Group encourages optimising
transportation routes, high filling rate or carpooling and proper tire
pressure to achieve efficiency.

The Group reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their
commuting decisions to reduce air and greenhouse emissions. Employees
are encouraged to take public transportation as often as possible and
select fuel efficient vehicles. While employees are driving, it is suggested to
avoid unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, close windows when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

Electricity consumption of the Group is a major part of its GHG emissions.
Various electricity-saving policies have been established to reduce the
electricity consumption by the Group. The Group encourages staff
members to switch off light during daytime, maintain lamps well to keep
clean, use stairs instead of elevators, install energy-efficient lighting,
and disable the standby mode for all electrical appliances, including
computers, photocopiers and printers when they are not in use. Air
conditioning is required to be set no lower than 25°C in summer. It is
also required to ensure the windows and doors are closed while air-
conditioning is on, and turn off the air-conditioning after office hours or
after the usage of the meeting room.

In the Group’s Liaoning and Beijing offices, energy saving signs remind
staff members to turn off the lights and promote energy conservation. In
the Hong Kong office, light-emitting diode (“LED”) lamps were installed as
much as possible, and multi-purpose devices with printing, scanning and
photocopying functions were adopted to achieve electrical efficiency.

In order to address indirect emissions relating to paper waste deposited at
landfills, the Group encourages employees to apply computer technology
such as emails, electronic backup devices and storage devices to reduce
paper consumption, print on both sides of a sheet of paper, avoid

B & RIS

e

PrERERAoRERE CRERE) P 1A
KIS B EREEERC EL -

AEBZEFNIERENMREZRAED
(NOx) ~ B EM(SO0 B F KL F(PMYFE B9
2HR - KR P BE S AL — | EAR(CO) ~ e
R—E{taFERERE

FEBREGEERNE D QEAEEHN
2~ AR BERE Rml L 75 2 o [AlIE » 255 [ S B £%
RREERRG SEEWHEXRBEERE

IR

FERIRREETBINERIRGETE BB
RECRERBEF PINE RS E RN AL
HBRM WEFIREUER BB TR &
EE R E SR RRE R ENNEREURE 7
SEITE AR R BN B 5 R

FEEZEHERHBERE AT EAER
Do AEHEBRIEZHMBEHR LUV AE-
FEETE RS ARMEAER  FERERIL RS
HFEZ ERERMIFER  ZEERY @/
FREAR M AP A B as (BIR B REEI KT
ENH) NMEARRAEREREN - EFARERER
TEFEMER25° CZIRE TR /RHE R 2= SRR BUARE
FIEIERIE LUk TR SR SR =R A

BiZesg o

EAERREERIEROWAE IR0 iE e
EREREN(EERAE - EEBMAE » BIAE
SR IHE (TLED ) /&> WIRFBABTT
BN~ fRit e U ENTRER S IRER SR B IR R BN

7 7 IR SUHRRRARA R 2 RS AEER
BEEEAEHM BFrRNKEMEFRESE
FERis o B R RBEEITE] BRI O E

Annual Report 2020
“ETEFR

27



28

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
Bt & RSB W S

unnecessary printing or copying on paper, adjust documents and use
space efficiency formats to optimise use of paper, and put recycling boxes
near the photocopiers to collect single-sided paper for reuse and used
double-sided paper for recycling.

In the Group's Beijing office, saving paper signs remind staff members
to optimise use of paper and reduce paper waste. The Group constantly
reminds employees to consider environmental impact in their commuting
decisions to reduce air and GHG emissions. Employees are encouraged
to take public transportation as often as possible and select fuel-efficient
vehicles. While employees are driving, it is recommended to avoid
unnecessary acceleration or deceleration, keep windows closed when the
vehicle is travelling at high speed, and only use air-conditioning when it is
necessary.

The Group recognises the severity of indirect GHG emissions from
business travel by employees, and requires employees to utilise
teleconference instead of overseas meetings and choose railway rather
than airway for short distance travel to reduce the carbon footprint of
business travel.

The Group requires that discharges, if any, into waterways and land must
comply with relevant laws and regulations.

The Environmental Policy established by the Group encourages
employees to handle office waste generated in a proper and
environmentally friendly manner.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations. There was
no significant hazardous waste generated in view of the Group’s business
nature.

The Group promotes waste reduction practices including waste reduction
at source, reuse, clean recycling, recover and reduction of disposal at
landfills. Employees are encouraged to purchase supplies or equipment
with longer life-span, to install recycling bins to collect recyclables, such as
waste paper, glass or aluminium bottles, metal, and plastics, and to have
recyclers to collect recyclables.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In the Year 2020, there
was no case of material non-compliance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F1ZE A R AFEIRIE(RE %)
and other relevant laws and regulations relating to air and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
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hazardous waste that have a significant impact on environment. In
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

The key environmental performance indicators of the Group’s emissions in
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the Year 2020 are shown in the table below:

\—7—7

S

=

BT 2 o b >
RRLERACEEMIBAREKR

— =

EIREGIN TR

SENAEREZEYNEMABRERRER
TEER TERER
SRR AR BIIRE o

FE  AEESIYINIRRIRIZER

Unit Year 2020 Year 2019
Environmental indicators RIGIEE B ZEITFE —hEE
Air emissions o= BERBER =0
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emissions KA LYIINOYEER g% 10,248 7,028
Sulphur oxides (SOx) emissions e EYISONFER ) g 263 323
Particulate matter (PM) emission SR F(PM)BERRD g 757 525
GHG emissions RERBBHENR
Direct emissions (Scope 1) BiEEW EE1) kg COze 61,721 71,142
Fr
—althEg
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (M2 BRI FE2) ) kg COze 808,083 578,053
T
“@tiREE
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) Mee HiBEHEm @EB) e kg COz 13,287 15,493
Fr
“athREE
Total GHG emissions 4 AERSHER MRS W) kg COze 883,091 664,437
Fr
“EtHREE
GHG emissions intensity BERBHREE kg COze 43 34
(per unit produced)
Fr
“EtHREE
(BEEEM)
Waste B4
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMEABEEREYES kg 1,010 617
T
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ FRES EEEEYZE kg 0.049 0.001
(per unit produced)
Fr
(BEEEMW)
Total hazardous waste produced e FTEEB EEEY) kg N/A N/A
4B 2 (i) Tz RiERA TEA
Hazardous waste produced intensity FMEXBEBEEYEE kg N/A N/A
(per unit produced) TER NEA
Fr
(BEEEM
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Note 1:  Air emissions include emissions data from gaseous fuel consumption and motor

vehicles.

Note 2: The power supply discharge coefficient of Liaoning and Beijing is set at 0.9419 kg/

kWh.

Note 3:  The electricity consumption per unit for treatment of drinking water and sewage in

PRC are set at 0.6 and 0.28328 kWh respectively.

Note 4:  GHG emissions (direct and indirect) and its removal can be divided into the following

three separate areas:

Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions from operations that are owned or controlled by
the Group including: (i) combustion of fuels in boiler to generate heat and
steam; and (ii) combustion of fuels in motor vehicles controlled by the
Group.

Scope 2: Energy indirect emissions resulting from generation of purchased electricity
that is consumed by the Group’s including the controlled equipment or its
operations within the physical building boundary for electricity purchased
from power companies.

Scope 3: All other indirect GHG emissions that occurred outside the Group, including
both upstream and downstream emissions including: (i) GHG emissions
due to electricity used for fresh water/sewage processing by the Water
Services Department/Drainage Services Department respectively; and (ii)
business travel by employees.

Note 5:  No hazardous waste is produced by the Group. Therefore, such disclosure is not

applicable to the Group. In the event when any hazardous waste is to be disposed of,
the Group would engage professional companies to handle it.

In accordance with policies stated above for the reduction of air and
GHG emissions from vehicles, the Group adopts the following measures:
(i) control the numbers of vehicles owned by the Group; (ii) control the
frequency of employees not to take public transportation for local business
commuting; and (iii) control the volume of business travel by employees.
The Group considers such measures had been achieved for the Year
2020.

Non-hazardous wastes are preferred to be recycled, otherwise, they are
sent for landfill or incineration. In accordance with policies stated above
for the reduction of non-hazardous wastes, the Group adopts the following
measures: (i) control the commercial wastes generated by employees; (ii)
control the waste of papers; and (iii) control the volume of non-hazardous
waste going direct to landfill or incineration without recycling. The Group
considers such measures had been achieved for the Year 2020.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials, in production, storage, transportation,
buildings, electronic equipment, etc., is one of the significant aspects to
protect environment.
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The Group established policies and procedures to reduce energy
consumption in the facility, to assess the energy efficiency, to increase
the use of clean energy, if possible, to set targets to monitor energy
consumption, to ensure power is turned off when electrical appliances are
not in use, and to admit natural daylight into workplace during the day.

The Group requires employees to reduce water consumption in the
offices. For example, employees are encouraged to fully empty any
containers before washing, to turn off water taps promptly, to check
faucets and pipes for leaks, and to adopt water saving appliances.

The total units of energy and water consumed by the Group and the
amount of total packaging material used for finished products in the Year
2020 are shown in the table below:

B & RIS

FEECHIEBRRIZF R & SERHFE > 51
e BRI ARG N AARAER 51128
RESRAEIHFE R T B Rz Ees
TWAERKRR TIEGFERA BRIt

FEBBERESTEWAZRL K HIIN > A&
E S RESINERAARA AN R ERIR
IKBETR ) IR B /KBETR A B BRI MR B RN/ AR
e

TR TRFE AEBEFTFEAER R KEEL
RSN faPi R B AR B HIN TR ¢

Unit Year 2020 Year 2019
Total use of resources HRFERGAE B —EITEE “E-hEE
Purchased electricity consumed FriERBENS KWh 859,634 599,241
FRE
Petrol consumed FREER S 0H kWh 173,512 213,041
TEEF
Total energy consumed AERARiES KWh 1,033,146 812,282
FREF
Energy consumption intensity HERE kWh 50 42
(per unit
produced)
FRE
(BEEBNM
Natural gas consumed FriERRAR m3 123,489 115,419
LK
Natural gas consumption intensity FIFEAXRAREE m3 6 6
(per unit
produced)
IHK
(BEEEM
Water consumption FEK m3 391 915
LK
Water consumption intensity FEKEE m3 0.019 0.047
(per unit
produced)
LK
(BEEEM
Total packaging material (paper) U TR S MR kg 3716 4717
used for finished products (#R) 2= T
Total packaging material (plastic) SUpK Gm P A B M L kg 3,880 3,036
used for finished products (ZBR)) Ha=E Fr
Amount of packaging material (paper) &1 E RHIBEM R kg 0.1794 0.2419
per unit produced ) = T
Amount of packaging material (plastic) &4 & SABY B EE A4} kg 0.1873 0.1557
per unit produced (BR) srE Fi5
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The Group’s ability to use energy efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in energy consumption. Energy
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. fluctuations
in energy supply and prices). The Group’s policies and measures specific
to managing energy use have been stated above. The Group considers
such policies had been adopted and measures had been achieved for the
Year 2020.

The Group’s ability to use water efficiently can be revealed by its
intention and measures for the reductions in water consumption. Water
consumption has a direct effect on the environmental footprint of the
Group, its operational costs, and exposure to certain risks (e.g. reliance
on sources of water that may be considered sensitive due to their relative
size or function; or status as a possibly rare, threatened, or endangered
system; or to their possible support of a particular endangered species of
plant or animal).

The Group’s policies and measures regarding to use of water have been
stated above. The Group considers such policies had been adopted and
measures had been achieved for the Year 2020.

Energy saving measure

BBESRTE

Description and the result of measures

i e e A R

FEEBWAAEREN I UEBHEZFERE
FOHFERN BRI R ERIR - BRSNS FEE R
ERERNRIZEY BEMRAREES TR
(BInse R At R BARHDRED) - AEEFHH5E
TRE R BRI B ERANFE I B A LSt - A5
BR/N B TFEERMZ I BRI B

Hiff o

AEEA WA KB SE I BB E R K
ENEENERRER K EERT EAEE
AVERIR B B~ S B A e I B T LR (0 - 1k
52 0] BE R HARHY AR AR S Th SE MR 50 4% BRURKBY 2K
R HEFERFERN ZEEBIREEHR
BIARAS ; EH AR — R EREEN
;) ©

FEEFRAKNBRAIEMEE E X
EER/N T _TFECHEMZFERILE
PRENFEDE °

Water saving
EIAIFEIK

consumption for water processing.

Open recirculating system is installed in Liaoning’s factory in order to absorb process heat from
machineries. This system uses the same water over and over again, it can reduce electricity

EE TR ERNIVBIR A A UIRUE M E £ R FEE - Z 2 MR B EARERK FIE

DIKERIEBIZ PRI E 1 HFE

Electricity saving
HARE

Variable-frequency drives are installed on some of the machineries that do not need to be run at
full speed, such installation can reduce energy consumption and energy costs.

BIRRZENETERE2REFNES L HAlR D SR EFERIERMZS o

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Policies are established to consider
the actual impacts on environment and natural resources and to reduce
such impacts. The Group encourages environmental education and
advocacy among employees to motivate environmentally responsible
behaviour which helps fulfil the Group’s commitment to minimising its
adverse impacts on the environment.

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste production and disposal, and use of resources impacts the
environment, the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts,
and communicate the Group’s environmental policies, measures,
performance, and achievements to the stakeholders. No significant impact
on the environment and natural resources was caused in view of the
Group’s business nature. Policies and/or measures adopted specific to
managing potential impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources are mentioned above.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group established Staff Handbook covering topics such as: (i)
compensation and dismissal; (ii) recruitment and promotion; (iii) working
hours; (iv) rest periods; (v) equal opportunity; (vi) diversity; (vii) anti-
discrimination; and (viii) other benefits and welfare.

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain talented
staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed periodically to
ensure consistency with employment market. Laws and regulations on
minimum wage and statutory social benefits are required to be followed.
Dismissal is required to comply with employment laws and regulations,
and to follow the internal policies and procedures, including policy on
prevention of dismissal purely on employees’ gender, marital status,
disability, or family status.

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent recruitment
strategy. Recruitment process includes application for recruitment,
description of position, collection of job applications, interview, selection,
approval, and job offering. Promotion is required to be based on
performance and suitability.
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Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare, including
social security benefits and mandatory provident fund, are required to be
in compliance with employment or labour laws and regulations. Selected
benefit programs, including medical coverage, are also provided.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours to
provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles of equality
and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration, promotion, and
benefits are required to be handled based on objective assessment, equal
opportunity and non-discrimination regardless of gender, race, or other
measures of diversity.

The composition of the Group’s workforce by gender, employment type,

age group and geographical region as of 31 December 2020 is stated as
follows:

WORKFORCE BY GENDER

¥R &l o
Female
fegls
34%

Male

66%

WORKFORCE BY AGE GROUP

RERAENE D
Over 50 ye% rf/( Ojlg
50 L Under 30 years old
20% 30 ELX'Fy
26%

30-50 years old
30 E50 5%

54%
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The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
the compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to
employment during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FEE AR HEFIEEHE), the Labour Contract Law
of the People’'s Republic of China (FZEANRENEEEEREE), the
Employment Ordinance ({8 {&1& 1) and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare on the Group. In addition, there was no
report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has established Health and Safety Policies covering topics
such as: (i) providing safe working environment; (ii) protecting employees
from occupational hazards; and (i) work-life balance. The Group is
committed to maintaining a healthy and safe workplace for employees,
and to preventing workplace injuries and illnesses.

The Group requires entities to establish and document policies and
procedures on safety for employees to follow, set targets for the safety of
employees, monitor the safety performance against the targets periodically
and report any safety incidents to management.

One of the key factors for successfully protecting employees from
occupational hazards is to train employees to protect themselves from
psychological and physical hazards. The Group encourages such training
to be delivered to employees.

The Group supports employees to enjoy leisure and sports activities
outside of workplace.

In response to the outbreak of the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) pandemic, the Group has taken certain actions to
strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in factory and
offices in Liaoning, Beijing and Hong Kong to protect the health of its
employees. Employees are required to wear surgical face masks in factory
and office, apart from that, the Group has increased the frequency of
cleaning and sterilisation in working areas.

B & RIS
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FRRPEBFESE &

During the year, the Group temporarily
closed its factory in Liaoning in January
2020 following the imposition of order by
the government of PRC. On 17 February
2020, the Group has submitted a Letter
of Commitment to the Management
Committee of Chaoyang Jianping
Economic Development Zone and
enquired about resuming operation of its
factory and office in Liaoning. In order
to gain permission from the committee,
the Group has promised to take several
control and prevention measures for
protecting workers, including but not
limited to: (i) cleaning and sterilisation in
working areas twice a day (in the morning
and evening) and keeping records; (ii)
measuring body temperature twice a day
(in the morning and evening) and keeping
records; and (iii) providing epidemic prevention supplies to employees.

measures.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to health
and safety during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was no
case of material non-compliance with the Regulations on Work-Related
Injury Insurance of the People’s Republic of China (FAEE A R HAE T
SR %)) , the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (%% %
R EE{EH)) and the relevant laws and regulations relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has established Development and Training Policies covering
topics such as: (i) vocational training; and (i) training and resources
for the directors and senior management. The Group is committed to
providing adequate training to the employees to improve their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work. Training includes vocational
training courses provided internally or externally.

The Group requires employees to attend internal and external training
courses including employee continuing education to improve employees’
knowledge and skills for their job positions.
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Training and development courses are offered throughout the Group to
upgrade employee skills and knowledge. During the year, all directors
participated in continuous professional development activities by reading
regulatory updates, and/or attending seminars or workshops relevant to
the business or directors’ duties.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group has established Labour Standards Policies covering topics
such as: (i) preventing child and forced labour; and (i) preventing
workplace bullying. The Group is committed to avoiding child and forced
labour in the workplace. Besides, all employees are strongly encouraged
to report any bullying conduct they experience through the complaint
channel provided by the Group.

The Group prohibits child labour. It requires human resource department
and user departments work together to prevent or identify child labour,
and to ensure child labour is not in the workforce. The Group is committed
to protecting human rights, to prohibiting forced labours, and to creating a
workplace with respect, fairness, and free will for the employees.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to labour
standards during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was
no case of material non-compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FFZE AR HME S EY L), the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour (32 1-{#FZ THR7E) , the Employment
Ordinance (fBfE1&f)and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour that have a significant impact. In
addition, there was no report of significant fines or sanctions as a result of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Supply chain management is a key area of the Group’s business, which
includes managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.
The Group requires suppliers to provide products and services for the
Group with up-to-standard quality, health and safety to ensure compliance
with environmental laws and regulations, and labour standards. The
contracting for procurement of products and services is required to be
based solely upon specification, quality, service, price, tendering, and
applicable environmental and social considerations.
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The Group requires impartial selection of suppliers and service providers,
maximisation of competition in tendering process, approval of contract
terms, compliance with laws and regulations, prevention and detection
of bribery or fraud in the tendering and procurement process, and
accomplishment of efficiency and cost saving in procurement.

The Group established Supply Chain Management Policies, including
(i) assessment; (i) selection; (iii) approval; (iv) procurement; and (v)
performance evaluation. Performance evaluation is based on quality,
service, cost, environmental protection, and social responsibilities.

During the Year 2020, the Group was not aware that any key suppliers
had any significant actual and potential negative impact on business
ethics, environmental protection, human rights and labour practices, nor
any of them had any non-compliance incident in respect of human rights
iSSues.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Product responsibility refers to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to services provided. The Group has
established Product Responsibility Policies to study the overall and actual
implementation of the Group’s sustainable procurement activities and
report directly to the director and company secretary.

The Group is fully responsible for its services and products. The Group
ensures health and safety relating to the services provided and products
produced.

The Group respects its customers’ rights and is committed to providing
accurate services and products information for customers in connection
with their purchase decision. The Group requires careful review of
advertising material to protect customers’ interest.

The Group is committed to protecting customer data and privacy
information and keeping business information confidential. Training to
employees in this regard and proper information system security are
required.

Although the Group ensures the quality of its services and products, at
the same time, the Group requires that services and products with quality,
safety, or health issues should be compensated in accordance with
terms of service and products contracts. Compensation is required to be
offered to all customers who are affected with consistent treatment and
procedures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (8 AZE R (FAFR) &5 and other
applicable laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
privacy matters in regard to products and services provided by the Group
in the Year 2020.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group established Anti-Corruption Policies to prohibit employees from
receiving any advantages offered by customers, suppliers, colleagues, or
other parties, while they are performing employee duties, and prohibit any
activities involving conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering. Staff Handbook lays out the Group’s expectation and certain
guiding provisions on code of conduct. The Group encourages employees,
customers, suppliers, or other parties to report incidents relating to any
conflicts of interest, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure the
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption during the course of operation. In the Year 2020, there was no
case of any material non-compliance with the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China (R#E AR HEMBEINK AEEHRFE),
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (B5LEBEE& (&) and the relevant
laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that have a significant impact. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the Year 2020.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group endeavours to support the communities in which the Group
operates including community engagement to understand the needs of
communities, and to ensure the Group’s activities take into consideration
of the communities’ interest.

The Group strives to enlarge the business operation so that the Group can
hire more workers to utilize communities” available labour resources.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in community
activities, such as community health initiatives, sports, cultural activities,
volunteer work, and education donation. All employees of the Group are
encouraged to participate in environmental protection activities and raise
the environmental awareness of people in the communities.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and safeguarding the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance accountability and transparency.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, except the
following deviations:—

1. Code Provision B.1.2

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee exclude
review of and making recommendations to the Board in relation
to senior management remuneration as in the Board’s opinion, it
was more appropriate for the executive directors to perform these
duties.

2. Code Provision E.1.2

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2020 due to his
other important commitment. However, Mr. Lai Ka Fai, executive
director chaired the 2020 AGM and opened to be questioned from
the shareholders of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 55T

EFETHEHALHITES  —BIEHTESER
OB IEITES (DB IEITES)) 4Bk
EEORNECEFERERMABCENEREESE

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDs"). The brief biographic details of and the relationship among
Board members is set out in the Directors Profiles section on pages 5S6EZEERBNA -EREERI=—EEEES
53 to 56. The Board has established three Board Committees, namely & EIEZEEE - ELEETAFNEE D -
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. HZE_Z_ZF+_H=+—HLIFE &FF
Attendance of the Board Meetings, the meetings of the Board Committees HFEZEEH EELE T MREAETH
and the General Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2020 is given ~REEHIW F - EEGLEELZE TS ENES
below. The respective responsibilities of the Board and Board Committees i ARSI B EIBTEHERBE ©

are discussed later in this report.

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend

HE/AERHEERNRY

Board Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Meeting Committee Committee Committee Meeting
288 BKEET RLEEZET  HHERE M EYN
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping INFRE 7/10 12 173 012
Mr. Lai Ka Fai Py e 10110 212
Mr. Tao Ke el 410 02
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEELE 0110 012
Mr. Ng Tin Shui (nofe 1) RXEBLE W21 33 N/A R EH
Non-executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi ezt 6/10 02
Independent non-executive Directors B JFHITES
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE 8/10 33 212 33 02
Mr. Ho Hin Yip TR E 10/10 33 22 3/3 22
Mr. U Keng Tin REXEKE 10110 33 22
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David (note 2) PREBRSE Wr22) 23 NA FEH
Note: g2
1. Appointed on 9 September 2020 1 A TETEFENBNBERE
2. Appointed on 9 September 2020 2 N ZETEFNBNBERE
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All Directors are regularly updated on governance and regulatory matters.
There is an established procedure for Directors to obtain independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company in discharge of their
duties.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all Directors for all regular board
meetings and the Directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of Board Committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all Directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information on a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During 2020, Mr. Wong Lik Ping
served as the Chairman whereas Mr. Lai Ka Fai served as the CEO of the
Group. The Chairman provides leadership to management in respect of
operational issues. The CEO has overall chief executive responsibility for
the Group’s business development and day-to-day management generally.
The segregation ensures a clear distinction between the Chairman’s
responsibility to manage the Board and the CEQ’s responsibility to
manage the Group's business on behalf of the Board in the operational
management of the Company. With the support of Executive Directors and
Company Secretaries, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings and receive adequate
and reliable information in a timely manner.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The Board has an non-executive Director, Ms. Yip Man Yi, who mainly
oversees the Company and its business issues in a broad perspective.
Ms. Yip has been appointed for one year term from 17 October 2020 and
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four INEDs, one of the INEDs hold appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. All INEDs of the Company
have been appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Assaociation.

Each of the INEDs has given the Company an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all INEDs are independent and meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution into the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Directors are committed to complying with the code provision A.6.5
on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development activities by reading regulatory updates, and/or
attending seminars/workshops relevant to the business/Directors’ duties.
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A record of training they received for the year ended 31 December 2020
was provided to the Company. The individual training record of each
Director received for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EEERMBE_E_EF+__A=+—HL
FEBEZNIEIEHRTEAT  FRETIEH
EFERE_ZEHF+_RA=+—HLFERE
SIFEIRYECER |

Attending

seminars/

workshops

Reading relevant to
Regulatory the business/
updates directors’ duties
HEEER

RBEEENREZ ZEZEHERMZ
BEHER B REE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping FOTERE 4 v
Mr. Lai Ka Fai B G 4 v
Mr. Tao Ke e m] S 4 v
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEERE v 4
Mr. Ng Tin Shui BXRERE (N2 TEF

(appointed on 9 September 2020) "B NBEZD v 4
Non-Executive Director ERITES
Ms. Yip Man Yi BB L v
Independent non-executive Directors BIJEBITES
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE v 4
Mr. Ho Hin Yip RT3 E 4 v
Mr. U Keng Tin REXNKE v
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David RREBLEE (RZZ2F

(appointed on 9 September 2020) NBNBEZD 4 4

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies and monitors
its performance. The Board also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, major transactions, director appointments, and
dividend and accounting policies and monitors the internal controls of
the Group’s business operation. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of overseeing the Group’s day to day operations to
management executives.
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When the Board delegates aspect of its management and administration
functions to management, clear directions would be given as to the power
of management, in particular, the circumstances where management
should report back to the Board before making decision or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Group.

Principal functions that are specifically delegated by the Board to the
management include (i) implementation of corporate strategy and policy
initiatives; (ii) provision of management reports to the Board in respect of
Group’s performance, financial position and prospects; and (iii) day-to-day
management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Diversity of Board Members Policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and discussed all measurable objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business. All Board appointments will be based on merit
and the candidates will be considered against measurable objectives,
taking into account the Company’s business and needs. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills. The Company will also take into
account factors based on its specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected
candidates may bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate from time to time in light of experience, evolving standards
of corporate governance and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Company adopted a director nomination policy (the “Director
Nomination Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which set out the criteria
and process in the appointment and nomination of directors, in order
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and ensure the Board continuity
and appropriate leadership.

According to the Director Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
will carry out evaluation on candidates by considering their skKills,
professional qualification, experience, independence (for independent
non-executive directors), gender, time commitment and make
recommendation to the Board based on the nomination procedure. The
Director Nomination Policy will also be reviewed from time to time in order
to satisfy the business needs and ensure compliance with the regularity
requirements as well as maintain good corporate governance practice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee to ensure that
there are formal and transparent procedures for setting policies on the
remuneration of Directors. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin Yip.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

During the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held to
review the remuneration packages of the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee ensures that no Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a
copy of which is posted on the Company’s website, are consistent with the
terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code and Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee to ensure fair and
transparent procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors to the Board. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Nomination Committee comprises the Board’s Chairman, Mr. Wong Lik
Ping, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. Ho Hin Yip.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wong Lik Ping.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

EFRABR

FRABERZE—N\F+_B+HERMNES
LB (EFRRBER) - HEYEan kRS
EEMERRER URRESENERR/TIE
FATRAEE KRR Z T LR R RER S
AR SR B At

REEFRAER RREEERBBEBRE
ABIEBE BEER B B (FUBILIFR
TEFEMS) %R PRY AR 3 HETT5T
HIRERAIEFAESSFEHBERR -EF
RABBRITR AR TR LUn R BT E
ERETEEREUARGRRENEEERS
Mo

HMEES

FABEMUFMEES  LIEFREH EEFH
MR EAEXRERZEF B#E_F-F
F+A=+—HLEFE FNEZEENEEE
EFEIFEIHFRE RMBBIIFNTES
RERIERAAITRILE - AITERERFTINE
BEZEREe

AEERBERT —IFHINEE ST MES
ZHNT B IR E S RRRERS
SETE HAS BRI - SN 2 B S pV B s E A
EEEATRIRREBREOFIEZ AR —
HINEEENBREEC T BEEARERMEL
o

RHZEET

FABDERURVLEES  UHFREIEFES
T BEEAREREFZEEARTRBHE
F-BE_T_ZEHE+_A=+—HULIFE &
YEEENERRERGEFEITERE Kl
LEIIFFPTESREREERAITREE T
NFREBRLEZEGZER -



During the year, two Nomination Committee meetings were held to review
the structure, size, composition of the Board, existing Nomination Policy
and discuss appointment of directors. In selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship, the Committee will consider the background,
experience, qualification and suitability of the candidates as well as the
Board Diversity Policy. The Board will approve the recommendations
based on the same criteria. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website, are
consistent with the terms set out in the relevant section of the CG Code
and Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Ho Hin Yip, Mr. Goh Choo Hwee and Mr. U Keng
Tin. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Ho Hin Yip.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal controls of
the Group, and perform the corporate governance duties. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held to review the financial reporting
matters, risk management and internal control procedures of the Group.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, a copy of which is posted
on the Company’s website, are consistent with the terms set out in the
relevant section of the CG Code and Report.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries, all directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

To comply with the code provision A.6.4 of the CG Code and Report, the
Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by Relevant Employees to regulate the dealings
in the securities of the Company by certain employees of the Group who
are considered to be likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information of the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects.

Management shall provide sufficient explanation and information to the
Board as will enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information presented before board meeting for
approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the
relevant requirements and applicable standards.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 73 of this
annual report.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
to annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and
procedures, as well as reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to
manage its risks across business operations. The Group has established
a risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the functional responsible management of the Group
(“Senior Management”). The Board determines the nature and extent of
risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
has the overall responsibility for monitoring the design, implementation
and the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Its improvement is an
ongoing process and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and processes. The Board,
through the Audit Committee, conducts reviews of the effectiveness of
such systems once annually, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Group has formulated
and adopted risk management policy in providing directions in identifying,
evaluating and managing significant risks. At least on an annual basis,
the Senior Management identifies risks that would adversely affect the
achievement of the Group'’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the
identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation
plans and risk owners are then established for those risks considered
to be significant. In addition, the Group has engaged Zhonghui Anda
Risk Services Limited (“Zhonghui”) to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring of risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and in performing the internal audit functions for the
Group. The annual review plan of the Group covers major activities and
material controls including operational, financial and compliance of the
Group’s business units. It also covers the changes, since the last annual
review, in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group’s ability
to respond to changes in its business and the external environment.
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A report on the result of risk management and internal control review
report from Zhonghui was provided to the Audit Committee and the
Board in March 2021. The Board, through the Audit Committee,
had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems, including but not limited to
(i) the general compliances with the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
and the disclosure requirements of the Corporate Governance Report,
(i) corporate level controls (such as the independence, experience, roles
and responsibilities of the Board and composition of each committee as
well as management monitoring activities), (iii) certain operational level
controls, and (iv) financial reporting functions. The Board concluded that
there are no material irregularities nor areas of concern that would have
significant adverse impact on the Group'’s state of affair, and that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate (including the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions) and have complied with the CG
code provisions on risk management and internal control during the year.
There was also no material breach of procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information during the year. The
Company regularly reminds the directors and the relevant staff about due
compliance and latest regulatory updates with the insider information and
other relevant regulations.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the auditors of the Company
provided audit and non-audit services to the Company and the Group.

The auditor's remuneration payable to BDO Limited in relation to audit and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$1,600,000 and HK$145,000 respectively.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 66 to 73.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Board
policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows
and communications among Directors and its committees as well as with
shareholders and management, and between management and the non-
executive directors.
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Mr. Li Chak Hung and Mr. Siu Wai Bun, are the joint company secretaries
of the Company. Both of Mr. Li and Mr. Siu report to Mr. Wong Lik Ping,
the Chairman of the Board.

Mr. Li Chak Hung was appointed as company secretary of the Company
on 13 March 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update his skills and knowledge during the year.

Mr. Siu Wai Bun was appointed as joint company secretary of the
Company on 6 November 2017. Mr. Siu is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. During the year, Mr. Siu
undertook more than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update
his skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary General Meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at Room
2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general
meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Making enquiry to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing to the company secretary at the Company’s office in Hong
Kong at Room 2203, 22/F., Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a dividend policy for striking a right balance
between rewarding its shareholders by sharing a portion of the profits and
meeting adequate cash reserves for its working capital requirements and
future prospects of the Company. With reasonable but not pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio, the proposed amount of dividends will be
made at the discretion of the Board and will depend on the Company’s
operational results, cash flow situation, financial conditions, capital
expenditure requirements, general business conditions and strategies,
future economic environment, statutory and regulatory restrictions and
any other factors that the Board may deem relevant. The policy will be
reviewed from time to time so as to keep in line with the change of market
conditions and other factors as the Board may deem relevant.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
has established a range of communication channels between itself, its
shareholders and investors, including answering questions through the
annual general meeting, the publications of annual and interim reports,
notices, announcements and circulars on the website of the Company
at www.egichk.com. During the year, the Company has adopted a new
Memorandum and Articles of Association.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Lik Ping, aged 60, is the Chairman of the Group. He joined
the Group in August 2012 and is responsible for overall leadership
strategic planning, business development and Board issues of the Group.
He was (i) an executive director and a vice-chairman of Shougang
Fushan Resources Group Limited (stock code: 639) from March 2009
to December 2015 and (i) an executive director and the chairman of
Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) from November
2009 to January 2016, both companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He is a director and the sole shareholder of Worldkin
Development Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”),
Mr. Wong is a member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He has extensive experience in trading
business, financial industry and investments in a wide range of businesses
in the PRC.

Mr. Lai Ka Fai, aged 52, joined the Group in June 2010 and was
appointed as an executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company in January 2012 and November 2017 respectively. Mr. Lai
is responsible for the corporate governance, administration and new
business development of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Laws
from The Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom, a
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a
Master degree of Business Administration from the University of Leicester
in the United Kingdom. He is a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and has over 20 years of experience
in the legal field.

Mr. Tao Ke, aged 38, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 6 March 2015. Mr. Tao holds a Master of Social Science
degree from University of Glasgow and a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Beijing Institute of Technology. Mr. Tao has extensive experience in
corporate finance and overseas merger and acquisition. He had been
worked in international investment banks and responsible for clients’
project management, project acquisition and various initial public
offerings. Mr. Tao is currently a general manager of a chemical production
group in Shandong.
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Mr. Qiao Weibing, aged 54, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 17 March 2016. Mr. Qiao holds a bachelor degree
from Shanxi University and a master degree in management engineering
from China University of Mining and Technology. Mr. Qiao has over 20
years' working experience in the government regulatory authorities and
financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Qiao is currently the chief investment
officer of the Company and the chairman and CEO of Beijing Ever Grand
International Finance Lease Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company in the
PRC.

Mr. Ng Tin Shui, aged 66, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree of
science in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He was the chairman of Hong Kong Overseas Merchants
Association between 2008 and 2014. He is also the life time member of
the American Society of Mechanical Engineers. Mr. Ng has over 30 years
of experience in trading of a variety of pharmaceutical products, health
supplement, personal care and other healthcare products (collectively
“Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products”). Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Ng was involved in sales and corporate management in the trading
of Pharmaceutical and Healthcare Products, including KT&G Ginseng
and Tiger Balm, which were first authorised products for distribution
in Hong Kong. Recently, his scope of work and experience expanded
to the investment in the research and development and production of
biotechnologies, including application of algae and marine ingredients,
plant stem cell and Car-T cell specialised in the cancer DNA reading and
implanting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yip Man Yi, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company in October 2019. Ms. Yip was graduated from Seneca
College of Applied Arts and Technology, Toronto, Canada and has over
20 years’ experience in financial market and money market. Ms. Yip has
been worked with HSBC Market (Asia) Limited for Global Markets and
companies listed on both the Main and the GEM Boards of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She was actively involved in formulating
investment strategy and was responsible for overseeing the operation of
various investment projects. Ms. Yip was appointed as executive director
and chairman of Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code:
8173), a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange from
December 2015 to November 2019.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Goh Choo Hwee, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in January 2012. He has over 20
years of experience in PRC-related, corporate and securities practice. He
is currently a consultant of Ma Tang & Co, Solicitors, a law firm in Hong
Kong. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws in 1995. He has become a member of The Law Society
of Hong Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
1997. He is currently an independent non-executive director of each of
Tsui Wah Holdings Limited (stock code: 1314) and Huajin International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2738), all of which are companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was appointed as the company
secretary of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from December
2013 to November 2018.

Mr. Ho Hin Yip, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in December 2012. He is presently
the Financial Controller and Joint Company Secretary of Singapore-
listed Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited, where he is responsible for the
finance and accounting functions, statutory compliance and corporate
governance affairs. He has more than 20 years of financial and auditing
experience. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He also acts as an independent non-
executive director of each of Jiyi Household International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1495), Hope Life International Holdings Limited (stock
code:1683) from August 2015 to February 2017 and from August 2018
to July 2019) and Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309)
(from December 2014 to 1 April 2020), all of which are companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. U Keng Tin, aged 71, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in May 2013. He holds the Bachelor's
degree of Arts from York University, Canada and Master's degree of Arts
in International Economics from University of San Francisco, USA. He is
presently a director of an estate management company, Full Fill Services
Co., Limited and a director of a brokerage house, Bloomyears Limited. He
also acts as a non-executive director of Noble Engineering Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8445) since September 2020. He has over 30 years
of experience in the securities industry.
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Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Company on 9 September 2020. Mr. Leung
holds a Bachelor's degree of Pharmacy from National Defense Medical
Center, School of Pharmacy in Taipei Taiwan, and a master of Science
Clinical Pharmacy from University of Sunderland in the UK. He obtained
a pharmacist registration and practising certificate from Pharmacy &
Poisons Board of Hong Kong. Over 15 years, Mr. Leung has been working
as pharmacist and/or consultant in various dispensaries and medical
centers where he is responsible for operation, strategic planning and
execution of pharmaceutical business. He has been an adjunct lecturer of
Pharmaceuticals and Pharmacology in HKU SPACE. Mr. Leung has over
20 years of experience, qualifications and exposure in sales and supply
and business management of pharmaceutical and healthcare products in
Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC markets.
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The Board is pleased to present this Report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and segment information for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in note 5 and note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 74
and 75 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 239 and 240 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At 31 December 2020, in the opinion of the directors, the Company's
share premium and reserves available for distribution to shareholders
amounted to 263,887,000.

Movement in the share premium and reserves of the Group during the
year are set out on page 78 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers represented 17% and 67% of the Group’s revenue in
2020 respectively.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers represented 57% and 98% of the Group’s purchases
in 2020 respectively.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has any interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

2190w E X

REBEMSBERBEAE22E (—h—FHE3R
BB BEIRE RAER]) » NRB 2RI EE R A
RIS S RS - 18T E
BAMMER 2 RE  BREBDIKKREE &
NRVEARENEEEARESBRETZEME
o

TECRE+ A=+ —H EFIREAT
Bl kT B B 2 B 17 i (B e 8 1 73263,887,000
ABTTe

FEBRTFENZRDSERFEREEEHT
A FEREE7/8H °

BrAlEERE

FABZ SR NFHEEH BEAL &S
BAREAR AR RREARIRERREEMKRZ
BIRIBER IR

BE BOGLERQFT LS
ks

FABHEEAMBATNAFEERNEEREE
HEWBEIEAAAE] EHES -

EERRMER

FEBZEAERAAKRE L EGEHE DR
(HARER " " BFIWRARILT7%E67%

FEBZEAMEBERAAHRESRGREE
DRNERER " T " R FREERIS/%K98%

BEF REZHBEAREARESAANAEE
NERAELWB A EZ IRER IR AEE A AM
FER PR e o



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions during the year are disclosed in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Lik Ping (Chairman)
Mr. Lai Ka Fai

Mr. Tao Ke

Mr. Qiao Weibing

Mr. Ng Tin Shui

Non-executive director
Ms. Yip Man Yi

Independence non-executive directors
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee

Mr. Ho Hin Yip

Mr. U Keng Tin

Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Qiao Weibing and Mr. Tao Ke shall retire from offices by rotation in the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Ng Tin Shui and Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David shall retire from office
in the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The biographic details of the existing directors are set out on pages 53 to
and 56 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 29 July 2016. As at 31 December
2019, a total outstanding number of share options were granted to
the eligible employees, including directors of the Company, amounted
to 19,833,334. With no share options lapsed and new share options
granted during the year, the outstanding number of share options as at
31 December 2020 shrunk to 1,983,333 solely due to the completion
of the share consolidation of the basis of every 10 issued and unissued
shares consolidated into 1 consolidated share on 26 March 2020. Details
of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have any interest in competing business to the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2020, the following directors and chief executive of
the Company have the following interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code:

Long and short positions in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the
Company:
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Number of share/underlying shares held

FERR /R EE

Number of

underlying

shares held

under equity Long(L) or

Personal Corporate derivatives Total Short(S)  Percentage of
interests interests (Note 2) interests Position interests

IRIERHENTE

TARHER

RHEE ¥R
Directors/chief executive BEE/TETHAE UG5 YNG4 Wz2) Ly KBS  HEHEIM
Wong Lik Ping INF 46,600,000 145,500,000 - 192,100,000 S 11.39%
(Notel)
"zt1)

Ng Tin Shui RXRE 56,570,000 L 3.35%
Qiao Weibing BEE 333,333 333,333 L 0.020%
Lai Ka Fai REE 133,333 133333 L 0.008%
Tao Ke 5] 100,000 100,000 L 0.006%
Goh Choo Hwee RER 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
Ho Hin Yip EEHES 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
U Keng Tin REX 66,667 66,667 L 0.004%
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R
Notes:
1. These interests are held by Worldkin Development Limited (“Worldkin”) which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Lik Ping. Mr. Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Worldkin. The interests held by Worldkin are disclosed under the
section headed “SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” below.

2. These interests represented the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company to the directors/chief executive. Details of which are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive and their
associated had any interests or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO and the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'’S RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive have been granted unlisted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the directors, chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to
have any long positions or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
has been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, in accordance with the register of the
substantial shareholders kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO, or to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and the Listing Rules, the following persons were interest
(including short positions) in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company.

Interest in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company:
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Number of
Shares/ Long(L) or
underlying Short (S) Percentage
Notes Shares held positions holding
FERR #EWL)
Name of Shareholders RERRE s Mzt L] FKBE(S) FRE AL
Worldkin Development Limited HEEREFRAT 145,500,000 S 8.62%
Mr. Wong Lik Ping EHFELE 1 192,100,000 S 11.39%
Funde Sino Life Insurance Co. Ltid. B2y ASERRED
BRAT 357,443,000 L 21.18%
Win Wind Resources Limited BRERERAE 2 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Oshidori International Holdings Limited B ZEREIZIG B FRA S 243 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Win Wind Capital Limited BREABERAE 2K3 192,100,000 L 11.39%
Ms. Chi Chin TEZL 5 192,270,000 L 11.40%
Expert Magic Limited Expert Magic Limited 257,000,000 L 15.23%
Mr. Lam Tsun On WEZIE 4 257,000,000 L 15.23%
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HHEEGRE
Notes:
1. Mr. Wong Lik Ping holds entire equity interest of Worldkin Development Limited

(“Worldkin”) and is accordingly deemed to have interest in 145,500,000 shares of
the Company that Worldkin has interests in. Mr. Wong personally owns 46,600,000
shares of the Company.

2. Win Wind Resources Limited has security interests in 192,100,000 shares.

3. Win Wind Resources Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Win Wind Capital
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Oshidori International Holdings Limited.
Accordingly, Oshidori International Holdings Limited is deemed to have interests in
192,100,000 shares held by Win Wind Resources Limited.

4, Mr. Lam Tsun On holds 65% equity interest of Expert Magic Limited (“Expert Magic”)
and is deemed to be a controlling shareholder of Expert Magic.

(5) Out of the 192,270,000 Shares which Ms. Chi Chin was interested in, (i)
135,700,000 were held by Ms. Chi Chin as the beneficial owner, and (ii) 56,570,000
Shares were held by her spouse, Mr. Ng Tin Shui.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or
a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at
31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

THE Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 40 to 52 of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 467 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the
benefit of the directors of the Group is currently in force and was in
force during the year. The Company has taken out insurance against the
liabilities and costs associated with proceedings which may be brought
against directors of the Group.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the amount
of public float as approved by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
permitted under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purposes of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and
vote at the coming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 8 June 2021 to 11 June 2021 (both days
inclusive), during such period no transfer of shares in the Company will
be effected. In order to qualify for entittement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m., 7 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 were audited by Messrs. BDO Limited (“BDO”).

A resolution to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Wong Lik Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
J LA MR

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

E:F : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Ever
Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 74
to 238, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment of finance lease receivables
(Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had finance lease receivables of
net carrying amount approximately HK$168.0 million, and impairment
of approximately HK$143.7 million has been made over the balance. It
represents 14.2% of total assets of the Group.

Loss allowances for finance lease receivables are based on management'’s
estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred, which is
estimated by taking into account the credit loss experience, past collection
history, subsequent settlement of each finance lease customer, and also
relevant deposits received, pledge of leased assets and guarantees and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management judgement.

We identified the impairment of finance lease receivables as a key audit
matter due to its significance to the consolidated financial statements,
and the assessment of the recoverability of finance lease receivables
and recognition of loss allowance are inherently subjective and requires
significant management judgement, which increases the risk of error or
potential management bias.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of finance lease receivables (Continued)
Our responses:

- Obtaining an understanding of the Group's impairment provision
policy and methodology for impairment assessment in relation to
the application of the ECL model;

- Inquiring of management for the status of each of the material
finance lease arrangement past due as at year end date and
corroborating explanations from management with supporting
evidence, such as understanding credit status of debtors,
checking historical and subsequent settlement records and other
correspondence with the debtors;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management’s
expert;

- Involving an auditor's expert to assist our assessment on the
impairment on finance lease receivables arising from finance lease
arrangement;

- Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditors’ expert.

Impairment of loan receivables
(Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements)

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of loan receivables
and its related impairment allowance amount to HK$104.3 million and
HK$137.1 million respectively. Impairment allowance for credit exposure
at Stage 3 amounted to HK$133.6 million.

The assessment of impairment for loan receivables involves significant
management judgements and estimates on the amount of expected credit
loss at the reporting date.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward looking analysis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)
Our responses:

- Understanding of the Group’s credit risk management and
practices, and assessed the Group’s impairment provisioning
policy in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9, including
an evaluation of management judgement on i) the level of
disaggregation of portfolios for impairment assessment; ii) the
use of reasonable and supportable credit risk information that is
available without undue cost or effort; and iii) the staging criteria
for determining if a significant increase in credit risk has occurred;

- Testing the appropriateness of the Group’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for classification
of exposures into 3 stages. Our testing included the checking to
loan overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or other related
information, and considering the stage classification determined
by the Group;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the ECL model methodology
and related parameter, including probability of default, loss given
default, and risk exposure at default used by the management's
expert;

- Involving an auditor's expert to assist our assessment on the
impairment on receivable from sale-leaseback transaction arising
from sale-leaseback arrangement;

- Evaluating the independence, competence and objectivity of the
management’s expert and auditor's expert;

- Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures in relation to
impairment of loan receivables, which included in Note 19 and 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we have
obtained Management Discussion and Analysis but have not obtained the
remaining other information included in the annual report (the “Remaining
Other Information”), which is expected to be made available to us after
that date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
b2 Gl e

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Remaining Other Information, if we conclude there is
a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate that
matter to the directors and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
b2 Gl e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Wai Man

Practising Certificate Number PO5309

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

froiHm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_E_ZF+_A=+—HILEE

2020 2019
—ETF T—E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET TFHET
Revenue WA 5 66,184 71,155
Cost of revenue NN (82,552) (49,354)
Gross (loss)/profit (EH) EF (16,368) 21,801
Other income =R N 7 8,245 10,500
Other gains and losses Hithm K518 7 34,801 (583)
Administrative expenses TERX (123,697) (64,255)
Impairment loss on: PRI ST
Receivable from E &I Z B
a sale-leaseback transaction 19 (96,896) (5,678)
Finance lease receivables BB BRI 18 (102,530) (32,578)
Loan receivables ERER 19 (3,380) (1,211)
Goodwill EEES 15 - (9,373)
Property, plant and equipment L ENEEYSEL 13 (5,089) -
Interest in an associate upon BN NEAFEHEZ
reclassification to assets classified as BERBNR—BERAZ
held for sale i 16(d) (30,973)
Share of results of associates Pag: 3 L/N=IE (5,664) 29,389
Other expenses HAupaXZ (661) (773)
Finance costs AL (391) -
Loss before taxation FRIGAIES 1B (342,603) (52,761)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frigin (2 g% 9 (13,975) 1,798
Loss for the year KEEEE 10 (356,578) (50,963)
Loss for the year attributable to: REETHEIERE(LEIE
Owners of the Company PN/NEIE DN (242,933) (34,132)
Non-controlling interests SRR SR i (113,645) (16,831)
(356,578) (50,963)
(Restated)
Ge=gal)
Loss per share (HK cents) SEE GBI
Basic BN 11 (16.09) (2.86)
Diluted e (16.09) (2.86)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSSAND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Aoyt S HAth i e 2R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_ZF+_F=+—HILFEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss for the year KEERIE (356,578) (50,963)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hht2ml A~ FEIxR)
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: A EEHHIEEEBH AR !
Exchange difference arising on translation to MBEREEMES ZERELR
presentation currency 3,417 (15,719)
Fair value change on equity investment at fair AT EZBHEMEEmWASERZ
value through other comprehensive income AL E 7 A EEE) (3,563) -
Share of other comprehensive income of DS AR EMEEWA
associates (16) -
Other comprehensive expense AEEHMPERASZ (OBRPIER)
for the year, net of income tax (162) (15,719)
Total comprehensive expense AEELHEMAZLEEE
for the year (356,740) (66,682)
Total comprehensive expense REETHEIERG 2 EESZIEEE .
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (242,695) (47 518)
Non-controlling interests JEERR IS Bt i (114,045) (19,164)
(356,740) (66,682)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ar e IR

At 31 December 2020 MN_E_THF+_F=+—H

2020 2019
ZEIERFE CZE-hE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LY EN =Yy 13 90,112 93,811
Investment properties REMZE 14 148,331 133,521
Goodwill S 15 25,556 -
Interests in associates N =N 16 95,111 338,206
Equity investments at fair value through BATEEBEMEEmBA
other comprehensive income SRR 7 IR & 17 123,781 55,517
Finance lease receivables RAETEEEWE 18 14,132 69,913
Loan receivables RS 19 21,733 26,151
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 30 1,579 1,324
Restricted bank deposits ZIREISRITIER 24 20,724 19,520
Deposits & 22 11,876 11,186
552,935 749,149
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =58 20 19,060 2137
Contingent consideration receivables FEUR R IARIE 25 2,553 -
Finance lease receivables RIBEEEWE 18 153,913 339,309
Loan receivables EURER 19 82,614 214,212
Trade receivables B SR 21 2,976 -
Other receivables, deposits and HEWRE - e RN IE
prepayments 22 43,903 18,612
Financial assets at fair value BN EEBERSIRZ
through profit or loss TREE 23 156,052 25,678
Deposit placed with non-bank GFRICIEIRITERMIEE 2
financial institutions T3 24 39,227 90,545
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 24 132,483 107,033
632,781 797,526

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR E B IR IR

At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZEF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
“E-RFg ZE—hE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
st FHET FAT
Current liabilities mEaE
Service cost payables, other payables FETARFE B A ~ ELfh BTN
and accruals K FESTE R 26 88,283 28,651
Contract liabilities a8l — 2,563
Financial liability at fair value through AT EEBERIIRZ
profit or loss By =L 28 = 15,660
Tax payable FEIHRIE 21,105 14,251
Borrowings EEN 27 458,603 523,654
567,991 584,779
Net current assets REBEERE 64,790 212,747
Total assets less current liabilities WEERTHEE 617,725 961,896
Capital and reserves BEXRRHE
Share capital &N 29 168,730 119,192
Reserves = 399,333 621,227
Equity attributable to owners of the KNBVEB AL
Company 568,063 740,419
Non-controlling interests JEVE G AR B M o 6,555 120,600
Total equity 4ERERE 574,618 861,019
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deposits received from customers S EY=F 18 27,100 24,872
Borrowings EEN 27 14,786 69,633
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE 30 1,221 6,372
43,107 100,877
617,725 961,896

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and are signedon MR- ZE - —F=FA " +NHEES A 1T

s behalf by: MU TEFRESE |
WONG LIK PING LAI KA FAI
E7F REE
Director Director
i #E
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CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Sz ogg
Gr e Tt A ) 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_E_ZF+_A=+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRA AR
Share Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation options Other  revaluation Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interests Total
BlE REEfR E320

RE  BbEE  ERERE i Hitds fife
HKS000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
T T TEn TEn TEn T

iEhE  2H6R Nt REEE st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T TiEn TiEn TiEn T

(Note b) (Note a)
(3 b) (Hza)
At 1 January 2019 R-%-nE-E-H 119,192 1520921 (5,328) 1,136 - 3,450 6,397 (857,831) 787,937 139,764 927,701
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - - (34,132) (34,132) (16,831) (50,963)
Other comprehensive expense FEEEMRERT
for the year - - (13,386) - - - - - (13,386) (2,333) (15,719)
Total comprehensive expense FEERERIAR
for the year - - (13,386) - - - - (34,132 (47,518) (19,164) (66,682)
Share options lapsed BRERN - - - (409) - - - 409 - - -
At 31 December 2019 and EA 713
1 January 2020
119,192 1520921 (18,714) 721 - 3,450 6,397 (891,554) 740,419 120,600 861,019
Loss for the year FEEFE - - - - - - - (42933 (242933  (113645)  (365,578)
Other comprehensive incomef(expense) AEEEMEE
forthe year WA/ B - - 2,085 - - (1,847) - - 238 (400) (162)
Total comprehensive incomel(expense)  AEE2H
forthe year WA/ (%) 48 - - 2,085 - - (1,847) - (242933)  (242,695) (114,045  (356,740)
Issue of shares upon TREEREARG
completion of placing 23,838 8407 - - - - - - 32,245 - 32,245
Issue of shares upon acquision WE-ZHBATE
of a subsidiary LG 25,700 28,270 - = (15,876) - - - 38,094 - 38,094
Transfer to accumulated losses upon~ HE-FHENT SR
disposal of an associate EEHEE - - 14,965 - - - - (14,965) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZE
+-A=1+-8 168,730 1,557,598 (1,664) 727 (15,876) 1,603 6397 (1,149,452 568,063 6,555 574,618
Note: BT
(a) As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of  (a) IR A REME (THREL) BRERAEEIRRE »

China (the “PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, the subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of their net profit after taxation to the
statutory reserve (except where the reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’
registered capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the directors
of the relevant subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses
or increase capital.

(b) Other reserve represents the value of the contingent consideration arrangement on (b)
the escrow shares subject to the profit guarantee requirement of the acquisition
agreement as set out in note 43(a).

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
;-\7I‘ |:| fﬁlﬂi’:{ﬁ%%
For the year ended 31 December 2020 &#E_ZF_ZTFE+_HA=+—HIFE
2020 2019
HK$ 900 HK$'000
FAT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SR
Loss before taxation PRIGAIES IR (342,603) (52,761)
Adjustments for: EHTEZE
Finance costs TSR A 40,105 40,289
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- -BEKREZEZITE 5,391 5,303
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair BATEEBERSEZ
value through profit or loss EMEEZ AT EEES) 2,548 5,208
Change in fair value on investment properties KREMEZ NEEE) (4,091) (645)
Dividend income g SR (969) -
Share of results of associates DEME RN B ES 5,664 (29,389)
Impairment loss on goodwill e R AR = 9,373
Write-off of property, D2~ BR B B s i
plant and equipment 11
Impairment loss on property, Y BB R RS R E RS 18
plant and equipment 5,089 -
Impairment loss on interest in an associate upon  EHE NS HEHREHDIEE DA
reclassification to assets classified as held for AEEHEEEZBEERE
sale 30,973 -
Exchange gain, net U FRE (17,784) -
Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary JJ:EE‘”-%W%@TZH&%E (2,742) -
Fair value change on financial liability Tt&’&iFTELL?Eﬁﬁ@J [
at fair value through profit or loss BB AT EES (15,660) (11,662)
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables BB SR UR(EER 102,530 32,578
Impairment loss on receivable from EREERZEWERBERSE
sale-leaseback transaction 96,896 5,678
Impairment loss on loan receivables FEWN EFURERS 18 3,380 1,211
Change in fair value of contingent consideration  FEURTNIARE 2 A FEEE)
receivables 2,498 -
Finance lease interest income RMEREF SWA (14,190) (29,136)
Sale-leaseback transaction interest income EBEMERZHEWA (706) (13,184)
Write-off of inventories FEEE 419 833
Interest income B A (6,339) (3,393)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEEREFA KERERE
working capital (109,580) (39,697)
Increase in inventories FEEM (14,288) (2,882)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, deposits ~ ELMFEUL R ~ 1% 5 K FE 1S =B
and prepayments @ghm) R (23,926) 21,651
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 SRR D 78 -
(Decrease)/increase in service cost payables, other FE{TARTFS B2 « E fth &S =R R FE 5T
payables and accruals &R (AL 1Eh0 (945) 1,932
Decrease in deposits received from customers BE R EEELD - (321)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at fair value AT (EFBERYIRZ
through profit or loss SREE (M R (132,094) 26,864
Decrease in finance lease receivables BB AR B FEUR R - 14,510
Increase in loan receivables EREHERZ EWETIE
from sale leaseback transaction - (151,096)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits placed with B & R ENER
financial institutions L (g 51,318 (7,654)
Cash used in operations KEFAZIRE (229,437) (136,693)
Income tax paid EAIPTEH (14,142) (15,835)
Finance lease interest income received BWEEREF S WA 14,190 29,136
Sale-leaseback transaction interest BNERLEIERZHEWA
income received 706 13,184
Interest element of lease rental paid BENHESHF B - (5)
Interest paid BAFIE (13,320) (40,289)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES & ZEBFAAZIRE 3 (242,003) (150,502)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERemER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—_ v — E = _j-l-'ﬁi
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mk FET TAET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEH
Investment in equity investments RiRAFEBEBEEMEE

at fair value through other WWABEE 2 B RER &

comprehensive income (74,340) (21,253)
Addition of loan receivables FER EFIE N (50,378) (83,759)
Repayment from loan receivables BERWER 95,523 154,151
Purchases of property, BEWE - BERRE

plant and equipment (534) (46,706)
Purchases of investment property EERXEY= (32,947) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) arising from WHEN B AR EE

acquisition of subsidiaries BE£RA (Rt) FEE 43a 4,609 (160,050)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BB KRB

plant and equipment FrigsIE - 215
Proceeds from held to maturity of BAFEZEBEHMEE

equity investments at fair value through WABER Z 15 A E 2 HA

other comprehensive income R EFREIE 5,938 -
Acquisition of associates BB E A B (55,529) -
Proceed from disposal of interest HER—FKBERNE 2

in an associate HEmPTS e 335,664 -
Dividend received B E 969 -
Interest received BWFHE 6,339 3,738
NET CASH GENERATED REZEFRET (FrA)

FROM/(USED IN) REFEE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 235,314 (153,664)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RLEEE
Proceeds from borrowings B FERIa 36 20,000 151,011
Repayment of borrowings BIRE™M 36 (20,283) -
Proceeds from shares placing APBC &SRB 32,245 -
Capital element of lease rental paid B HEENE AR - (377)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEBIFR IR B ER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 31,962 150,634
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERRE%EY

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS )| D - B2 25,273 (153,532)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FVRERAEEEY

BEGINNING OF YEAR 107,033 262,123
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SMEEREE 2R

RATE CHANGES 177 (1,558)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END F4&IREKRIREHEY

OF YEAR 132,483 107,033
Represented by: (RVE

Bank balances and cash IRITEFRAIRE 132,483 107,033

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e W BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_ZF+_F=+—HILFEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Ever Grand Financial Leasing Group Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands as an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section on the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are provision of finance
lease and related consulting services in the PRC, the trading of
equity securities, investment in properties, investment holdings,
sale of food additives, sale of medical, health and hygiene
products and money lending business.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") as the directors consider that it is a more
appropriate presentation for a company listed on the Stock
Exchange and for the convenience of the shareholders.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective at 1 January
2020

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of

the Group:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of amended HKFRSs - effective at 1 January
2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
introduce an optional concentration test that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The election to
apply the concentration test is made for each transaction.
The concentration test is met if substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets. If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business. If the
concentration test is failed, the acquired set of activities
and assets is further assessed based on the elements of a
business.

The Group elected to apply the amendments prospectively
to acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2020. As described in note 43(a), the Group
acquired a set of activities and assets in August 2020 and
elected to apply the concentration test to that transaction
but the transaction failed the concentration test. Based
on the assessment of elements of a business, the Group
concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets is a
business.

None of these amended HKFRSs has a material impact on
the Group's results and financial position for the current or
prior period. The Group has not early applied any new or
amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
and HK Int-5 Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause*

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

HKFRS17 Insurance Contracts*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between

HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Phase 2!
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 - Related Rent Concession®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT AR I o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_Z—

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
5 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. The
amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’
to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

2. RMNEEMBHRSERN

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation 5 (2020),
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause (Continued)

HK Int-5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int-5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments will likely impact on the Group's
accounting policies in respect of the construction of assets,
as certain proceeds of selling items produced whilst
bringing assets under construction are currently deducted
from the cost of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either
be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct
labour and materials) or an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of
the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General Model’, which
is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the ‘Variable Fee Approach’. The
General Model is simplified if certain criteria are met by
measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the
Premium Allocation Approach.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BRNEBMFHRSTERD

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (TEAMFREEN)

(Continued) (&

(b)  New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are (b) BEMGEERERZIETEE
not yet effective (Continued) BIERAMBRESEN (B
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual EEBYBHREERBEIRZE
Framework ETEE B2 HELE
The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers ZEBI BN T ARG E
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial AE3F FHRIRMKETT ZE
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010. — N\ FIHFERENBSIEZRMIE
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, BT EEMHIIRA o ZEE
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer SR BB E R FE3F
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition WAR—IERE BB B gt
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. REI7RBEIANERFTMS » UK
For a levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)- BH RSB Y EREI75E
Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to ERWEEH RS REBESEMM
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to FEREBEEF -HNESL EK
a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition UHEBREREEEY) —RES
date. The amendments also add an explicit statement that IHEHERNNEE  WES
an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets acquired EREE (BEETBRERESR
in a business combination. EE) —R2REFE2HFUETER

XNHEEENEEENRES

PRUsHE B HEREE & o 2 BERT IR
AN—IERRREER BWES g
HEREEH AP BRIEAE

o
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or BEUBREERFIORRE
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its BE S ERE28GEZ 15T IRE
Associate or Joint Venture EHEBMENGHSEREZ

B EEHE R TE
The amendments clarify with situations where there is ZEETRBREERERE A
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor and BN aEtEZBHETEAE
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with ERER - 8RR AREREANKR
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using HBE AR NEGELEETRS
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from B AR H BT EFIWE
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain NEIREES A S R E AU
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to the SETIRE IR IS BB T2
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate ENBHEE T ENERARTE
or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting 1B P HERR o B AR
from the remeasurement of retained interest in any BAE BmABEATDRGE
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint ) NREESZEATFEER
venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or loss rEMEANEMWGEEE
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the ELUIERII I EE NI E AT
new associate or joint venture. HEEPENERARERR

Mo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A BT AR I o

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform (the
“Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to contractual
cash flows in which an entity will not have to derecognise
or adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for
changes required by the Reform, but will instead update
the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting in which
an entity will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting
solely because it makes changes required by the Reform,
if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 16 — COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment exempts lessees from having to consider
individual lease contracts to determine whether rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) pandemic are
lease modifications and allows lessees to account for such
rent concessions as if they were not lease modifications. It
applies to COVID-19-related rent concessions that reduce
lease payments due on or before 30 June 2021. The
amendment does not affect lessors.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

° HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit
a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

° HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability, explaining that only
fees paid or received between the entity and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020
(Continued)

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

° HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the Group'’s
accounting policies and financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technigue equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

- has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance
with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent
reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
the financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the voting
rights. In determining whether de-facto control exists the
Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances,
including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to both the
size and dispersion of other parties who hold voting rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the Company
and other parties who hold voting rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and
Historic patterns in voting attendance.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation
to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred,
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any
proceeds from disposing a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate are recognised on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest of that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Directors that make strategic
decisions.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue for the provision of asset management
advisory services is recognised over time on
time apportionment basis as those services are
provided throughout the contract period at fixed
consideration. Invoices are issued according to the
agreed payment schedule and are usually payable
within 0-5 days.

Revenue for the sale of food additives and sales
of medical, health and hygiene products is
recognised at a point in time, customers obtained
control of the goods when the goods are delivered
to and have been accepted. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices are usually
payable within 0-60 days.

Rental income from property leasing

Revenue from rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B B PR AR I E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. 4ZEE] ﬁ*iﬁﬁz ﬁﬁzgﬁ
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BREEGEER @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHEEK @

Revenue recognition (Continued) WA ESE (4

(iv)  Interest income (v)  FEUA
Interest income, including finance lease interest FMEWA (BIEHEHEE
income, sale-leaseback transaction interest FMEWANEREBFERS
income, loan interest income and bank interest F EW AN EFF] EWA
income, is accrued on a time apportionment basis, B iR1TRIEUWA) T2
by reference to the principal outstanding and at BREERE BEREE
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the e RERT BEMNE
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future BoZMNEAEEMES
cash receipts through the expected life of the RMEENRTETAEER
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount Z AR RITE WA RLIR
on initial recognition. EZEERVRERE

BREVFEZARIRE

v) Dividend income V) B BULA
Dividend income from investments is recognised REREZKREWATHIR
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have A& BURERIE 2 #EFIHE
been established. I BFHEST o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Group are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are not eligible for capitalisation
to qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the profit or loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
and deductible. The Group'’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories. The Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried
at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group accounts for leasehold land building which is
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS
40 and carried at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group's
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to
be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option
if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change
in future lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group'’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group'’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Sale and leaseback transactions

As a buyer-lessor, the Group applies the requirements
of HKFRS 15 to assess whether sale and leaseback
transactions constitutes as sale, upon application of
HKFRS 16. For a transfer that does not satisfy the
requirements as sale, the Group accounts for the transfer
proceeds within the scope of HKFRS 9.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings,
leasehold land and freehold land held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. 4ZEE] ﬂ*iﬁﬁz ﬁﬁzgﬁ
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BREEGEER @

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHEEK @
Property, plant and equipment (Continued) NE -BERRE (&
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on their ME- BB REREUERARE
costs less their residual values on a straight-line basis over FREBERREGENEHMAR
their estimated useful lives as follows: ERFIANITENT -
Right-of-use assets 10 to 50 years FREEE 10E504
Leasehold improvements, 3to 5 years or over HEYEEE . 3E5%FT
furniture and fixtures lease term, REAREE RAEERA
whichever is shorter URsEE
Plant, machinery 5 to 10 years B ~ 123 Kz 5E 104
and equipment Bedi]
Motor vehicles 3 to 8 years B 3E8F
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised Y -mELEREEENTHER
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are NEEAFEFEAZEESTES
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. AR s BF A% ISR o HH
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an EREYE - HEKREER
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as R LR E TSR a A AaRE
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying EERBEZ ZBEECTNER
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss. BREESR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o right-of-use assets; and
o investments in subsidiaries and associates.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is trade receivables without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. Trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirely when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at FVTPL, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for
debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”),
as described above, debt instruments may be designated
at FVTPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at
FVOCI are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables, other finance
lease receivables, loan receivables, and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables and finance lease receivables using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment. For
trade receivables and finance lease receivables relating to
customers with known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For loan receivables and other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs. The 12-months
ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that results from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past
due.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
if any, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy

or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVOCI, for which the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in “FVOCI reserve (recycling)”.

4= &R

IT177 o e |

RE

3.2

1?%%2&@%%
BHEHE @

IE n'H‘E&% (nﬁ)
EHMITA (&
THEERERE (&

EHBEUTERE AEERS
TRHEEFESRE

. BEBALRERMBE
L3

J RE# > MEXI A
%ﬁ #B90H ;

J FEERBEMBER TN
BB IRMEHEENT
B

. B AR SERAETETT
HAth #5840 5 3L

. MR HIRM BN 555
KREBEDSC

REBETFIA R AERESRE
WaE SRS 1R BB RS IR R AR
HEFAEAEFAERITANKRE
B AT EEEEMER
WATERETEBNEF LARE
BRoN BRAGH T REKRENEE
B EME ARSI
MZATEEBEMEEEAS
SRAVEERE (BIBIR) IR Rste

Annual Report 2020
“ETEFR

125



126
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over 2 years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.
For non credit-impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit
or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated
as a financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss, except where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for the gains and
losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including service cost
payables, other payables and accruals and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Valuation of goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group acquired
Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”) and identified a goodwill in the
acquisition. The value in use is determined based on the cash
flow projection for the cash generating units (“CGUs”), discounted
to their present values and requires the use of key assumptions,
including the discount rate, terminal growth rate, budgeted
sales and gross margin, taking into account the financial budget
approved by the directors based on the management’s experience
from the sale of medical, health and hygiene products and also
management’s expectations for the market development. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of
goodwill was HK$25,556,000 and no impairment loss on goodwill
has been recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Details of the calculation of recoverable amount are disclosed in
note 15.

Impairment of financial lease receivables and loan receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of financial lease
receivables and loan receivables based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected credit loss. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of financial lease receivables and loan receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and of forecast general economic conditions. The information
about the ECLs and the Group’s finance lease receivables and
loan receivables are disclosed in notes 18 and 19 respectively. If
the financial condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would be
higher than estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

REVENUE 5.

Revenue represents finance lease interest income generated
from financial leasing and sale-leaseback transaction, service fee
income provided to outsiders, loan interest income from provision
of loan facilities, rental income from leasing out properties, sale of
food additives and sale of medical, health and hygiene products.

WA

WAEREEERERLDEXZEER
REEER B WA~ mINTPRR ARIAR
BEWRA RHERBREEENERH]
BIA -~ HIEYEREE A HE R ®
ANNEI RS S B IR R R B e o

2020 2019
B E—NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FET

Asset management advisory EEBEBHARFBERA
service fee income 4,915 11,063
Finance lease interest income RIEREN B UA 14,190 29,136
Sale-leaseback transaction interest income  E&EIFEZ ST 2 WA 706 13,184
Loan interest income EEGIISICPN 2,239 13,496
Rental income HEUWA 3,800 2,253
Sale of food additives HEBRAME 3,526 2,023
Sale of medical, health and hygiene products #4 € 8& (R 2 R BT & R 36,808 -
66,184 71,155

Annual Report 2020
“ETEFR

133



NOTESTOTHECONSOLHMHTIHHNANCDUAHATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. A @
The disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with REBERLRSHWABREESERES
customers, including asset management advisory service income, RFBUA N HE B mARINE RiHE &
sale of food additives and sale of medical, health and hygiene REREEESR DEOT .

products, are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope of ERVBREENSEISETRERERS
HKFRS 15 ESENT N
2020 2019
ZEIEF IZNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Timing of revenue recognition: WSO T SR BRF S
At point in time RE KR,
Sale of food additives HE B RAINE 3,526 2,023
Sale of medical, health and HEBERREAEEESR
hygiene products 36,808 -
40,334 2,023
Over time R—ERRREA
Asset management advisory service B EEELHIRT 4,915 11,063
Total revenue recognised ThE P SAIFTHES 2 AU A
from contracts with customers 45,249 13,086
Revenue from other sources B E MR WA
Finance lease interest income MEREER EWA 14,190 29,136
Sale-leaseback transaction interest income €& [EIFEF] E U A 706 13,184
Loan interest income ERF B 2,239 13,496
Rental income HEWA 3,800 2,253
20,935 58,069
66,184 71,155
The following table provides information about trade receivables TREHEMKREEFSHINEZER
and contract liabilities from contracts with customers: TREHaEzER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables (note 21) B SRR (f5E21) 2,976 -
Contract liabilities aHaE = 2,563

1 34 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

REVENUE (continued)

The contract liabilities of HK$2,563,000 as at 31 December
2019 were mainly related to the service fee income received in
advance from customers which were recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group,
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the nature of the operations of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating segments are as follows:

Financial leasing

provision of finance lease consulting
services and financing services in the
PRC (“Financial Leasing Segment”)

Investment — investment properties in the PRC and
Hong Kong, investments in securities
and money lending business in Hong
Kong

Trading — sale of medical, health and hygiene
products (“Trading Segment”)

Others — research and development,
manufacturing and sale of food
additives, new food ingredients and
nutritional enhancers in the PRC
(“Food Additives Business”)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. AEEH @

Segment revenue and results DEUA T EE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by UTAAREERR T ERLEZDEED

reportable and operating segments: ZWA BRI DT

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE—EF_FFF+_F=+—HIFE
Financial

leasing Investment Trading Others Total

MEHRE b= g% Hith ast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FERT FET FERT

Revenue WA

External sales HIMNEE 21,649 4,201 36,808 3,526 66,184
Segment (loss)/profit D (E518) /A (233,989) 12,058 (5,494) (17,083) (244,508)
Unallocated other income, FAFCEMUA N Wizm

gains and losses o3 5t 34,553
Corporate expenses PESH (98,288)
Gain on derecognition of a RIEER KB

subsidiary ARz WG 2,742
Other expenses and finance cost  ELAMFE S R FEA A (465)

Impairment loss on interestinan R —KHE AT 2
associate upon reclassification o~ #&% EH D EEARE
assefs classified as held for sale  HEZBERMN

HERE (30,973)
Share of results of associates DEME AT EE (5,664)
Loss before taxation bBRIRAIESE (342,603)

1 36 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

D EPEF @)
SEB U A R4 ()

BE _E—NF _A=1T—HIFE

Financial
leasing Investment Others Total
RERE K& Hith 1at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAET FTET FTAET
Revenue WA
External sales HIMEE 56,393 12,739 2,023 71,155
Segment (loss)/profit D (518B) /EF (45,795) 682 (12,606) (57.719)
Unallocated other income, ROECEMBA W
gains and losses a5 12,000
Corporate expenses rEIH (35,849)
Other expenses Hnfa (582)
Share of result of an associate DE—ZRBEARER 29,389
Loss before taxation PRI Al (52,761)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3.2. Segment results represent the profit earned or loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of certain other income,
certain other gains and losses, impairment loss on interest in an
associate upon reclassification to assets classified as held for sale,
gain on derecognition of a subsidiary, share of results of associates
and corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

MNP EES. 2P EE » FI 2 3RS E DB
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. AEEH @
Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by UTAAREERR T ERLEZDEED
reportable and operating segments: ZEEKRBEDNT
At 31 December 2020 R-E—FFF_H=+1—H
Financial
leasing Investment Trading Others Total
MEHRE b= g% Hith ast

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FER FERT FET FERT

Segment assets NHEE 549,226 238,850 88,483 96,924 973,483
Interests in assaciates i A=UN=1pd Jd 95,111
Unallocated corporate assets ROEZEEE 117,122
Consolidated assets REBE 1,185,716
Segment liabilities war:=CE 534,539 31,741 2,262 624 569,166
Unallocated corporate liabiliies ~ KDEz ¥ EE 41,932
Consolidated liabilities Foaf 611,098

1 38 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FEEN @
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PHEEREE (@)
At 31 December 2019 R ZE—NF+_H=4+—H
Financial
leasing Investment Others Total
RERE K& Hith 1at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FTAET FTET FER
Segment assets NHEE 880,789 138,426 68,626 1,087,841
Interest in an associate e - UN=Ip 3 338,206
Unallocated corporate assets ROEZEEE 120,628
Consolidated assets REEE 1,546,675
Segment liabilities nHaR 631,492 534 720 632,746
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROEEZbEER 52,910
Consolidated liabilities reaf 685,656

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources among segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than an office premise for administrative
purpose, certain other receivables, certain deposits placed
in non-bank financial institutions and certain cash and

cash equivalents; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments other than certain other payables, certain tax
payables, financial liability at FVTPL and deferred tax

liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NHEX @
Other segment information Hith 3 ERE R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE _E_FTFf _H=+—HILFEF
Financial
leasing Investment Trading Others  Consolidated
MEHRE b= g5 Hith )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART FART TART TR TART

Amounts charged (credited) in the st & EDRFITE1E
measure of segment profit or loss i EFE AR

or segment assets: GUNE:ENER
Additions of property, TENE BERHRE

plant and equipment and Yt

investment properties 23 64,133 - 511 64,667
Depreciation of properly, plant ~ #1# \BEKRZREZINE

and equipment 698 - - 3,374 4,072
Write-off of property, ME R R

plant and equipment 11 - - - 11
Change in fair value of equity BATEEBERYR

investments at fair value ZREREZ

through profit or loss NEEEE 7,530 (5,951) - - 1,579
Change in fair value of contingent AR BREMEIE

consideration receivables NEEEE - - 2,498 = 2,498
Interest income from loan FEWER ZF SUWA

receivables (7,782) (401) - - (8,183)
Finance lease interest income ~ FRETRER BUA (14,190) - - - (14,190)
Sale-leaseback transaction interest %[BT 5F WA

income (706) - - - (706)
Interest expenses (included in | 8582

cost of revenue) GINUINI®Y 39,714 - 40 - 39,754
Write-off of inventories FEMH - - 2 417 419
Impairment loss on loan receivables & U & SR E R 18 3,380 - - - 3,380
Impairment loss on property, I ERN

plant and equipment HERE - - - 5,089 5,089
Impairment loss on finance BERERET

lease receivables HERE 102,530 - - - 102,530
Impairment loss on a receivable  E# BRI ZH

from sale-leaseback transaction ~ FEUEURIEES 18 96,896 - - - 96,396
Amounts regularly provided to the EHimEBEERFE

chief operating decision maker ~ 1R{EEXREE

but not included in the measure et &9 EREF T

of segment profit or loss: EB1BNATIE
Income tax (credit)/expense ISR (g%) /B (199) - 168 - 3D

-I 40 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. NHEX @
Other segment information (Continued) HhpEEN (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE —E— N+ A=+—HILFE
Financial
leasing Investment Others Consolidated
MERE LB Hth e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Amounts charged (credited) inthe  WAEtED EEN T
measure of segment profit or HWEEMG GtA) B
loss or segment assets: HE
Additions of property, RENE BERHRE
plant and equipment 13,093 63,976 58,094 135,163
Depreciation of property, ME-BRRREZINE
plant and equipment 103 - 3,827 3930
Change in fair value of equity BATERBERIRZ
investments at fair value R B NTEEE)
through profit or loss (2,558) 7,766 - 5,208
Interest income from loan receivables  EURE T Z FIBUA (10,049) (10,486) - (20,535)
Finance lease interest income HEREMEWA (29,136) - - (29,136)
Sale-leaseback transaction interest £ BT ZF ERA
income (13,184) - - (13,184)
Interest expenses (included in F SR G ABARA)
cost of revenue) 40,289 - - 40,289
Write-off of inventories FEMH - - 833 833
Impairment loss on goodwil BERERE 9,373 - - 9,373
Impairment loss on finance lease MERERNEURESE
receivables 32,578 - - 32,578
Impairment loss on a receivable from  E#&EIAXZH
sale-leaseback transaction FEUGTRERS 5,678 - - 5678
Impairment loss on loan receivables  FEUW EFAERS1E 1,211 - - 1,211
Amounts regularly provided to the EHmFESERARERM
chief operating decision maker BREENHEND
but not included in the measure (&) FEENE |
of segment (profit) or loss:
Income tax credit FIERIESR (1,798) - - (1,798)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the financial leasing segment and
trading segment of both years contributing over 10% of total sales

DERE R @)

FRXEERER

RmEFEREMEBEDHBREZD
BEMRAEERBIHERAIONZERZ

of the Group are as follows: WAL
2020 2019
—EIRFE Z—hnF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Financial leasing segment: MEBEDE -
Customer A ERH 10,939 17,675
Customer B BB N/AFZE ! 17,450
Trading segment: B0 -
Customer C BEER 11,198 N/AZ 33 A
Customer D B2ET 10,837 N/AZ 48 !
Customer E BETX 7,406 N/AZ~ 48 !

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

Geographical information

The Group’s financial leasing and food additives business are
located in the PRC. Trading division is located in Hong Kong.
Investment division comprises of investment properties and
leasing business in the PRC and Hong Kong, while its money
lending and investment in securities businesses are carried out
in Hong Kong. Locations are determined according to principal
place of operating the businesses. Except for a revenue amount
of HK$38,379,000 that was generated in Hong Kong during the
current year (2019: HK$11,926,000), the remaining amount of
HK$27,805,000 (2019: HK$59,229,000) was generated in the
PRC.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Geographical information (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current
assets (note) analysed by the geographical location in which the

assets are located:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

DERE R @)

I E R ()

R A REEPIE-E I E DT Z IR
BEE (5D FREERDT

2020 2019
B E—NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
The PRC A e 217,044 455,570
Hong Kong 58 142,066 109,968
359,110 565,538
Note: ~ Non-current assets excluded finance lease receivables, other financial Misk . IERBEEFCIERESHERKE Zit

instruments and deferred tax assets.

R TARIBEREEE

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HfhkA U= RkE1E
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other income Hthgg A
Interest income from loan receivables R EZ I BUA 5,944 7,039
Interest income from banks and non-bank 2R B $R1T R JEIRTT S RbMALAE
financial institutions ZHBWA 395 3,393
Dividend income R E WA 969 -
Government grants (note) BB () 926 -
Sundry income HEIBUA 11 63
8,245 10,500

Note:

Included in profit or loss is HK$926,000 (2019: Nil) of government grants

M3E

obtained from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-

epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government supporting

the payroll of the Group's employees. Under the ESS, the Group had

to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce

employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of

time. The Group does not have other unfulfilled obligations relating to this

program.

1B BE926,000/8 7T (T —LEF [ ) 5K
BEBREENIEEESE TR
E5t8 (RBLE R - REAEEESRN
TE& - RERMEST B AEEMBERER Z
LHPANTESH BB ERA
R IEEABEBERERELT - AEE
BEHMARMZ R MAET &S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HEA - -BR=ZmkEE @
(Continued)
2020 2019
—BT2F _ITNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other gains and (losses) Hith s K (§518)
Change in fair value in financial assets BATEEBE@RIEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZ AT EEE (2,548) (5,208)
Change in fair value in financial liability BATEZBERIRZ
at fair value through profit or loss THEBEEZ AT EEE) 15,660 11,662
Change in fair value on investment properties ¥ B2 > A F(E & H) 4,091 645
Change in fair value on contingent FARBEBRZ AT EES)
consideration receivables (2,498) -
Write-off of property, plant and equipment  #12 ~ Bk = K2 5% Bl 8H (11) -
Write-off of inventories FE M (419) (833)
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERWE (§518) F4E 17,784 (523)
Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary HRIETER—RWBE AT 2 W=
(note 42) (Mf5¥42) 2,742 -
Others HE - (6,326)
34,801 (5683)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 8. EE -FEITHAEMKE
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS I=F0)
Directors and chief executive emoluments EERTETHAEFM

ENHENEREEREEZTHRABZH
BT

The emolument paid or payable to each of the directors and chief
executives were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-ZE+-RA=1—-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries henefits
and other  Discretionary  Share-based scheme
Fees henefits bonus payments  contributions Total
HER Nigin# R
fig  HtEw BBt Efzfm  sEfS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT TR THRT TR TR
(Note 4)
(Mtz24)
Executive Directors BIES
Mr. Wong Lik Ping ITH¥EE = 6,210 32,733 = 18 38,961
Mr. Lai Ka Fai BERLE - 2,333 24,685 - 18 27,036
Mr. Tao Ke B LE - 1,200 300 - 18 1,518
Mr. Qiao Weibing BEatt - 1,414 100 - 18 1,532
Mr. Ng Tin Shui (note 1) SXRERE (W7 - 201 - - 6 207
Sub-total N - 11,358 57,818 - 78 69,254
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Yip Man Yi (note 3) BEaet (1:3) 120 - - - - 120
Sub-fotal N 120 - - - - 120
Independent non-executive BiFRiTEE
Directors
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE 180 - 100 = = 280
Mr. U Keng Tin REREE 180 - 100 - - 280
Mr. Ho Hin Yip (GEi 180 - 100 - - 280
Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David (nofe 2) ~ Z2EMR 4 (1542) 56 - - - - 56
Sub-fotal N 596 - 300 - - 896
Total st 716 11,358 58,118 - 78 70,270
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and chief executive emoluments (Continued)

8. EF -FETHRAEKE
EHEHM @

EERTBITHABSHM (B

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_Z—NE+_A=+-HLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other ~ Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme
Fees bengfits bonus payments  contributions Total
ek Dy RIEA
ik HitgER| METL  ERzAR BEIs T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL TR TR TR
(Note 4)
(FyzH4)
Executive Directors BIES
Mr. Wong Lk Ping INTRsE - 5,220 1,305 - 18 6,543
Mr. Lai Ka Fai REETE - 1,385 500 - 18 2403
Mr. Tao Ke Bt - 1,200 300 - 18 1518
Mr. Qiao Weibing BRELE - 1,639 1216 - 18 2873
Sub-fotal IhE - 9,944 3321 - 72 13337
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Yip Man Yi (Note 3) Eqae T (1:83) 25 - - - - 2%
Sub-otal Nt 25 - - - - 2
Independent non-executive BiFHTES
Directors
Mr. Goh Choo Hwee RERLE 180 - 100 - - 280
Mr. U Keng Tin REXRE 180 - 100 - - 280
Mr. Ho Hin Yip miTEss 180 - 100 - - 280
Sub-fotal N 540 - 300 - - 840
Total st 565 9944 3621 - 72 14,202

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director's and the
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 8.

EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors and chief executive emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Ng Tin Shui was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 9 September 2020.

2) Mr. Leung Yiu Ming, David was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 9 September 2020.

3) Ms. Yip Man Yi was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 17 October 2019.

4) The discretionary bonus are based on operating appraisal results and basic

salary of each director with reference to the contribution to the Group for
the annual operating results and the individual performance.

Employee emoluments

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included four directors (2019: four directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining one (2019: one) highest paid employee

EFE - FETBRAERE
SHEHM @

EERTBITHASHMN (B
M3E

m RRELETERERNARNNTES 8
TECZENAAHEEN-

@ RBRRSEE R ERE AR IFNTES
“ECRFNANBEEN-

©)] ERIER T ESEATRRFFNTES
B-Z—NF+A+tHEEN-

@) BYETEAL S IRIBEETBRERAZEEZ
BEAHS SRAEEZFERKEXEEL
BERREANRIREE

& %A

FR AEEMLREHEEMARES

TE-NF AREDR) REHIFE
N EX TR CE—NEF 1) I
FERAREFHEZTHAEBHNRSH

who is neither a director nor chief executive of the Company is as BEFAFMEFEANT -
follow:

2020 2019
—EIRFE EAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 960 1,037
Discretionary bonus BIIBAEAL 4,000 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B IKEF 5+ EIHERR 18 18
4,978 1,055
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 8. EF -FETHAERIE
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued) S @
Employee emoluments (Continued) BEFHHN (&
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the WIEARRBEERFEITEAE  EB
directors and chief executive of the Company whose remuneration BN MIEEANESHEEAZN
fell within the following bands is as follow: e
2020 2019
—ETEF —E—hEF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7525,000,000%8 75 1 -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of Fr AEERERDEANESHEET
the directors or chief executive as an inducement to join or upon BB 2 HMEEEBEAE M AZIIA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the KREBBZEBNEABBEE HE
directors waived any emoluments for both years. BEEWEMEFEERZAERRE
9. TAXATION 9. MIE
2020 2019
—ETEF —E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET

Current tax for the year: REEENAITRIA ¢

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBFER 168 -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) FRE 2SR (T ERER) - 1,202

PRC withholding tax FREFENR 19,584 -

19,752 1,202

Overprovision in prior year: BEFEEBEERE

PRC EIT PRI PRGN (35) -
Deferred tax credit for current year REEIRIERIBIK R (5,742) (3,000)
Taxation for the year KEERIE 13,975 (1,798)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

TAXATION (Continued) 9. MIEw
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated AN A ERET] 2 16.5%5T
assessable profit. He
Two-tiered profits tax rate was introduced in 2018 and applies to MR MBH PN — N\FES| A WHE
years of assessment commencing on or after 1 April 2018. Under B \FHNB—Hz &R
the regime, the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable FRFE -RIEZGIE B EERE
profits of qualifying corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and the 2,000,0008 oA 5T FERRTR & 1) 328.25%
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at FREBANFRIE > M8 H82,000,0007 7THY
16.5%. The two tiered profits tax rates regime was applicable to HETFERR T A A8 #216.5% 0 X FANR
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. B ERMAFNEE_Z_TFR
- NE+_RB=+—HILEEER
RAEEME o
EIT is calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits of TEMERENFTELSE ZHWBATZ
subsidiaries operating in the PRC. (et ERINEF 2 26% 518 o
PRC withholding tax represents withholding tax on the estimated FEFENRIEHE — R E A mE
capital gain tax arising from the disposal of interest in an associate. S AT ERIEER 2 FENR o
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before FEBmRZAFERIBHERIEAES
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follow: BEIRWOT :
2020 2019
BT —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax for the year KEERRRAIEE (342,603) (52,761)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate BEAFSRMESE ZRIE
(note) () (76,921) (12,728)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MIRFME A lEZHZ
for tax purpose M 7,494 3,361
Tax effect of income not taxable for MIRTFM S BEFRIMAZ
tax purpose MiEF 2 (5,910) (3,075)
Tax effect on share of result of an associate D #—KEE A EBE T RMBEZE 935 (4,849)
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR RER Z IR IEEIE
not recognised (791) (122)
Tax effect of withholding tax on the KERBE QBRI DEAN 2
distributable profits of the Group's M MBEE
associate (5,578) -
Withholding tax on capital gain on share —XBENBRDEREEL
transfer of an associate BEARIEE T TBNR 19,584 -
Over-provision in prior year BEFEFEBERE (35) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REERRIBERZ N E 75,197 15,115
Income tax expense/(credit) for the year REESHREES (&%) 13,975 (1,798)

Note: The domestic tax rate applicable to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned
is used.

M RAEA

o

REMRBEEE R ZEANR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. ZFERKIE
2020 2019
—EZF —Z-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Auditor’'s remuneration Z BN & 1,600 1,588
Depreciation of property, ME -BEREZEZITE
plant and equipment 909 2,491
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 4,482 2,812
5,391 5,303
Interest expenses (included in cost of MEMZ G AWARA)
revenue) 40,105 40,289
Cost of inventories sold (included in BEEFEENA G AWARA)
cost of revenue) 38,934 3,545
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZFE - 5
Write-off of inventories EFEEimiA 419 833
Short-term lease expenses SHAFR BRI 2,302 3,847
Staff costs: BT
Directors’ and chief executive's EERFETHASFHM
emoluments 70,270 14,202
Other staff costs HEME8 T A
— Salaries and other benefits — ¥ R EMEH 16,896 18,848
— Discretionary bonus —IBTEAL 5,936 904
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIREF)FT B =R
contributions 1,209 1,510
94,311 35,464

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEREREREEEARAR




11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from

11.

BkEHE

BAEAREA ANEBESREREES

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRI TEIRSE -
following data:
2020 2019
—EZ% —E—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAET
Loss E5i8
Loss for the year attributable to the KNBVHEB ANELZAFERIR
owners of the Company (242,933) (34,132)
2020 2019
—EEF —E—hF
'000 '000
TFh& TFB%
(Restate)
(#BRE7)
Number of shares e EE]
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & st E SR EAREIEY
for the purpose of basic loss per share TiBR NI 1,509,530 1,191,920
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ¥ st E SR EEIEY
for the purpose of diluted loss per share TR IR 1,509,530 1,191,920

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 does not assume the exercise of share
options granted by the Company as the exercise price of those
options was higher than the average market price for shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes
of calculating basic and diluted loss per share have been
retrospectively adjusted for the effects of share consolidation
completed on 26 March 2020.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020, nor had any dividend been declared or proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

12.

AEHECT SR T -NFHT
R=+—HIFEZSREEHRRIL
RIRRA A B AR RS R RAT L )
AR SRR ENITEES KRN BT
HhEe

SHEESRER RIS ER R 2 T iE
RIMEFHHEEMN _E_SFE=H
“HARHERZRDEHNEEELHE

o
Bz 2

BHE_Z_ZFE+_"_H=+—HI=F
B i m AN B S BRI Bk
FEREARE RREPRETEES
EHEZRRMERRKRE (CTE2E—hF:

) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

rY
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-BEKRZE
(1)  Reconciliation of carrying amount (1) MREEZHIER
Leasehold Plant,
improvements, machinery
Right-of-use furniture and and Motor
assets fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEME
R KA EY 2
FREEE REE RikfE AE gt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TER THT TART
CosT B
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-hE—FA—H 26,467 o4 6,219 1,550 34,300
Exchange differences ERER (1,672) 0 (1%) (32) (1,901)
Additions hE 43600 7 3,09 - 46,706
Disposals £ - - - (320) (320)
Reassessment of lease EHEAR
liabilities (1,042) - - - (1,042)
Transfer to investment property ~ EREREYE (63976) - - - (63,976)
Acquisition of subsidiary WEEHB AT 86,333 - 2,059 65 88,457
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-hE
1 January 2020 +ZA=1+—-8k
“Z"%E—-A-f 89,710 70 11,181 1,263 102,224
Exchange differences ERER 6,666 1 700 112 7,479
Additions hE - - 534 - 534
Write-off b6 - - (147) - (147)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZ%+ZAH
=+-f 96,376 71 12,268 1,375 110,090
DEPRECIATION AND RERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-h&E—F—H 2183 53 357 1,102 369
Exchange differences ERER 23 - (46) (29) (98)
Charge for the year AEETH 2812 2 2373 116 5,303
Eliminated on disposal HE R - - - (105) (105)
Reassessment of lease EHEAR
liabilities (382) - - - (382)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-hE
1 January 2020 +ZA=1+—-8k
“Z"%E—-A-f 4590 55 2,684 1,084 8413
Exchange differences ERER 646 - 475 100 1221
Charge for the year AEEYH 4,482 2 907 - 5,391
Impairment loss HEEE - - 5,089 - 5,089
Write-off b - - (136) - (136)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZ%E+ZR
=t+-H 9,718 57 9,019 1,184 19,978
CARRYING AMOUNTS IRE(E
At 31 December 2020 RZBZZ%+ZA8
=+-f 86,658 14 3,249 191 90,112
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA
=t+-A 85,120 15 8497 179 93311

1 52 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B B PR AR I E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

[\ = ==
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BER=E @
(Continued)
(2)  Right-of-use assets (2) FRAESEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class ERAE ELER B DI RS
of underlying asset is as follows: ENRREFEZDTAT :
2020 2019
ZEIEF T IZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold land 3T & R 458k 2
and building held for own use, FEERZEEI MKET
carried at the depreciated cost ZHEEREER (5D
(note) 86,658 85,120
Notes:  Ownership interest in leasehold land and building held for e HEEREZEELMERIETZE
own use represented the Group’s land use rights on leasehold BRERIEAERUN S ERT
land and building located in Hong Kong and the PRC. Lump ERFEE T Ay R 8
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these leasehold ForEFBBEREH—ERE
land and building in the PRC and Hong Kong and the lump (TR A P R AR %
sum payments cannot be allocated to the leasehold land and EHELHMRIETF - — 25
buildings portions. Accordingly the whole lump sum payments RN EMRE T M RIEF
are classified as right-of-use assets. EByo [ 2E—RIEREBIT

WEREREREEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME-BEKRSE @
(Continued)
(2)  Right-of-use assets (Continued) (2) FEHAEEE @
The analysis of expense item in relation to leases recognised in BERBmER 2 B ER NG
profit or loss is as follows: SIEENAIT
2020 2019
—EZ “E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Depreciation charge of right- (Z1ERAE EfER 8D 2
of-use assets by class of FREEENTESH
underlying assets
Ownership interest in FEBRZEELIMKRIET
leasehold land and 2B RER
building held for own
use 4,482 2,430
Other property leased for HEUHEANEMYZE
own use - 382
4,482 2,812
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEZFIE = 5
Expenses relating to BREANAEEZRAX
short-term leases 2,302 3,847
(3)  Impairment loss (3) HfEEIE

At 31 December 2020, in view of continuous operating losses
for the Financial Leasing and Food Additives Business, the
management of the Group concluded there were indication of
impairment and conducted impairment assessment to estimate
the recoverable amounts of the right-of-use assets and plant,
machinery and equipment belonging to these businesses on an
individual asset or a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) basis. The
plant, machinery and equipment (“PPE”) belonging to the Food
Additives Business are assessed for impairment based on the
impairment assessment of the CGU. The recoverable amounts
of right-of-use assets (“ROU") of Financial Leasing and Food
Additives Business are estimated individually based on their
estimated fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(3)

Impairment loss (Continued)

PPE

The recoverable amount of PPE as at 31 December 2020,
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation
of the CGU. The calculation uses cash flow projection
based on financial budgets approved by the management
covering a 3 year period. Cash flows beyond the 3 year
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of
3%. The pre-tax discount rate applied is 14.18%. Based
on the result of the assessment, the impairment loss of
HK$5,089,000 was recognise in consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

ROU

The ROU of Financial Leasing and Food Additives
Business has been determined based on the fair value
less cost of disposal using market comparable approach.
Based on the result of the assessment, the fair value less
cost of disposal are higher than the carrying amounts of
HK$12,564,000 and HK$19,112,000 of Financial Leasing
and Food Additives Business as at 31 December 2020
respectively. The management of the Group consider no
impairment loss was recognised for ROU during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEY=E
Movements of carrying amounts presented in the consolidated Wi E B RREY Z IR EEEH
statement of financial position can be summarised as follows: M
2020 2019
—E-gF TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fan  Thn
Carrying amount at beginning of year FYZREE 133,521 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43c) WHE—KRWBAE (HF3E43c) - 70,117
Addition NE 64,133 -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) HE—XWB AR (TEE42) (61,500) -
Transfer from property, plant and HEBERYE BERERE (5E13)
equipment (note 13) - 63,976
Net gain from fair value adjustments N EEB) N FEE 4,091 645
Exchange difference (E R Z=%R 8,086 (1,217)
Carrying amount at end of year FRZEREE 148,331 133,521
The Group's investment properties comprise: KEEREYECE !
2020 2019
—EEHF “E-hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Property in Hong Kong REBZYZE - 67,300
Properties in the PRC iNEIETAY/E 148,331 66,221
Carrying amount at end of the year FRZEEE 148,331 133,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i) On 27 November 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (“S&P agreement”) with a
private company incorporated in the PRC, which was
the then landlord (the “Landlord”), an independent
third party in relation to the acquisition of a parcel of
land and a factory (the “Land and Factory”). Pursuant
to the S&P agreement, the Group purchased the Land
and Factory from the Landlord at a consideration
RMB56,921,000 (approximately HK$64,133,000). As at
31 December 2020, the land use rights on the parcel of
land was located in the PRC for the remaining 40 years
starting from December 2020 thereon. The outstanding
consideration amount of RMB26,260,000 (approximately
HK$31,186,000) was subsequently settled in January
2021 (note 26).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was in the process
of obtaining land use rights certificates in respect of this
investment property. The Directors of the Company were of
the view that the relevant land use rights certificates will be
granted in due course and the absence of land use rights
certificates does not impair the ownership of the relevant
property. On 13 January 2021, the Group obtained the
land use rights certificates.

During the year, there is no fair value measurement of Level 1 and
Level 2.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties located in the
PRC at 31 December 2020 have been arrived at on market value
basis carried out by Sinno Appraisals Limited, an independent
valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of the properties being valued.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties located in
Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December 2019 had been arrived
at on market value basis carried out by Centaline Surveyors
Limited and Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited respectively.
They are independent valuers who hold a recognised and relevant
professional qualification and have recent experience in the
location and category of the properties being valued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balance is provided below:

REYE @

REMEATERFMEBEERTE
STE B RHAAR A THEGERAIRIDT ©

2020 2019

BT —ENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRT TET

Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HA#45 R (5 =R B HEATFE) 133,521 -

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 43c) URBERS B AT (MiFF43c) — 70,117

Addition NE 64,133 -

Disposal of a subsidiary (note 42) HE—XMWB AR (HTEE42) (61,500) -
Transfer from property, plant and EEBEYE -BEARE

equipment (note 13) (MF5£13) = 63,976

Net gain from fair value adjustments N EREN NG FRE 4,091 645

Exchange difference bE R =2 8,086 (1,217)

Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) HARA&SfR (B =R B HEATE) 148,331 133,521
Change in unrealised gains or losses forthe FEERFIIFEET ABm

year included in profit or loss for assets FRREIRW E I EIBES)
held at the end of the year 4,091 645

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their
actual use.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using direct
comparison approach based on the principle of substitution,
where the comparison is made based on market prices of
comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar size,
scale, nature, character and location are analysed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REYIZ @
Valuation Relationship of
Fair value techniques Significant unobservable input
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs unobservable input(s) to fair value
ATE  RERR FAREHAREER
SHEE ATE &5 TEBAYE EXFABREBARE ATEZRG
2020 2019
ZEIZE “TNE
NOTES ~ HK$'000 HK$'000
[z THET FHER
Property in Hong Kong (i) - 67,300  Level 3 Market comparison Premium/(discount) on buildings  The higher the ratio, the
approach market unit rate N/A (2019: higher the fair value,
-26.8% t0 0.2%) and vice versa
REEZNE F3R TIRLLEE NEFTREUEREL 2z HEESATELS
N VRS el R2Z 74
CB-—NE:
—268%%0.2%)
Properties in the PRC (i) 148,331 66,221  Level 3 Market comparison Premium/(discount) on buildings  The higher the ratio, the
approach market unit rate ranging from higher the fair value,
-16% 10 7% (2019: -16% to  and vice versa
7%)
LNEETPAY ES E3M ME LA MEFTREGEREL Y HEERAATEES
BB/ R NTF16%ET%  R2IR
CE-NE-16%E7%)
0] Property in Hong Kong 0] R EBZWME

The fair value of investment property in Hong Kong was
determined using the market approach of comparable
properties in Hong Kong adjusted for quality of the
buildings. The fair value measurement was positively
correlated to quality of the buildings. As at 31 December
2019, it was estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in quality of the buildings
by 5% would have increased/decreased the Group's profit
or loss by HK$3,365,000.

URBEAZREMELTFET
REFREETHEZARE
BZAELBYEZTIHEE
EoATEFERBFREFE
EERFR -R_E—NEF+"8
=t+—H &R AEEMEH
MERAE BT mER MR
5% & N, 2 S B F) 3L
[&5183,365,00078 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. REVIZ @
(i)  Properties in the PRC (i) (IRBPEZYE
The fair value of investment properties in the PRC is URAFREZEEYNERAFET
determined using the market approach of comparable BEFmBEETHEZ(URT
properties in the PRC adjusted for quality of the buildings. HZ BB EZTIZEE
The fair value measurement is positively correlated to TN EF2HEFREEFE
quality of the buildings. As at 31 December 2020, it was FERGR - R-EZTF+_H
estimated that with all other variables held constant, an —+—B e EMEEE
increase/decrease in quality of the buildings by 5% (2019: FAE EFmEEMm RBL5%
5%) would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit or (ZTE—HF :5%) 18N
loss by HK$7,417,000 (2019: HK$3,311,000). DAREEGEH S EE7,417,000
&7t (ZZ—14 [ 3,311,000
JT) ©
15. GOODWILL 15. @&
2020 2019
ZEF “E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Cost 5%
At 1 January n—B—H 103,373 103,373
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43a) WiE—RM B AT (I:E43a) 25,556 -
At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 128,929 103,373
Accumulated impairment losses Rt ERSE
At 1 January ®—HB—H (103,373) (94,000)
Impairment losses recognised in the year — FEAFTFERAYREEE - (9,373)
At 31 December K+—B=+—H (103,373) (103,373)
Carrying value as at 31 December R+—B=+—H0REE 25,556 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) or group of CGUs
in trading segment and financial leasing segment that is expected
to benefit from that business combination. As at 31 December
2020 and 2019, the goodwill arose from the acquisition of CGUs is
as follows:

15.

HBEw

BEEHAHWENBERNWER DR
ERSEFET (REELEET) WA
EEBRAARBENZEBEHONEZ D
BRMEEENMREEEE TN
TETRFERTE-NFT A=
HEWREREEEETAHAEHENT !

2020 2019

—_ v —_= E _j_l_,ﬁi

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Trading segment B5nEs 25,556 -

Financial leasing segment MEREEDE - -

Carrying amount at end of the year FRZEREE 25,556 -

Trading segment B2 08

The Group acquired Tripler Holdings Limited (“Tripler”) in August RERNRZZEZZFN\AWER/IIEE
2020 (the “Acquisition”), which are principally engaged in BREAE (FHI) (WEEE)  ZAF
wholesale, distribution and trading of daily necessities, including TERENSBETHE - DEKESE

personal care, sanitising products and face masks under its
own brand or as OEM for other brands in Hong Kong. The
goodwill generated from the Acquisition was allocated to Tripler.
The Company is required to assess the carrying value of the
goodwill annually or whenever there is an impairment indicator in
accordance with HKAS 36.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of the Tripler in 2020 is
determined by the value-in-use calculation. It was a discounted
cash flow forecast based on a five-year financial budget approved
by the management and a pre-tax discount rate of 14.0%. For the
forecasted revenue over the five year forecast period, there was
a remarkable decline in overall revenue for the first two forecast
years, namely a year-on-year drop of 33% in 2021 and that of
11% in 2022 and followed by a mild growth of approximately 2%
to 7% per annum for the remaining three years. The Directors of
the Group consider the sale of personal hygiene and sanitising
products recorded a descending year on year growth rates from
30% to 2% over the forecast period, while there was a significant
decrease of sale of face masks in the first two years of the forecast
period. Cash flows beyond the five year period were extrapolated at
a growth rate of 2% per annum.

ARm (BEEAEE EFERURE
BB O S FREthmhRRI0EM) o
WHREEEENBHEEDEERIR
BEBGSHERE36T AREASE
FREFERETRETEHENRE
&

NZE2ZE5R)IREEESBMNT
WElsRmAFEREESEEE L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

15.

16.

GOODWILL (continued)

Trading segment (Continued)

The key assumption used in the value-in-use calculation is the
annual growth rate of revenue of Tripler, which is determined
based on the past performance and management's expectation
through market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax
and reflects specific risks relating to Tripler and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change in
any of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate amount
of Tripler to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
segment.

Based on the value-in-use calculation, there was no impairment
loss on goodwill for the year ended 31 December 2020.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

15. B2 @)

BZna8 (&)

AR ERBEFENRRERR AR U
mAFERE HNERNBERERE
EEBEmRERNTERMET FriE
R ARG IR R 2 R EAFR) | [ FERERVAS TE
Rz B R BIBARRR TR TR
HEX -BERERRE  EURFRKRNE
RIEER LB N EEAAR [BIHEER
iRz BRY AT UK [ClABEE

RIEEREBESE B@E_ZT_TF
+TR=t—HLEFERERERERS
He

16. Rt EAT Z

2020 2019

“EEFE E-hNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHET

Unlisted investments at cost B ATEZIELHRE 119,829 305,607
Share of post-acquisition (loss)/profit, MW EER (B8 af

net of dividend receivable (OBRFEUAL 2) (24,702) 39,888
Share of post-acquisition other AMEEREMEEIRA

comprehensive expense (16) (7,289)

95,111 338,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. REIE AT ZHE = @
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, particulars of the associates RN E_EFER_E—NE+_H
are as follows: =+—B > BEATNEBEAT
Nominal
Place of incorporation/ value of Proportion of
registration and operations and registered ownership
Name of associate kind of legal entity Capital voting rights Principal activities
FEMARIL, FE R HMERZ &t/
BERTAE EEMBRARRRES A& ERELER TEEHE
Simagi Finance Company Hong Kong HK$ 107,300,000 7.46%*  Licensed money lender and is engaged in
Limited (“Simagi") &8 107,300,000 75 (2019: Ni)* money lending business
(Note a) 746%  FEEMEALREREES
Simagi Finance Company (CE-—NE B)*
Limited (" SimagiJ)
Rz
Era Bright Limited (“Era Hong Kong HK$ 134,763 1855%*  Licensed money lender and is engaged in
Bright”) (Note b) BB 134,763% 7T (2019: Nil) money lending business
REERATF (RIE) 1855%*  FHEMEATRENEES
(FfizED) CE2-NE D)
Top Insight Holding Limited British Virgin Island (*BVI”) US$ 1,000 3500%  Investment holding whose subsidiaries
(“Top Insight”) (Note ¢) EEBRZEE 1,000%7¢ (2019: Nil) are engaged in investment property
Top Insight Holding Limited ~ (MEBR % EB)) 35.00% holding businesses
(Mop Insight 1) CE2-NEF' D) RBEER HMBATNERENE
(BffzEe) R
Rizhao Lanshan Wansheng Sino-foreign enterprise, the PRC RMB430,000,000 Nl Loading and discharging services, storage
Harbour Company ToNEERE B AR (2019: 25%) services and leasing of terminal
Limited 430,000,0007% z facilities and equipment
(“Rizhao Lanshan”) C2—NE:25%) HHRS EREKREEEERR
(Note d) GBS
HRELEEREE
BREERE

(TBRELL) (i5Ed)

* The Group completed its acquisition of approximately 7.46% shareholding * AERDRNR T IEE—B+NEK
in Simagi and 18.55% shareholding in Era Bright on 24 January 2020 and ZEZTE= B+t HEREESImag4d
17 March 2020 respectively. With the Group’s presence on the boards of 7 46% JHE Ry [ #18 55% A& 1 « AR AN S
directors of Simagi and Era Bright which arose from its contractual right HSimagk B EEGREENRZEEER
to appoint director on these boards and the resultant participation in the BEITEENBESmag K RIBH 75 R a8
financial and operating policies decisions of Simagi and Era Bright, the BERRAENEANNTE EERREEER
Directors consider that the Group could exercise significant influence over GHSimagi RIS E AT EMRALLZE
Simagi and Era Bright and accordingly these investments are accounted for KEERE TR

as associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

16.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(@)

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with Simagi, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to
subscribe approximately 7.46% of the enlarged share
capital of Simagi at consideration of HK$40,000,000.
Having satisfied all the terms and conditions of the
agreement, the acquisition was completed on 24 January
2020. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the share
of loss of Simagi for the year of HK$21,131,000 was
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Era Bright, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, to subscribe approximately
18.55% of the enlarged share capital of Era Bright at
consideration of HK$15,000,000. Having satisfied all the
terms and conditions of the agreement, the acquisition
was completed on 17 March 2020. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the share of loss of Era Bright for
the year of HK$508,000 was recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

On 13 July 2020, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Top Insight, a company incorporated
in BVI with limited liability, to subscribe approximately
35% of the enlarged share capital of Top Insight at
consideration of HK$64,300,000. Having satisfied all the
terms and conditions of the agreement, the acquisition
was completed on 17 July 2020. With a dividend income
receivable of HK$1,246,000, the share of loss of Top
Insight for the year of HK$1,814,000 was recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

16. W Et

(@)

(b)

(©

SNTZER @

RIBE—-hAE+"BA=+H 'K
EEBSimag (—KPNEEEMAR
Y BRAE) 5T sREE R UL
SRHESIMagif B A B AS 47 .46% »
18 740,000,000 7T © ZE AL 177
BB G R INEE
BER_ZE-EF—F =+
B B#E_Z_ZEF+_H
=+—HIFE > D hSimagid 5
EK51821,131,0008 BN Ga
1B R R

RIZBZEF=A+=0 4%
EHRE (—RREBEMA
ZARAT) 5T B LR
BRBEIEARAL1855% K
B87%15,000,00058 7T ZA I EZ
FIERRRIEHE  WEEED
A TETERE-—H+tEHTR
HE_ZEF+A=1+—
HIEEE DhREBAEEER
508,0008 TE R G EBm R

500

N_E_ZF+H+=H K&
EiTop Insight (—RNEBREL
BHESMMIIZBIRAT) 571
SRR - LIEREETop InsightéSiE
K& A#35% » 1B 764,300,000
BT o AR Z T B IR AU IR
B WEEBEEN 225
TtA+tHRM -HEZZZZE
F+ZA=1+—HIEFE B
& SR A %1,246,00058 7T » 91k
Top InsightZA 4 E&5181,814,00078
TTERAREIBm R o



16.

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

16. NS AT ZER @

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 15 May 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the joint venture partner (the
“Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group disposed of
25% out of its 50% equity interest of Rizhao Lanshan, a
joint venture (“JCE”) of the Group, for a consideration of
RMB294 million (equivalent to approximately HK$323
million). On the same date, the Group also entered into
a Call Option Undertaking to grant the Call Option to the
Purchaser, pursuant to which the Purchaser is entitled
to acquire the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao
Lanshan at a consideration of RMB294 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$338 million). Pursuant to the Call
Option Undertaking, the Call Option is exercisable by
the Purchaser at its discretion during the period from 1
January 2020 up to 30 June 2020 (both dates inclusive).
Upon the Completion on 31 August 2018, Rizhao
Lanshan ceased to be a JCE of the Group and then
became an associate of the Group.

On 30 June 2020, the Purchaser exercised the Call
Option, pursuant to which the Purchaser will acquire
the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan
at an exercise price of RMB294 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$322,518,000), The fair value of the
Call Option reduced to approximately zero on that day,
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. A gain on
derecognition in financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss of approximately HK$15,660,000 (2019:
HK$11,662,000) was recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2020.

On the same day, the remaining 25% equity interest in
Rizhao Lanshan of carrying amount of HK$348,321,000
was reclassified from interest in an associate to assets
classified as held for sale and by comparing it with
the then fair value amount of HK$317,348,000, an
impairment loss of HK$30,973,000 (after considering the
relevant cost of disposal of approximately HK$5,170,000)
was recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.

(d)

A TE-N\FER+HRA F&
ERGERrEZEBA (BER))
] BB B AEEHE
FrEREGELE (GERE) H
FRELLIS0%B R FHI25% » LB
AR 8294,000,0007t FEER A
323,000,000%7T) °iREH » A&
B 7R E] R AR AGE AR B 7T
REBERHEIE  RIL > B AR
BHRELEGR 2% 2 ik#E > 1K
E# AR#5294,000,0007T GHER
#9338,000,00077T)  IRIEEDHEER
RGE SRR HE R
TRF-A—AEEE"T
TEAB=1H (BFaEMmA)
HERRBTE - RZT—N\F
NB=+—H5%m%& BR=EL
TERAEENGERXEAI
A AERN—KBERT

RZEZEFEAA=TH E
FE TEREAE BRIt 85
BT TEE A R #5294,000,0007T
(FHE M 49322,518,000% 75) U
B HBRE R T25% 2 IRHE <53
AR A EREH RO EL
SRR BN AR EEREL -
REE_Z_ZF+_"_A=1+—
HIEFE &L ILEREAFES
BEDIEZEHEBBERED
15,660,000 7T (Z&—NF :
11,662,000/870) ERéraiEnm
PFERR 0

ERH RERALUKREER
348,321,000/ 70 2 BR F25%HeHE
R —RBERTD ZERKE
MOESFIFHERE BBt
BRERAT(E317,348,0008 7T
B e Rm RN R ERR
30,973,000/8 7T (A& & FEAERIHE
A A495,170,000787T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d) (Continued)

On 26 August 2020, the Group entered into a separate
share transfer agreement with the Purchaser on disposal
of the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan.
On 23 October 2020, the Group completed the disposal of
the remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan after
fulfillment of all relevant conditions precedent of the sale
and purchase agreement.

Summarised financial information of the associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

/]

REEATIZHEETD @
o @

N_ETEENAZ+B K
SEEESMHEREREAEL
ZERT20% R IEBIR
HEREGZ - N _E_EF+AH
TH=H AEETERNEER
ENFTAESMEERTEREER
PR LLER F25%h% 1 o

BEQRZMBERRE

ERAEREMEATD Y HTENMRE
W

BMERBDDRAEDENZFREM
IEE LN

Simagi Simagi
2020
f— v — ﬂE
HK$'000
FAET
Current assets MENEE 400,732
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,300
Current liabilities mENEE 150,000
Reconciled to the Group's interest in the associate EAZ<EE EAﬂﬁzﬁ’AT%M*ﬁ@E
Gross amount of net assets EEFER 255,032
Group's effective interest KEE Zfﬁﬂﬂ S 7.46%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate REBDNMEEE A EERE 19,025
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial Wi FHERTZREE
statement 19,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. REERBZER @
Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued) BEARZHBEERBE (@&
Simagi (Continued) Simagi (#2)

From
acquisition
date to
31 December
2020
BUYEEBEE
ZEIZE
+=A
=+—H
HK$’000
FAT
Revenue WA 26,312
Loss for the period and total comprehensive BABENRIANEERZ 2%
expense for the period (283,260)
Era Bright RIE
2020
ZEIZE
HK$'000
FAT
Current assets TRENEE 195,218
Current liabilities mENAE 116,691

Reconciled to the Group’s interest in the associate B3 7 £2 B iR B A S AR 5 ¥98R

Gross amount of net assets BEFEMEE 78,527
Group’s effective interest REE 7 BREH=E 18.55%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate KEEBDHBME AT EEFE 14,567
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial R aMBRExZIREE

statement 14,567
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. MEERBZ2 ¥ o
Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued) BEATZMHBEREE (&
Era Bright (Continued) RHE ()
From
acquisition
date to
31 December
2020
=] llﬂlﬂﬁ EI HE
—_ 7 —_= ﬂE
+=A
=+—H
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 4,701
Loss for the period and total comprehensive BABERIANEEmMASZ 2%
expense for the period (2,740)
Top Insight Top Insight
2020
f— v — E
HK$’000
FAET
Current assets MENEE 93,357
Non-current assets ERBEE 179,828
Current liabilities TmENAaE 97,416
Reconciled to the Group's interest in the associate A7 B A B /A B e 25 ¥ B8R
Gross amount of net assets EEFEBEE 175,769
Group's effective interest KEEZ EBRFIE 35%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate REBDNMEEE A EERE 61,519
Carrying amount in the consolidated financial WG FHIRRZREE
statement 61,519
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B B PR AR I E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. MEERTZ2H#EE @
Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued) BEATZHBEREBE (&
Top Insight (Continued) Top Insight (/&)
From
acquisition
date to
31 December
2020
BUEEREE
—EEF
+—AH
=+—H
HK$’000
FET
Revenue A 4,246
Loss for the period and total comprehensive AR AR 2 mFE L 4B %E
expense for the period (4,326)
Dividends received from the associate HARBEWHEABZ IR E
during the period 1,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of associates (Continued)

16.

REZEATIZHER @

BEARNZMBERME (8

Rizhao Lanshan H 8 E L
2019
—E—hEF
HK$'000
FAET
Current assets TMENEE 245,979
Non-current assets ERFEE 1,417,774
Current liabilities mEaE (77,429)
Non-current liabilities JEREIEE (13,378)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: B ENEEEREEUTRIE !
2019
“E—heF
HK$'000
FET
Cash and cash equivalents HWERIREEEY 59,736
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and TmEERE R (FEERNERR KR
other payables and provisions) HAE USRS (56,735)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and FEREI SR EE (R EIEFENBRER
other payables and provisions) B B AT TR B35 ) (13,378)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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16.

Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued)

Rizhao Lanshan (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

HEELL (&)

From

1 January
2020 to

date of
reclassification
to assets
classified as
held for sale

= k=t 223
—RB—HEZE
EWMDES
FEHE
BEZH
2020
ZZTHF
HK$'000
FHT

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 16. REt=ZE A8 2R @

BEATNZMBERBME (8

2019
—ZT-NEF
HK$'000
THET

Revenue

WA 208,565

435,012

Profit for the period/year and total

comprehensive income
for the period/year

AR, A R A AR R
EJET N
71,161

117,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

16.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the associates (Continued)

Rizhao Lanshan (Continued)

The above profit for the period/year includes the following:

16.

REEATIZHEETD @

BEARNZMBERME (8

HERELL (&

LR F R BE U T EIA

From

1 January
2020 to

date of
reclassification
to assets
classified as
held for sale
B_E_FF
—A—BZE
EMSER
FEHE
BEZH
2020
ZEIEF
HK$'000
FHET

2019
ZENF
HK$'000
TAT

Depreciation and amortisation

e R

(20,913)

(45,636)

Interest income

HBUA

128

253

Interest expense

M BRI

(1,357)

(6,316)

Income tax expense

PRISIFE

(23,720)

(41,695)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

7. BATEEBAEMEEK

AFIRRZIRERE

2020 2019
T TE2—hNEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Unlisted investments JELHRE
— Equity securities (measured — A"
at fair value) B AFES) 123,781 bb,617

Note: The above unlisted equity investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in Hong Kong
and the PRC. They were designated as equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. They were measured at fair value in the manner
described in note 35a.

In 2020, the Group acquired an unlisted equity investment
in a private entity established in Hong Kong for a aggregate
consideration of HK$74,340,000 which was stated at fair value.

In 2020, the Group disposed an unlisted equity investment in a
private entity with operations of natural gas supply in the PRC at
cost, and received a dividend income amount of HK$969,000
which recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the investments
are not expected to be realised within one year from the end of the
year.

MizE:  EEGF EHREREEREREERTE
PRILZ AN BEPR 1T 2 JF L IR AR
Fo MR RERFREEERN ZFF L
TRAREREESRATEEBEMS
EWATERZ BRIEIRE - ZFR BT
3GaPft S AN TFESE -

A TECRE AEERBE-KNEE
FRIZBIFANBERERIIF ETHIRARE (2R
FE27) - BER74,3400008 7T

TR E AEEEMA L ER T
BlETTRARMEET R ANEIRIE
EikRARE > I UEAR S YA 969,000
B ZEHERNAEENGEIBaRR
AL

ARBEFRS REBFFEFEE—
FREAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS 18.

RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS

MEHSERKR BWE
F#&

2020 2019

—BI%F —TNEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FHEIT

Finance lease receivables METREEWER 311,745 442,780
Less: Provision for impairment losses JB R E RS IE (143,700) (33,558)
168,045 409,222

Leasing arrangements

Certain of the Group’s machinery and equipment are leased out
under finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. The
average term of finance leases entered into is 5 years (2019: 5

HEZH

FrERZETHBRREDRERENR
Efd -PrEEEEUARESHE PIE]
TZHMERETIEIRRALE CET—H1

years). FHE) o
2020 2019
—ECEF “E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FETT
Non-current finance lease receivables JERNHRRA B TR E FE UK 14,132 69,913
Current finance lease receivables (note) BIEAR B E W (5D 153,913 339,309
168,045 409,222

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, current finance lease receivable amounting to
RMB82,000,000 (equivalent to approximately to HK$97,383,000, relating to a
finance lease lessee under a reorganisation process as a result of the application of a
reorganisation petition being granted against it by a provincial court.

1 74 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

MEHERKR BWE
BF#E w

MEAEET RN

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS
RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (Continued)

18.

Amounts receivable under finance leases

Minimum Present value of

lease payments lease payments

RIEHEENR HEMRZBRE

2020 2019 2020 2019

“EZ%FE S—hE ZEIEE —NE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET FET FHET

Not later than one year RiBiE—F 299,318 421,032 296,900 372,867
Later than one year and BiE—E B BAmE

not later than two years 15,018 58,208 14,845 55,930
Later than two years and HEMmFEEFBBRF

not later than five years - 14,146 - 13,983

314,336 493,386 311,745 442780

Less: unearned finance income & -~ FREREVRRE UL A (2,591) (50,606) = -

311,745 442,780 311,745 442,780

Less: impairment allowance B ORERE (143,700) (33,558) (143,700) (33,558)

168,045 409,222 168,045 409,222

AEEZBREBEBRBRUARB S
B-RZZ-_TFE+-_H=+—H "™

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in
RMB. The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31

December 2020 range from 4.28% to 5.50% (2019: 4.28% to
5.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2020, finance lease receivables amounting to
HK$112,228,000 (2019: HK$308,547,000) were guaranteed by
related parties of customers and/or customers’ deposits.

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements that
needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2020, the finance lease receivables with
carrying amounts of HK$97,383,000 (2019: HK$283,379,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s borrowings.

BB BRFENENF4.28%E5.50%
T—HF [ 428%FE550%) ©

AT TEE+H=1+—H MEM
EREWF112,228 000870 (—E—NF .
308,547,000/87T) HE A Z Bl A KoK
BRZERER

RE|SHAR TEAMAMERE %EEF‘JZ
FAHE LI Z RIERRIEREES
fRe

N TECEZE+_RA=+—H kKA
E#97,383,000& L (ZE—F !
283,379,000/ 7T) Z METHE R EM
BRERAERERZIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS
RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Amounts receivable under finance leases (Continued)

Estimates of fair value of collateral are made during the credit
approval process. These estimates of valuations are made at
the inception of finance lease, and generally not updated except
when the receivable is individually impaired. When a finance lease
receivable is identified as impaired, the corresponding fair value
of collateral of that receivable is updated by reference to market
value such as recent transaction price of the assets.

At the end of the reporting period, with the consent from the
relevant lessees, certain of these assets underlying of the finance

18. MEHERKZ BWE
BT ®

MEAEETRKARR (&

REGBEMERET WMz ATE
PR ET o A F b5t 2 METH I RILAR
EREREL > WEE R EER FRIFFE
Wb LR B BB ER] (F R R - ERE
TH B FE WG R HE ) 2 BB » 2 B UR
MR RIER AT ER2ETHE
B MBEEAIRZER) TUEM-

PORERR - EABRAAE AR > R &R
ENETZSEREECKEMEIRE

leases have been re-pledged to secure borrowings of the Group. AREBERR o
Movements in the provision for impairment loss are as follows: BERBBEBENESNT
Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL
credit impaired credit impaired Total

FEEREZ BEEREZ
FHNTEH FHANTERA

(51l (5] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2019 NIE—HEF
—A—HB4EER - 1,493 1,493
New financial assets (i) e R E>) - 32,578 32,578
Exchange difference ERERR - (513) (513)
Balance at 31 December 2019 AT
and 1 January 2020 +-A=+—BxX
BT
— B —Hm%ERR - 33,558 33,558
New financial assets HEMEE 3,380 - 3,380
Remeasurement of ECL (ii) EHtETEE
EEEEG) - 99,150 99,150
Exchange difference (R Z=RA 183 7,429 7,612
Balance at 31 December 2020 TECEF
+=-B=+—H
BUAEER 3,563 140,137 143,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES/DEPOSITS
RECEIVED FROM CUSTOMERS (Continued)

Amounts receivable under finance leases (Continued)

Note:

(i) It was caused by an impairment allowance newly provided in relation to a

finance lease customer being defaulted during the year.

(ii) It was caused by a worsening credit-impaired receivable from the finance
lease customer being subject to a reorganisation process during the year.

Security deposits received from customers at the end of the
reporting period represent finance lease deposits received from
customers which are repayable by end of the lease period of the
respective finance leases.

Deposits of HK$27,100,000 (2019: HK$24,872,000) have been
received by the Group to secure certain finance lease receivables
and classified into current or non-current liabilities based on the
final lease instalment due date stipulated in the finance lease
agreements. The deposits are non-interest bearing, carried
effective interest rate at 4.75% (2019: 4.75%) per annum. In
addition, the finance lease receivables are secured over the leased
assets, mainly plant and machinery leased, at the end of the
reporting period. The Group is not permitted to sell, or repledge
the collateral of the finance lease receivables without consent from
the lessee in the absence of default by the lessee.

18.

MEAEREKES BWE
BT ®

MEAEETRKARR (&
3T

0] HRENEREBRERPEBOBRMAHE
BORE B PR EL -

(i) HENZREREE A RETEERER
HiEERERUGR B LR

RI|WERR EREFLFREREHIEE
WEFRMBEERE ANERERE
THE SR EIE

AEE B UWIZ$27,100,0008 7T (ZF
—NE 1 2487200087 FAETHE
TAEEWR 2 KT WiIRIERERE R
EPFTEIRR Y RS E D HANREIREE
PEARBVIERBEE ZERES
TEtE R 75% (—Z—N4E 475%)
IBEPREFFRE B o Iboh REREHAR
REHERRGUEEEEFRT £
EAMEEZ RE RS - EABAL
FEONBER T REEABABR A%
ERARHENEMEITRERER UG
P in il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. BIRE R
2020 2019
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
M sE FHT FAET
Carrying amount of loan receivables 1R ER 7B AR
based on maturity dates setout in ~ FEUWNE R Z BREIE :
the loan agreements:
Receivable from a sale-leaseback R—FEANEERIE
transaction due within one year RS W (s
(note) (b) 160,326 151,011
Less: Provision for impairment losses 78 - BB A5 & (108,071) (5,593)
52,255 145418
Other loan receivables HhEWE™R
Within one year —FR
— Loan A —B&A (a) 25,509 25,509
—Loan B — B8 2,500 -
—Loan C =t (¢ 2,500 -
— Trust products — (S5t Em (c) 26,902 74,181
57,411 99,690
More than one year but less —F D EEDRRE
than two years
— Trust products —{EsEE®D () 23,752 26,151
81,163 125,841
Less: B
Provision for impairment losses HEEERE (29,071) (30,896)
52,092 94,945
104,347 240,363
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Within one year —&FR 82,614 214,212
Within a period of more than one year —EN HETBBMEREA
but not exceeding two years 21,733 26,151
104,347 240,363
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note:

As at 31 December 2020, current loan receivable amounting to RMB44,000,000
(equivalent to approximately to HK$52,255,000) was not expected to be settled
within 1 year due to a sale-leaseback transaction lessee under a reorganisation
process.

The Group’s loan receivables included 3 major loans were as
follows:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into a loan agreement with an individual borrower
(the “Borrower”) who is an independent third party. The
loan of HK$30,000,000 is unsecured, interest bearing
at a fixed interest rate of 10% per annum, repayable on
3 February 2017 and guaranteed by another individual
guarantor (the “Guarantor”). The Borrower and the
Guarantor are the directors and substantial shareholders
of a listed company in Hong Kong. On 7 February 2017,
the Group entered into a loan extension agreement with
the Borrower and the Guarantor, pursuant to which half
of the loan receivable was repayable on 5 July 2017 and
the other half was repayable on 29 December 2017.
As at 31 December 2017, the total principal of the loan
of HK$30,000,000, together with any accrued interest,
have been past due but not impaired. In March and July
2018, the Borrower made two partial repayments totaling
HK$4,491,000 of the overdue amount. Since then, no
repayment was received from the Borrower. The directors
assessed that the loan receivable has been past due and
credit impaired based on the default history and amount
HK$25,509,000 has fully been impaired based on lifetime
ECL, and was recognised to profit or loss for the year
ended 2018 and no repayment of principal thereafter.

19.

FERE R @)

M3E

ARXZABAAEAZARR At AHARE
44,000,0007T (FEEHF4952,255,000787T) 2 BNERFELR
BB EN—EREE .

FEEEKER (BE=ZETEEN W
)

@ REEZZ—XRE+ZA=+—
BIEFE AEEHE—2BEL
F=HzBAERA (EFRAL
ST B FiEE © 5%2830,000,00078
TLZ EMAEER BEEFER)
KOst 2 AR 22—t &
BA=HE& THS—LEARE
RA (MERAL TR -ERAR
ERAHEAESE—RLHABRZ
EERFERR-RIZE—tHF
ZRtH AEEHRERAKRE
RASTILERE R B F
HEWEREN _Z—tFtA
HHEER S—FEMAERZ
E—tE+ "B+ HhHEE-
w_E—tF+/A=+—8H"
7S5 48%630,000,00088 52 B
ERME AR EEARERR
BN E—\EFE=ZBKRtA &
AANEH MR E D EIEE AR
#8514,491,000/8 7T Bt #E 8
ERMAUNEIBER - EBREEN
FErsiaRER AR REE
EERE > 25,509,000 TR
FHRNTRAEERBEETERE
TEHSEZZS— \FEZBEmA
B T 2 B R EEARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
entered into a sale-leaseback transaction agreement
with another borrower who is an independent third party.
The sale-leaseback transaction of RMB135,000,000
(approximately HK$160,326,000) were guaranteed by
related parties of the borrower and secured by the leased
assets with interest bearing at a fixed interest rate of 9%
per annum and became default on 8 January 2020. The
directors assessed that the sale-leaseback transaction
has transferred stage from significant increased in credit
risk to credit impaired and an additional impairment loss
based on lifetime ECLs of RMB86,000,000 (approximately
HK$96,896,000) (2019: RMB5,000,000 equivalent
to approximately HK$5,678,000) was recognised in
consolidated profit or loss during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s subsidiary 185 (K
) BMETREAE AT (Ever Grand (Tianjin) Finance
Lease PRC Co., Ltd., “TJ Ever Grand”) provided loan
receivables with total principal amount of RMB42,654,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$50,654,000)
(2019: RMB89,694,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$100,332,000) to certain sizeable corporations in the
PRC through financial institutions in the PRC. Such loan
receivables carried fixed interest rates ranging from 7.1%
t0 9.2% (2019: 6.5% 10 9.2%) per annum with specified
date of maturities in March 2021 to June 2022 (2019:
January 2020 to May 2021).

Except for a loan receivable relating to a trust product at
a principal amount of RMB5,000,000 (or equivalent to
approximately HK$5,720,000) fully impaired by a Group’s
subsidiary It RIBZEEMERERR AT (Beijing
Ever Grand International Finance Lease Co., Ltd., “BJ
Ever Grand”), as at 31 December 2020, management
of the Group assessed that the credit risk of other loan
receivables of the same kind held by TJ Ever Grand has
not significantly increased from initial recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
received interest income of HK$5,944,000 (2019:
HK$7,039,000) and recognised as other income in

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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(b)

REE_E—hFE+B=+—
AIEEE  RERES — (B
BZHERATLERRBIFER
SHE -EROEXZARE
135,000,0007T (49160,326,0007

70) FRERA Z BAE: 75 R LA
BETEFNRI%TEBEZHES
EfFEHF TR _ 2 _ZFF—H
NHEEELG - ERTHERR
RS EREERMARBEL
BAEERERE  THRERR
}J“;EHHW?EHHT:. BEER LGS
BRRREINBRERBARE
86,000,0007T (496,896,000787T)
(CE—h% . AR55,000,000
7T FHE R 45,678 000787T) °

R TETERFE+"RA=+—8"
rEEWNBASRE (KB &
ERERRAE ((R2EE)
ERPEEREERDEL
ETREGERHASEES
AR #842,654,0007t (FHER A
50,654,000/ 7t) (ZZE—NEF :
AN #89,694,0007cHHE KA
100,332,000/ 70) BIFEULE R °

ZEBBEREMENFT7.1%
E9.2% (ZE—NF 1 65%=E

9.2%) HFEINHHAE T —
FZRAEZ__FEXB(CE
—hW&E: ZETEFF—/BEZE
——FhA)-

FRER A3 28 73 A R 15,000,0007T
(FBE 7 495,720,000% 7T) 15
SEESABMNERERBAER
WEARIRIEREEREEE
BIRAT (NER1E5E)) BRUAE
SR EIRF+ R =+—
A aEEEEEN GRRIERE
FANASAEMEBRERNEE
[ELRE B #) 40 FE SDEE I £ K MR 15
e

KRE-SSE+A=t—
Ay G
5,944,000 7T (ZE—NF :
7,089 0007870 Mt & iR P
BB MM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

(d) Loan receivables and allowance for impairment losses:

As at 31 December 2020

}E LI& =] TA
(d) R E TSR E RS 181

RIE-_EF+_-_RA=+—H

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total
128 HEEAE ERE&ERE
R ZEHR ZEHR
B TRBEEHE FEHEESE Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FER TAER TERT
Gross amount of loan B G 42%E
receivables 55,654 - 191,555 247,209
Less: Allowance for B ORERRE R
impairment losses (3,562) - (133,580) (137,142)
Write off of impairment losses 518 &5 1855 - - (5,720) (5,720)
Carrying amount of EWERREE
loan receivables 52,092 - 52,255 104,347
As at 31 December 2019 RIZ—NF+ZA=1+—H
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total
12f8R8 FEERE CEREERE
R ZEHR ZEHR
e FEHEESE BHREESSE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FER TAER TERT
Gross amount of loan e G428
receivables 94,945 151,011 30,896 276,852
Less: allowance for B ORERRE R
impairment losses - (5,593) (30,896) (36,489)
Carrying amount of loan W EMIREE
receivables 94,945 145,418 - 240,363

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BIREF @)
(e)  Movement of allowances for impairment losses on loan @) R ER 2 HEREREEE)
receivables:
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit ECL credit
ECL impaired impaired Total
1288  FEEHRE EBREERE
HEHEE ZEHA ZEHA
e TEHEESE RERGEESSE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTERT FER FHER THERT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ—hE
—RB—B#%eE - - 29,778 29,778
New financial assets (i) MEREE() - 5,678 5,678
Remeasurement of ECL B ERBEESRE - - 1,211 1,211
Exchange difference fERER - (85) (93) (178)
Balance at 31 December R -Z—hE+_H
2019 and 1 January 2020 =+—HE-ZE_ZF
—B— B - 5,593 30,89 36,489
New financial assets HEHEE 3,380 3,380
Transfer of stage (i) Pk B BB R (i) - (5,634) 5,634 -
Remeasurement of ECL (i)  EFrstETEHAEEEHE) - - 96,896 96,396
Bad debt allowance writen R BRES f HiEH R BB L
off and transferred out - - (5,720) (5,720)
Exchange difference EREL 182 41 5,874 6,097
Balance at RZZZTHE+TA
31 December 2020 =+—HWO%EH 3,562 - 133,580 137,142
Note: BEE

(0]

(i)

It was caused by impairment allowance newly provided in relation
to a receivable from sale-leaseback transaction during the year.

During the year, a receivable from sale-leaseback transaction
become defaulted and transferred to credit impaired category
accordingly. As at 31 December 2020, given the customer
was still defaulted and even further subject to a reorganisation
proceeding thereafter, additional impairment allowance was
provided.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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(i)

FREF PR & 12 (B 52 5 FE WO
sHER R BRI

FR EROERZERTREE
ENTRIEEAEERESER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

20.

21.

INVENTORIES 20. 78

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FA&T FHET
Raw materials A 1,729 608
Finished goods SEAEA 17,331 1,529
19,060 2,137

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BRI
2020 2019
—EZEF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables = e 3,127 -
Less: allowance for impairment A BB B (151) -
Trade receivables, net B WG EEE 2,976 -

The credit period granted to customers ranged from O to 60 days.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the allowance for impairment
on trade receivables has been recognised in accordance with the
simplified approach, i.e. lifetime ECLs set out in HKFRS 9.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net), based on
invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RFERNMTFOEORBEEHR

N_EZZFER_T—AE+A
=+—B > ERRRFUREREDRE
LA mER BN E B IRE2ER] 55957
M FERNTEIREEEE

RIS HARIGEZ B ERRUGR (F

BB ZBRECOATINE ¢

2020
—ECE

HK$'000

FAET

2019
—s-nE
HK$'000
T

0-30 days
31-90 days
Over 90 days

0-30H
31-90H
0RMUE

1,853
872
251

2,976

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

22.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

Hth UL ~ = R A

PREPAYMENTS I
2020 2019
—EBIEHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Other receivables, deposit and prepayments EfthfEURR ~ 125 KRB TIE 55,779 29,798

Less: Amount not receivable within one year J& © I3 RENBEY IRz —FERN

shown under non-current assets ENEIE e =] (11,876) (11,186)
43,903 18,612

The following is the breakdown of other receivables, deposits and

PO R EMEWR S B R FAMRIEZ

prepayments: BE4M -
2020 2019
—EZEF —E—-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Prepayments SCINEEE] 8,231 10,068
Deposits (note i) & (5EH) 13,433 12,180
Other receivables (note ii) =gl M) 34,115 7,550
55,779 29,798

Note S

0}

(ii)

Deposits mainly represented an amount of HK$11,876,000 (2019:
HK$11,186,000) paid to a non-bank financial institution which was
backed by a deposit of the same amount received from a customer for
the underlying finance lease arrangements pursuant to the requirement
from the non-bank financial institution. Such deposit has been classified
as a non-current asset as the underlying finance lease has term of over
1 year from the end of the reporting period. The remaining amounts of
deposits represented deposits paid to third parties in the ordinary course of
business.

Amount of HK$26,700,000 paid to a supplier for purchase of health and
hygiene products. Subsequent to the reporting end, the amount was fully
refunded to the Group as the supplier could not make the delivery on the

specified time.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and will be settled
within twelve months after the end of reporting period.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

0]

(ii)

BEFBIESZNFT-RIFRTERIE
12 $%811,876,0008 7T (T — N5 :
11,186,000 #B7m) * IRIEZIERIT RIS
ZRE HEBEESEAERmERE
ZHFIRIMAER B e T %S
Y& RAERIRYETE B HAMR B R & HAR B
B BN EA—EIERBEE R T
e EEN A EEBBREPINFE=
Tz g

SN FHEBAUEEREREEERN
26,700,000H7T ° IR S HAFRE » FAREAE
BREMEERBRZM  MEZRED2H
RETHER-

HAh R A BT - RE RSN RE
HRB+—ERNGESE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B B PR AR I E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HithWEWF - RTENT
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) I @)

Movement of allowances for other receivables and deposits HthEWA RigEREEEs
2020 2019
ZEIEE ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Balance at beginning of year Tz &R 800 800
Impairment loss for the year NEERIEEE - -
Balance at end of year R AERR 800 800
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. MATFEBEBIERTIERZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS ETMEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Listed equity and debt securities: ETRARERES -
—in Hong Kong —RNEE 11,176 4,823
—in the PRC —IHE 56,858 5934
Unlisted fund investments: JELHESKRE
—in the PRC —HAFRE 88,018 14921
156,052 25,678
24. DEPOSITS PLACED WITH NON-BANK 24. FHRRIERITERMEBZ

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, RESTRICTED

Fi -~ RIRGIER1T 7 7L

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH REER|EFEY
EQUIVALENTS
2020 2019
B E—NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Deposits placed with non-bank financial EHRIERITERISIE 2 F
institutions 39,227 90,545
Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIERITIER
— non-current portion —3JERPHEAER > 20,724 19,520
Cash and cash equivalents BEFIREEEY) 132,483 107,033

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

24. DEPOSITS PLACED WITH NON-BANK 24.

FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions are for trading
in securities and interest bearing at prevailing market rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.09% (2019: 0% to 0.35%) per annum.

Restricted bank deposits were pledged to banks to secure bank
borrowings granted to the Group as set out in note 27 and interest
bearing at a prevailing market rates ranging from 0% to 0.38%
(2019: 0.35% to 3%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents included (i) bank balances and cash;
and (i) certain highly liquid investments.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which is
0% to 0.3% (2019: 0% to 0.38%) per annum.

Included in deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions,
restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entity to which they

FEHRMRIERITESRIEIEZ
Fa s ZIREIRITEL
REERREFEY ®

ERRIERITESMEE TR B EE
HEFNRBITHBAERSE  ERE
NF001%E0.09% (ZZT—H4E 1 0%E
0.35%) ©

ZIRBSRITER SRR FIRIT > LEUS
REBRER ZIRITER @HHEE27)
WIZRITHHNRAR  EFRNF0%
F0.38% (ZZ—5F 1 035%E3%) °

REAREEEYBEORITEERRIR
& RliETEEERSE-

R SRBTHIER RS S 7
ENTF0%E03% (ZF—NE  0%E
038%) ©

TR IERITEMIEE 2 F 70 ZIRH)
IRITERURRERFEEFEYEIEU
EREEBRNEEEUINZGESHE
ZRREIE

relate:
2020 2019
—EBIEHF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
RMB AR 1,202 13

1 86 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE

The balance represents the contingent consideration receivable in
relation to the acquisition of Tripler from a third party, the vendor,
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“Acquisition
Agreement”). The amount is classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and measured at fair value.

25.

R EARE

MEREAMB—RE =1 BN REE
Bk (B WA BB
ANEB-RTRDER/B A TEEBIB
@Rz ERMBEL AT EE

2020 2019

—EIEF —E—hEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET FHET

At beginning of year Y] - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43a) WiE—R B B (F5H43a) 5,051 -
Fair value change recognised in profit or loss FA18z5HEsd 2 A B EH) (2,498) -
At end of year RER 2,553 -

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, the vendor guarantees to
the Group that Tripler shall meet certain performance targets (the
“Profit Guarantee”) for the years ending 31 December 2020 and
2021.

If the Profit Guarantee could not be met, the Group shall have
the right to receive the shortfall of the Profit Guarantee of
HK$6,000,000 and HK$6,500,000 for financial years ending 31
December 2020 and 2021 respectively as cash compensation
from the vendor.

REW B B RAEBRER
NBE-S - BER-B_—F+=
A=+—HLEFEREIRERRER
(DEF R ©

2 R R R AR A SR B 75 HE
HETB-BER-F-—F+7H
=+ — B LB BUE E ) BEUER R
5% 7 £86,000,00078 7T 526,500,00078 7T *
{E A RER B I 2 RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

25.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE (Continued)

At the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,051,000 representing the estimated shortfall of the Profit
Guarantee in accordance with the terms of Acquisition Agreement.
The fair value was arrived at based on discounted cash flow of
Tripler's forecast using financial budgets to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits that will flow into
the Group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate of 4.1%. The
valuation was performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$2,553,000, representing the estimated shortfall of the Profit
Guarantee in accordance with the terms of Acquisition Agreement.
The fair value was arrived at based on discounted cash flow of
Tripler's forecast using financial budgets to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits that will flow into
the Group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate of 4.1%. The
valuation was performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

25.

FEY gk AN (E @

RURE R BREIAEBZ AFER
51#95,051,00078 7T » BNR IR IR BB thh s %
Mz AIRER T ER - ARATE
TR [ FBAMBREZ ERETRE

(AUNZBERAEEREREZME
AT ]RA4.1% 2 B IR K LES
ROMA R ER 2 AR REENmZ
RE) MABESH - AEBULSER
BEGEMET-

R_EBE_EF+_RB=+—H Bl
AR BZ A FETEF 42,553,000
70 BRI BB R 1R 2 a A fREE R
st Z - BRARTELRARIIFEA
PHEE ZIREERE (BUEAE

REEREREZBRMEFLIE
A4 1% 2 BIREDEE B RA KR E
B FEHAR R ERN T 2 IRE) Mt &

18U o fE B & AR T AT
7o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SERVICE COST PAYABLES, OTHER
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

26. MEATARTEALAS « Hfth (S
M fE 5t & F

2020 2019

—ERF E-AE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FEIT

Service cost payables FE(I ARFE RS = 1,041
Accruals FESTE R 15,889 14,457
Interest payable ENES) 34,135 6,212
Value-added tax payables FEFTIBETR 418 405
Other payables HERRR 37,841 6,168
Receipt in advance FEWGERIA - 368
88,283 28,651

Note: Amount of HK$31,186,000 owed to the Landlord in respect of the
acquisition of the Land and Factory in Liaoning Province. All amount was
subsequently settled in January 2021 (note 14).

Service cost payables, other payables and accruals principally
comprise amounts outstanding for service costs and ongoing

Costs.

Interest payable represent the unpaid interest expenses for the
borrowings.

The normal credit period of service cost is O — 5 days.

An aged analysis of the Group’s service cost payables at the end
of the reporting period presented based on the invoice dates is as

Mz ARAWEEREGN IR TRmECE
231,186,000 T FREMEBRENR —F
——F—REE (F514) -

PRI BRFE B A~ Hth BT RSt E A
T EOURERB A H RMEEZ IR R
ERA o

FEAF BRI AR NF BFX

AR AR M —RIEEHA0-58 -

REREHRZERARZ2) 2 AEEE
AR A Z BREC DATAOT

follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Over 365 days 365H A £ - 1,041
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

27. BORROWINGS

27. B

2020 2019
—ECEF “E—NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured: BigHE
Bank borrowings (note(i)) R1T1ER (f5EM) 412,394 399,396
Other borrowings (note(i)) Ehfgr (f5E0) 59,380 193,891
471,774 593,287
Unsecured: I
Bank borrowings (noteii)) IR1TER (AEEG)) 1,615 -
473,389 593,287
The borrowings are repayable as follows:* ERZER A THARREE -
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 458,603 523,654
Within a period of more than one year — D B BB M A HAE A
but not exceeding two years 14,786 55,706
Within a period of more than two years MEMU M ER BB R FHARR
but not exceeding five years - 13,927
473,389 593,287
Less: Amounts due within one year B RRBEEY e —FERN
shown under current liabilities B (458,603) (523,654)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilites FIEREIEEY R 18 14,786 69,633
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * EIHRe R U B R SR 2 BERER H

loan agreements.

iR

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.

FEEREREREEEARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (Continted) . B @
Note: PEE
(i) The bank and other borrowings at 31 December 2020 are interest (i) RIE2EF+"_RA=+—H 'iR1TK
bearing at floating rates ranged from 4.28% to 9.00% (2019: 4.28% to HMERRER %Uzﬁ* 8 FFEN
9.00%) per annum, secured by the machinery and equipment leased to F4.28%F9.00% (ZE—NEF  428%F
customers under finance lease, restricted bank deposits and/or finance 9.00%) » UAEBEFAREEERTER
lease receivables of the Group. Approximately HK$174,874,000 (2019: ISR SIRBIRITIER R, SRR
HK$268,893,000) of the borrowings were also guaranteed by a finance BT EFE UG EIE R 0 49174,874,0007 7T
lease customer or shareholders of certain finance lease customers. (TE—H % 1 268,893,000/ 7T) Z &R
HRERERFYETHERESRA ZK
EEER
(ii) The unsecured bank borrowings at 31 December 2020 are interest bearing (i) RIZ2TEFE+"A=+—H  JEIEHR
at fixed rates from 1.54% to 4.92% per annum with a borrowing amount of TERTHRERNZFK] A% ELR2%HIEEF
HK$722,000 guaranteed by a substantial shareholder of the Company. it B BRI E8722,000/8TTHAA BN
—(EEERERIER
Y \ WA
FINANCIAL LIABILITY AT FAIR VALUE 28. BATEEBHEEIIRZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS EHMEE
2020 2019
e A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
At beginning of year REA] 15,660 27,322
Change in fair value recognised PRI NFER 2 A FEEE)
in profit or loss (note 16(d)) (fftzE16(d)) (15,660) (11,662)
At end of year RER = 15,660
As disclosed in note 16(d), the Group entered into a Call RN EEL6(d)PAHEEE » AEEET 008
Option undertaking to grant the Call Option to the Purchaser of AGEURAEESERENER
joint venture of the Group. As at 30 June 2020 the Purchaser BRHRBERAR R 22T F A=+
exercised the Call Option, the fair value of the Call Option using B> BA{TEREER R B A
the Binominal option pricing model was revaluated to zero. A gain EEEANRBRARATEEGAS
on fair value change of approximately HK$15,660,000 (2019: ERFREERRER QT EEEFREL
HK$11,662,000) was recognised in consolidated statement of 15,660,000/ 7T (ZZF—H4F © 11,662,000
profit or loss. BT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. g7
Number Number
of ordinary of ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.01 HK$0.1 Nominal
each each value
Bk =1
EfE0.018TZ EfE0.1E T2
EiEREE EiER#E [ERE]
'000 '000 HK$'000
T T FAT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 RZE—hF—A—H"
and 1 January 2020 “Z-hE
+-A=t-A%
“ETFF-A—H 40,000,000 - 400,000
Share consalidation (note b) R Ef (fizth) (40,000,000) 4,000,000 -
At 31 December 2020 RIE_THFE
+ZA=+—H - 4,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRME
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 RZE—hnFE—A—H"
and 1 January 2020 “Z-NET+ZR
=t+—Hk
“ETFF-A—H 11,919,198 - 119,192
Shares issued upon completion of R ECE e B TR T
share placement (note a) L GGER) 2,383,830 - 23838
Share consalidation (note b) W adt (i) (14,303,028) 1,430,303 -
Issued of shares upon acquisition WE—RIEAREN
of a subsidiary (note c) BETRM () - 257,000 25,700
At 31 December 2020 s
+-B=+—H - 1,687,303 168,730
(a) Pursuant to the placing agreement on 30 December @) RER-_Z—AFE+"A=1+

2019, the Company has conditionally agreed to place,
through placing agents, up to 2,383,830,000 new shares
to not less than 6 placees at the placing price HK$0.014
per share. The placing of entire number of new shares was
completed on 22 January 2020.

(b) With effect from 26 March 2020, every ten (10) issued (b)
and unissued shares of the Company of HKO.01 each
was consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of the
Company of HK$0.1 each (the “Share Consolidation”).
Further details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the
announcements dated 14 February 2020 and 24 March
2020 and circular of the Company dated 4 March 2020.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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AMEkEwNZ 228 EE K
HhrRERBRERERLER
FRMKRMD0.014BTEERS
2,383,830,0008& & 15 F ALt
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B cRIDEHRE—TFHEED
MENR AN HAZZS 2 F
At AR_E_EFE=AH
“HHHZ ASERBBEAETE T
TEZHIUHZEK o



29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 29. IB& @)

(c) On 21 August 2020, 257,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each (© W_E_EFEFENB_-_+—0H">
in the capital of the Company were issued and allotted RABRAFEKEEC. BT
to the vendor under the acquisition. 108,000,000 shares BY257,000,0008% f% 17 E 1R & UL
of the total were subjected to the escrow arrangement in BEEETREETFEH -Hi
accordance with the profit guarantee requirement of the 108,000,0008 D IR I U BB e
acquisition agreement (note 43(a)). These shares rank pari ZRMREBZIREZ LB ZHEFT
passu in all respect with other shares in issue. 2R (I5E43(a)) - ZERRAD A

HUB & TR =B REMAL

DEFERRED TAX 30. IEIEIRIH

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities T AREBPRAREE RGBT FERE

recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during the 2 EFERLERIE EE) AtkEER-

current and prior years.
Imputed

interest on Undistributed

deposits profits of

received from subsidiaries,
customers  and an associate Tax losses Total

MBAR

R—RHEE

BEkEE#HE RAZ
ZIEEHE KR ER RIBEE Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FTAT FAT TET

At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—FB—H 1,659 6,372 - 8,031

Exchange differences EREE (26) - 43 17

Credit profit or loss (note 9) EmEtA (1159) (161) - (2,839) (3,000)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—-h&F+-B=+—H 1,472 6,372 (2,796) 5,048

Exchange differences ERERE 81 - 255 336

Credit to profit or loss (note 9) REzAA (1:9) (164) (5,578) - (5,742)

At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZEF+-B=+—H 1,389 794 (2,541) (358)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

30.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$597,659,000 (2019:
HK$281,724,000) available for offset against future profit. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams of those subsidiaries. Except for an amount
of HK$282,967,000 (2019: HK$24,476,000) which can be
carried forward for 5 years, the remaining unused tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC group
entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Withholding tax has been
fully provided at 5% (2019: 5%) on the distributable profits, if
any, of the Group’s PRC group entities and included in deferred
taxation.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s new share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 29 July 2016 for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees (the “Grantees”). Under the Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

At 31 December 2020, the number of shares after the share
consolidated on ten to one basis on 26 March 2020 in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Scheme was 1,983,333 (2019: 19,833,334), representing
0.12% (2019: 0.17%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any one
year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options are divided into
3 tranches, namely Tranch 1, Tranch 2 and Tranch 3, and are
exercisable, subject to the fulfilment of vesting conditions which,
among others, includes the achieving of specific annual financial
performance target of a subsidiary of the Company for each of
the year ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 for Tranch
1, Tranch 2 and Tranch 3 respectively, that whether achieved or
not would be confirmed around the time in the first quarter of
the following year then vest, to the fifth anniversary of the date
of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

31.

(Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the Company’s
share options during the year ended 31 December 2020:

Number of share options outstanding

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31.

U ABRZARRZS

(1)

TREBERANTBE_ZE_EF+_4
=t+—HIEFEEZBREEEER

Number of share options outstanding

at 1 January 2020 Adjustment (note) Lapsed during the year at 31 December 2020
RIF-FE-A-RAMFGEZ RIBZREFZAZ+-AMETEZ

Name of fRiEHE RO FRBEH [ b
participant Tanchl ~ Tanch2  Tranch3 Totl  Tanchl  Tanch2  Tranch3 Total  Tanchl  Tanch2  Tranch3 Total  Tanchl  Tanch2  Tranch3 Total
SHERD -4 ot =4 5t -1 B EE a5t - ot =1 st -4 Bh =i 5t
Executive Directors
#Ez
Qiao Weibing 333333 - - 333333 (3,000,000 - - (3000000 - - - - 333333 - - 33333
BEg
Lai Ka Fai 1333333 - - 133333 (1,200,000 - - (1200000 - - - - 133333 - - 133333
f i
Tao ke 1,000,000 - - 1000000 (900,000) - - (900000 - - - - 100000 - - 100,000
)
Independent non-executive

Directors
BIFHTES
Goh Chao Hwee 666,667 - - 666,067 (600,000) - - (600000) - - - - 66,667 - - 66,667
RER
Ho Hin Yip 666,667 - - 066,667 (600,000) - - (600000) - - - - 66,667 - - 66,667
{20
U Keng Tin 666,667 - - 666,667 (600,000) - - (600000) - - - - 66,667 - - 66,667
RER
Employees
&8
Other partcipants 12,166,667 - - 12166667 (10950,001) - - (10950001) - - - - 1216666 - - 120666
RtsaE

198333% - - 1983333 (17850,00) - - (17850001) - - - - 198333 - - 1983333

Exercisable at the end of the 1983333 - - 198333

reporting period
REEERTFIE
Note: BEE
As a result of the share consolidation which was effective on 26 March 2020, HBRRAEHE S -SFE=A —+/NAlEN
the exercise price per share and number of outstanding share option granted on WERKRMITEEBRNZZ2—"F+ZA/N\BEY

8 December 2016 were adjusted from HK$0.12 to HK1.20 and 19,833,334 to
1,983,333 respectively.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 31.

(Continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the Company’s
share options during the year ended 31 December 2019:

Name of
participant
SHEEND

Tranch 1
-4

Nurber of share options outstanding
at 1 January 2019
RZE-ME-A-RiHRTEL
ERigHe
Tranch 2 Tranch 3

ot EE

Total
&gt

Tranch 1
-4

Lapsed during the year

ERBRY

Tranch 2
)

Tranch 3
EE

URGB/BERZARR S

)

TEREBARIBE_Z—NE+A
=t+—HIEFEZEREZSIER

Number of share options outstanding
at 31 December 2019

RIE-AE+ZAZ+-BHAfEZ

Total Tranch 1
5t g4

byl
Tranch 2 Tranch 3 Total
i EE &5t

Executive Directors

#178%
Qa0 Weibing
BEa
LaiKa Fai
pE

Taoke
o)

Independent non-executive Directors

BijETES

(Goh Choo Hivee
SER

Ho Hin Yip
Gl

UKengTin
REX

Employees
&8

Wang Liang
B

Other participants
EhBEE

3333333

1333333

1,000,000

666,667

666,067

666,667

3333333

18,833332

- 3333334

- 1333334

- 1,000,000

- 666,006

- 666,666

- 666,606

- 3333334

- 1883334

6,606,667

2,666,667

2,000,000

1333333

1333333

1333333

6,606,667

37,666,666

(3333333)

(6,666,665)

(3333334)

(1333334)

(1,000,000

(666,666)

(666,666)

(666,666)

(3333334)

(18833334)

(3333.334) 3333333

(1333,334) 1333383

(1,000,000) 1,000,000

(666,666) 666,667

(666,666) 666,667

(666,666) 666,667

(6,666,667) -

(25499999) 12166667

- - 3333333

- - 1333333

- - 1,000,000

- - 666,667

- - 666,067

- - 666,667

- - 12166667

29833332

- 298834

59,666,666

(99%9.9%8)

(29,833,334)

(39833332 19833334

- - 19833334

Exercisable at the end of
the reporting period
RESERAFTE

19833334

- - 19833334

Annual Report 2020
TECEFER

197



198

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT 32.

Operating leases — lessor

The Group’s investment properties are leased to a number of
tenants for two to three years (2019: two to three years).

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating

leases are as follows:

RSB A

RERE-HLHEA

o

FEBZREMERME=F CE—Ah
F ME=D VEETETER-

TRIBEHEERER 2 RERWAET

2020 2019
ZEBIER IZNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TFAET
Within one year —FRN 6,088 4,762
In the second to fifth year MERE 7,948 4,840
14,036 9,602
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BEAEKIE
2020 2019
—BIRE EBhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRI GE I EIRE
acquisition of property, plant and BEME-BER
equipment contracted for but not provided & 1% 8% > B AR
in the consolidated financial statements 73 124

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The operating subsidiaries in Hong Kong joined the mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions at 5% of the relevant payroll of the employees to the
MPF Scheme, capped at HK$1,500 per employee per month. The
obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme is to make
the required contribution under the MPF Scheme. The retirement
benefits cost charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent contributions paid and payable to the MPF Scheme by
the Group.

The PRC employees of each subsidiary in the PRC are members
of the pension scheme operated by the PRC local government.
The subsidiary is required to contribute Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Scheme 16% (2019: 16% — 19%)
of the relevant payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with respect
to the pension scheme is the required contributions under the
pension scheme.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions of approximately HK$1,287,000 (2019:
HK$1,582,000).

34.

RREFETE

FEENEBEEZNBRRRMES
BEE2HEBFIMRBEE (BEE
stEl) BB BN REARBME AR
EEtEIFROI BB AREEEER
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NEETAEE WEAERZEED
FFTA - RIFBTEE 8 2 RP) BE
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Ko
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. EfiTH
Capital risk management BXEGERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group REFEBREEA UBREAEEZE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the B riFELE ) TEBRB(CEERE
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and AR ARESRRERKOHR AEE
equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of BEAEEESER (BERITREME
debts, which include the bank and other borrowings and equity N AN BEE NELED (BIEE
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share TRABERRET) - EEEEB
capital, reserves and accumulated losses. The management EBERR AR EREREABRZ R
reviews the capital structure by considering the cost of capital frmBRE S - Bt AEER
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In view of this, BRI SIS ERNECRIREE
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new M AR & A HE o N EERE
share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption NEEE 2 BRI M A o
of existing debt. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
throughout the year.
Categories of financial instruments ERMITAZEER
2020 2019
—ECEF “E—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEIH AT EC EREE 516,637 883,321
Equity investments at fair value through BN ESHBEMEEBASERS
other comprehensive income R E 123,781 55,517
Financial assets at fair value BATESBRIERIIR EMEE
through profit or loss 156,052 25,678
Financial liabilities EHaE
Amortised cost 52N 588,354 646,037
Fair value through profit or loss BATESBEETYER - 15,660

200 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments at FVOCI, financial assets at FVTPL, financial
assets at amortised cost (including trade receivables, finance
lease receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, deposits placed with non-bank
financial institutions), financial liabilities at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at amortised cost (including service cost payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings and deposits received from
customers). Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to its loan receivables.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group is exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings,
finance lease receivables, all deposits and balances with non-bank
financial institutions and banks.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on market
interest rate and will consider hedging changes in market interest
rates should the need arise. A 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis
points) change represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The Group'’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of People’s Bank of China Rate arising from the
Group’s variable interest rate bank borrowings and finance lease
receivables.

35.
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Cioy

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to future
cash flow risk on certain variable-rate deposits and balances with
non-bank financial institutions and banks as a result of the change
of market interest rate is insignificant and thus those variable-rate
deposits and balances with non-bank financial institutions and
banks are not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the relevant financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of borrowings,
sale-leaseback transaction and finance lease receivables had
been 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would have increased/
decreased by HK$10,000 (2019: post-tax loss would have
decreased/increased by HK$4,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate
borrowings, sale-leaseback transaction and finance lease
receivables.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities.
Therefore the management considers that the Group was not
exposed to significant currency risk.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in listed
equity and debt securities and unlisted fund investments. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments listed in The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Shanghai Stock Exchange and
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In addition, the Group has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to price risk of listed equity and debt securities and
unlisted fund investment at the reporting date. The analysis is
based on the assumption that the relevant index had changed by
10% with all other variables held constant and all the listed equity
and debt securities move according to the historical correlation
with the index. If the prices of the respective instruments had been
10% higher/lower, and held other variables constant, the impacts
to the post-tax loss for the year are as follow:

35. AT H @
MERREEEEREE (@
H @S ARG (4
BRI

DU E D T IRIEIR S BRI LT AR
FRAEFHEFURIFLHEESREER
EEMERE - D ENEREHREES)
10%MFr A BB SR A& LURFTA
ErRFREFEFREATRIEHZ
AR ES) 2 R miFL o AR TR
BOBAEIB AN B 10% » T E M 8RS
T RIFARIREBBREZENT ¢

2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET

Listed equity and debt securities LA R EFHES
Decrease by 10% T D10% 5,197 1,522
Increase by 10% #BH010% (5,197) (1,522)

Unlisted fund investment ELHEERE

Decrease by 10% T D10% 6,601 445
Increase by 10% ##1010% (6,601) (445)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
loan receivables, other receivables and deposits, finance lease
receivables, deposits placed with non-bank financial institutions,
restricted bank deposits, and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

For finance lease receivables and receivables from sale-leaseback
transactions, the Group has closely monitored the recoverability
and ensured adequate collaterals are received from these
customers. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

For loan receivables (except for receivables from sales-leaseback
transactions), the Group has closely monitored the recoverability of
loan receivables from the loan borrowers, including but not limited
to timely review loan borrower’'s financial performance, follow-
up action if become default, etc. In this regards, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group'’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group measures impairment loss of trade receivables based
on HKFRS 9 simplified approach at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly.
The Group has establish a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit losses experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

The Group measures loss allowance for finance lease receivables
and trade receivables based on lifetime ECLs. For other financial
assets receivables, the Group assessed the loss allowance for
receivables that are not credit-impaired collectively based on
12 months expected credit loss and lifetime ECL and assessed
receivables that are credit-impaired individually based on lifetime
expected credit loss.

35.

ERITH @
HEAREEEEREE (&
EERE (&

FRAEWE ™R (RE&EREIES 7 EURIN
5 AEEERYERERERAN
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EHRUREREEEEEER BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

Cioy

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables and deposit (other than deposit at bank) is
classified as financial asset at amortised cost. For other receivables
and deposit, the management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposit based on historical
settlement records and past experience. For the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables and deposit were insignificant and thus no additional
loss allowance was recognised.

The Group’s bank balances and deposits are deposited with banks
and non-bank financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC
and the Group has limited the exposure to any single financial
institution. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks and non-bank financial institution with
good credit-rating.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 58% and 100% (2019: 46% and 100%) of the
aggregate amount of finance lease receivables are due from
the Group's largest and the five largest customers respectively,
which are mainly state owned enterprises or sizeable private
owned enterprises in the PRC. The management exercises
due care in granting credit and checking the background of
these counterparties on a regular basis and closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the customers. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group'’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories that should be read in conjunction with
note 3.2 regarding the accounting policies of impairment loss on

financial assets:

Internal credit rating

REEETR

Description

Hit

35.

ERITH @

MHERREERRREE (&

FEmE (&

AEBERABEE AR RTEEE
DUT 48R BB RS RE ERERR
Tt BERAOMIEE3.2— (BT AE

Finance lease and
trade receivables

REHERE R BN

Other financial assets

Hfth&MEE

Stage 1

Stage 2

FMR

Stage 3
B

Written off

62

The counterparty has a low risk of default and does not
have any past-due amounts, or debtor frequently
repays after due dates but usually settle after due date

HFANEORRETEETMRSETE REFAL
BRIAERERERENIBERER

There have been significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition through information developed
internally or external resources

BEBEHENTRIMSERNERA S EILUR
EERRTEEEMIEN

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired
BHEBTEEAGRAE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

BREENMEEADRREYERE AEBIES
LU BRI

Lifetime ECL - not credit
impaired

EHNEAREERE-ER
EinfE

Lifetime ECL - not credit
impaired

FHRNEREERE-RE
EhE

Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

FHRNEREERE-EER
AE

Amounts is written-off

TOREITHIEE

12 month ECL

12ERBHEEER

Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired

FRNEREERE-RBEE
HE

Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

FHRNEREEFE-EEN
&

Amounts is written-off

TOREITHIEA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. ERIT A @
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HBHERKRETEREREE &)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRE (&)
The following table provide information about the Group’s T XIEHRE FIAEE N EE R
exposure to credit risk and ECLSs for trade receivables according to W RIR#E#57 H B B Z E W= B9 78 A
their past due dates: EEEIREN
As at 31 December 2020 RIZZEF+Z"HA=+—8
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TRHAESIE R IREAAE E5ia1E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHEIT TA7T
Neither past due nor impaired AT ER(E 457 2,867 131
Past due less than 30 days A ER/ D308 6.58 152 10
Past due for 30 days or more but  #IHA30H g LA _E1B/DFR
less than 90 days 90H 7.95 88 7
Past due for 91 days or more but  #1HA91 Hal L _E1B/DFd
les than 270 days 270H 15.00 20 3
As 31 December 2020 N_ETZF+H
=+—H 3,127 151

208 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s policy, which is
mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effect, and year-end staging
classification. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets.

35. TR TH ®
MERAKREIEEERBE (B
EERE (&

BRA SR R R FAE T B

PRITENAREERNETHERK
SANEERR  HEZENEAEH (B
FEEMtE R AT TEE A A E R ANE
SHBER NERS) MEERER D P
2R THEENRAERE

As at 31 December 2020
RZIZ2ZZTF+-HA=+-H
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

12 months not credit credit Simplified

ECL impaired impaired approach Total

H=EREZz CBEEREZ

1288 FHRTER  FHRTER
EHEE5E 5=t ZE5E k{7 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TERT
Contingent consideration receivables ~ FEUREIARE 2,553 - - - 2,553
Finance lease receivables BETRERER - = = 311,745 311,745
Loan receivables U ER 55,654 - 185,835 = 241,489
Trade receivables BHERT - - - 3,127 3,127
Other receivables and deposits HitEbE kg e 46,282 = = = 46,282
Restricted bank deposits RIRFIRITER 20,724 - - = 20,724

Deposit placed with non-bank financial R JESRITRRIIE 2 Fan
institutions 39,227 - - - 39,227
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEZEY 132,483 - - - 132,483
296,923 - 185,835 314,872 797,630
As at 31 December 2019
RZE-hE+ZA=1—H
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
12 months not credit credit Simplified

ECL impaired impaired approach Total

HEERHEZ CEEREZ

12(88 FNTEE  FEANTER
FHEERE EE5E FEBE ol st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET TET
Finance lease receivables RIETEREIS - - - 442,780 442,780
Loan receivables FEER 94,945 151,011 30,896 - 276,852
Other receivables and deposits HitEm ke 19,730 - - - 19,730
Restricted bank deposits ZIRGIIRITER 19,520 - - - 19,520

Deposit placed with non-bank financial ~ ZAURIESRITR RIS Y 7228

institutions 90,545 - - - 90,545
Cash and cash equivalents ReRESEN 107,033 - - - 107,033
331,773 151,011 30,896 442,780 956,460
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECLs according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate models and
a large number of assumptions in its expected measurement of
credit losses. These model and assumptions related to the future
macroeconomic conditions and borrower’s creditworthiness (e.g.,
the likelihood of default by lessees/customers and corresponding
losses). The Group has adopted judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in order to measure ECLs according to the
requirements of accounting standard such as criteria for judging
significant increases in credit risk, definition of credit-impaired
financial asset, parameters for measuring ECLs and forward-
looking information.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for finance lease receivables,
trade receivables and loan receivables as at 31 December 2020

and 2019:

ERTE®
MEEREEEEREE (B
EEmER (8

BAERR TG ()

AERERBABEENETRERES
s TN EEREEEENEE
PHEAEERAKBEZRR -ZFEN
RARR BRI RENEEANR R ERAB
BfEE BIATAANELN, &R RIAEEE
BYBJRENE) 1ERA - AEBERB G 52
BYRRTE (0¥ = & R R AR I8 NI
EFEFRTMEENT R STEEH
EEBEN2HRAEIEER) > nH
B~ Rer M (b Et R st ETRANE B8

TREHEMAERNR S -TFR_
T-NEFE+ZA=t+—HuRMEEEE
R ~ B8 5 B WAURR R B W ok P T B B
EERBRIAREEEEENER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Written-off
F—R B Bk st HsH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2020 ZEZZE+ZRA=+—H
Finance lease receivables RETRERKR
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FEEREZ
FHIRTEIE AR
Expected loss rate AR EE 4.8% = - -
Provision s 3,563 - - 3,563 -
Collectively assessed gross receivable iz asHERIEAEEE 74,225 - - 74,225 -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired EBiEEREZ
FHIRTEIE AR
Expected loss rate AR EE - - 59.00% -
Provision s - = 140,137 140,137 =
Individually assessed gross receivable BERFHERIRE YRR - - 237,520 237,520 =
Loan receivables FEWER
12-month ECL 2B FERE ER51E
Expected loss rate AR EE 6.40% = - -
Provision s 3,562 = = 3,562 =
Collectively assessed gross receivable iz BRI AEEE 55,654 - - 55,654 -
Lifetime ECL credit impaired EBiEEREZ
FHIRTEIE AR
Expected loss rate AR EE - - 71.88% 100%
Provision B - - 133,580 133,580 5,720
Individually assessed gross receivable BERFHERIRE YRR - - 185,835 185,835 5,720
Trade receivables B S FEeR
Lifetime ECL - not credit impaired FHRTEHREEEE
—RIEERE
Expected loss rate TEHARSIEE 4.67% 7.95% 15.00% -
Provision it 141 7 3 151 -
Collectively assessed gross receivable E(ERIFHMEBFE LR e %R 3,019 88 20 3,127 =

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

. EMT R @
HERGEEEERBE (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

SEmE (&)

RABEERFAEER (B)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E Rt EH ) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET
31 December 2019 —Z-AFE+ZA=+-8H
Finance lease receivables RERERWRR
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FFEERBEZERNEREERE
Expected loss rate AR 0% - -
Provision g - - - -
Collectively assessed gross receivable M A UG AE AR 219,060 _ _ 219,060
Lifetime ECL credit impaired EBiEEREZFHRNEREERE
Expect loss rate AR EE - - 15.00%
Provision s - - 33,558 33,558
Individually assessed gross receivable AR S BRI PE G 4R %E - - 223,720 223,720
Loan receivables FEER
12-month ECL 12{BRFEMiEEAS18
Expected loss rate TEHARSIEE 0% - -
Provision b - - - -
Collectively assessed gross receivable b S THMER U 4B g 94,945 - - 94,945
Lifetime ECL not credit impaired FEEREZEHNTERESSE
Expected loss rate TEHESEE - 3.70% -
Provision B - 5,593 - 5,593
Individually assessed gross receivable {ER LRI AR %R - 151,011 - 151,011
Lifetime ECL credit impaired EBiEEREZFBREREESE
Expected loss rate TEHARS IR - - 100%
Provision Bt - - 30,896 30,896
Individually assessed gross receivable BB LRI AR %R - - 30,896 30,896
Liquidity risk REELERE

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

The management considers that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the foreseeable
future, including the repayment schedule of bank borrowings as
discussed above and the short-term liabilities which are required
to be repaid within three months from the end of the reporting
period. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.

EEERSESARE  FEEETER
HREEBREATEN—EXKTFHNERE
RIBEEEY) LUBEREBREER
RESTMNENINFE -EEEERE
BRI R HERET BrRddss

EE BRI AE RN AR R ARRAIARZRER
@mgﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ%%@ﬂ
ECPRI) RABRERFRE=EANE
BZpEaf%, Eﬂgw%mﬁﬁﬁ
EBRBER  c~EBEBHEERRAKR
BERRETRERHEHEERERE
HBEREFTEZFEMEERPDES
BB o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. ERITH @
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HMERRTEREREE (&
Liquidity risk (Continued) TBE R (&)
Weighted
average Total
effective Within undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 3-5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
MEFY REHRE

BRHZ 1FR 1525 3E5E BlsE  RELE KR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR AT T TR T

As at 31 December 2020 AZZCRF+ZA=+-H
Other payables and accruals HitERT R ER - 87,865 - - - 87,865 87,865
Borrowings B3 6.53 499,986 14,958 - - 514,944 473,389
Deposits received from EWERERE
customers 475 - 14,845 - 17,814 32,659 27,100
587,851 29,803 - 17,814 635,468 588,354
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&+ZB=+—H
Other payables and accruals BftEATRESER - 26,837 - - - 26837 26,837
Service cost payables FE(IREEA - 1,041 - - - 1041 1,041
Borrowings B 6.20 568,948 72,354 - - 641,302 593,287
Deposits received from BElEREE
customers 4.75 - 13983 - 16,779 30,762 24872
59,826 86,337 - 16,779 699,942 646,037

21 2 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

35.

This note provides information about how the Group determines
fair values of various financial assets.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are measured

at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets and liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

ERITH @
SHIAMNATENS

IR A RN AEES BEME
EZAFEZER

BB EL A FEFEZEZER
EHEEREBEZAFE

FEESDEMEERERRESREH
RIZAFEFE - PREHUNAEEZX
FEMEERBBRZATHEZER (55
RPERZ MERMRBARIR o

Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value
Financial assets and liability Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value to the input(s)
HERATR EART FOUBZHAREE ATEHBAUEZ
EHEERER AFE ATERG FERARE BERANE RTEZFE HEE
2020 2019
IZIFE CTAE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mizk TER TET
1. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
| RATEERBRIRZER
BE
- Traded on stock exchanges 23 68,034 10,757 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A N/A
active market
- BEERBMRS % EETHBNEARE TER TEH TEH
- Unlisted fund investment in 23 88,018 14921 Level 3 Based on the net Third party valuation of ~ The higher the netasset 5% increase/(decrease)
the PRC asset values of the underlying investment value, the higher the in third party valuation
fund investment portfolio fair value of underly investment
determined with portfolio would result in
reference fo third increase/(decrease) in fair
party valuation of value of approximately
underlying investment HK$4,401,000 (2019:
portfolio and HK$746,000)
adjustments of related
expenses
- FELTESRE 220 ENESRENGET MWASEANESS FIAEUBUAT AERREANEIAG
EREENARE  HE £ L/ (H) 5%
AREMELEY BYATEEN/ (4
NE=FEEET 1) #14,401,000% 7T (2
B—RE 1 746000F
7
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

35. EMT A ®

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

R MBEURN T EAEZFTED
EHEERBEZLFE (E)

Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value
Financial assets and liability Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value to the input(s)
BT EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
EHEERER ATE ATERR  TEEARR BEEAYR ATEZRR HEE
2020 2019
Z8I%F TTNE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000
WE  FER TR
1. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)
1 BRATEERBREIRZEM
EE (@
- Contingent consideration 25 2,553 N/A Level 3 Based on the probability-  N/A N/A N/A
receivables weighted average of
achieving the profit
glarantee
- BBEARE TEH F=H REERENFREN  TER TEH TEH
BEMETHE
2. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
2. BATEBBAMEZANAT]
ReRERE
- Unlisted equity investment 17 30,439 28671 Level 3 Net asset values based  Discount for qualty of The higher discount rate, 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally invests in on the valuation properties (eg. size the lower the fair in discount for quality
shopping malls in the PRC of shopping malls and location) ranging value of properties would
determined by market ~ from -20% to 20% result in (decrease)/
approach (2019: -36% t0 10%) increase in fair value
of approximately
HK$1,522,000 (2019:
HK$1,434,000)
- IEREREBGNEL F=H  ENBREENEET WEREWERR W BRIUBIATEYS WEREMFTEN/ (A
nRERE BRTELET ) WEEIR 1 i ) SR EHAT
T-20%E20% 1 (AL) /Ema
(CE-hE35% 1,522,000%7C
Z£10%) (= F: N
1,434,000 7T)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. EMTI A ®
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) EMTAMNAFEETE @)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are HEEMBEYUAN FEFEZEER
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) THEEREBEZLTFE (&
Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value
Financial assets and liability Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value to the input(s)
HERATR EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
EHEERER ATHE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2020 2019
“Z-%F “TNE

NOTES ~ HK$'000  HKS000
i TEn  TEx

2. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (Continued)

2 BATEBBEMZEUAN

RZRERE (B
- Unlisted equity investment 17 NA 5593 Level 3 Based on the investee’s  Price to earnings ratio: Nil - The higher ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease) in
which principally invests in a financial performance (2019: 12.36%) higher the fair value price to eamnings ratio
private entity with operations and the muttiples would result in increase/
of natural gas supply in the of comparable Discount for lack of The higher discount rate, (decrease) in fair
PRC companies and using marketability: Nil the lower the fair value of approximately
market approach (2019: 30%) value HK$291,000
5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value
of approximately
HK$125,000
- FERETHEETRA TER F=Hh  EREREEVEBRR TRX.E(CEZ-A  LEERIATEHE TREEN/ (B))5%
RUREHNIABEN REELERAFG £1236%) BERATEEN/
FEBRARE YRBERETRA BREHUBAATEY () #5291, 000% 7
BEHETBELR ia
E(CE-NE: BemR Bt REm
30%) / (B 5%REHA
T (AL) /Ema
12500087t
- Unlisted equity investment 17 19,002 21,253 level 3 Based onthe investee's  N/A N/A N/A
which principally invests in a financial position,
private entity with operations performance and
of software development in using net asset values
the PRC
- IERETTEETRHE F=h ERRREEMBR  TER TEH TEH
BB BN ABRNIE R RAREEFE
ThRARE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

35. EMT A ®

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

ETRMIANAFEFE (@)

R MBEURN T EAEZFTED
EHEERBEZLFE (E)

Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value
Financial assets and liability Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value to the input(s)
BT EARH FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
EHEERER ATE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HEE
2020 2019
Z8I%F TTNE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
WE  FER TR
2. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (Continued)
2. BATEBBAMEZEWAT

RZRERE B

- Unlisted equity investment 17 74,340 NA level 3 Based onthe netassets  Price to book ratio: 1.14  The higher ratio, the 5% increase/(decrease)
which principally engage in value determined by (2019: Ni) lower the fair value in price to book ratio
SFC licensed business of market approach would result in increase/
type 1,2,4,5and 9in Discount for lack of (decrease) in fair
Hong Kong marketabilty: 25% value of approximately

(2019: Nil) HK$3,800,000 (2019:
Nil).

5% increase/(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value
of approximately
HK$1,267,000 (2019:
Nil).

- IBUEELE TER F=H  EXEETRANEE BREILUCE-N LHEEBUATEMSE HREEM/ (L) 5%
BEJLN VSTt 28 £.8 BERATEEN/
SEREIBEIREBNE (L) 493,800,007
TiRARE BEHETBERR T(CENE R

5% (CE-hE:
& Bz mE R RREN

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR

/ (AD) S BEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) . EMTH®

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

THMIANAFEFE (@)

BB BEL R FEFEZEZER
EHEERBEZLFE (BE)

Significant Relationship of Sensitivity of
Fair value  Valuation techniques unobservable unobservable input(s)  fair value
Financial assets and liability Fair value as at hierarchy  and key inputs input(s) to fair value to the input(s)
HERATR EART FOBREARER ATEHBAMEZ
EHEERER ATHE ATERR  TEEARR BREAYR ATEZRR HRE
2020 2019
ZBI3F “TNE
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i TEx TEn
3. Financial liability at fair value 28 NA 15,660 Level 3 Based on business Expected volatility: Nil The higher volatility, the 5% increase/(decrease)
through profit or loss Call Option valuation of the (2019: 22%) higher the fair value in expected volatility
underlying business would result in increase/
determined by market  Discount for lack of The higher discount rate, (decrease) in fair
approach as key input marketability: 16.11% the lower the fair value of approximately
and using Binomial (2019: 16.11%) value HK$935,000
option pricing model
5% increase /(decrease)
in discount for lack of
marketability would
result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value
of approximately
HK$1,378,000
3 T“ ?@@B}smwﬁEzémﬂ TER F=h  ERERERNESE BHRE ECE-N REEANATEES EORESN/ (D)
EiR B mmEiEAE £ 22%) SRS ATEEM/
ERAHBRFER FREMBALTEY () 4935,000E 7T
TEABRTEE BTmATEMMR. (i

WEE 1611% (2R

L 16.11%)

There were no transfers among Level 1, 2 and 3 during both
years.

ERfiEaREE-

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wr e M B IR A L

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

(@

35. EMT A ®

@

BZRAFEUEBZZHIR

EHITRILFEFE (B

Equity investments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive

income
BATESEA
HthZEW AR
ZIRIERE
HK$'000

FAET
At 1 January 2019 N_E—hE—HF—H 35,174
Purchases BE 21,253
Exchange difference bE 2 A= 5 (910)
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 A —E-NEFE+BA=+—HK

R_B_THF—H—H 55,517
Purchase BE 74,340
Held to maturity HEEIH (5,938)
Change in fair value recognised in other comprehensive FEMZE BN AR
income NF{EES) (3,563)

Exchange difference PERAE%E 3,425
At 31 December 2020 A ETEF+"H=+—H 123,781

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. AT H @
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) BERATEANSZEZHIR
Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued) EH TR FEEZ (&)
(b) (b)

Equity investments

at fair value

through

profit or loss

BATESESA

\RERZ

iR E

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hF—HB—H 4,548
Purchases BE 15,148
Disposal HE (4,730)
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIEmER 2 AT EES 230
Exchange difference bE 2 2= 5 (275)

At 31 December 2019 and at 1 January 2020 RZE2E—AF+ZA=+—BKER®

“ETEF—F—H 14,921

Purchase BE 88,476
Disposal HE (8,391)
Change in fair value recognised in praofit or loss RIEEERZ AT EED) (7,504)
Exchange difference bE =% 516
At 31 December 2020 RIE-EHE+"A=+—H 88,018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Continued)

ERITH @
B HATEREE S HIE ()

EHITRILFEFE (B

(c) (c)
Financial liability at
fair value through
profit or loss
BATESEA
EHESRZ
ERaE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2019 A —_E—-NEF—HF—H 27,322
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBERNHEZ AT EE (11,662)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE2—hF+ZA=+—H
kR—E"EF—HF—H 15,660
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss —XBERBENDEATEE
of an associate upon reclassification HEZEEERNBRAERZ
to assets classified as held for sale NF{EES (15,660)
At 31 December 2020 N_EZEF+Z/F=+—H -

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their fair values.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 36. AMMEEHMEL AR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES Z HER
The table below details change in the Group’s liabilities arising TRELAEREME ZSMELESRE S
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash SH) GIERENIFRSEFH BT
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for @Jﬁizéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmiiﬂikfﬁ%iﬁ
which cash flows were, or future cash flow will be, classified in the 2 ZEREREYURKREREN A
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from %l??éﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%@ﬂPﬁ@%mﬁéﬁﬁib
financing activities. FREEZIREME-
Borrowings Lease liabilities Total
&= HEaR 1&gt
(note 27)
(BrzE27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—NE—B—H 850,214 267 850,481
Change from financing cash flow: BRERSREMNEE
Financing cash flows MERENE 151,011 - 151,011
Repayment of borrowings by lessees AABERR (1E37)

(note 37) (393,151) - (393,151)
Interest element of lease rental paid ERENHEDS - () (5)
Capital element of lease rental paid EfffReNELESS - (377) 377
Foreign exchange differences ERELR (14,787) - (14,787)
Total change from financing cash flow: HRERSRSHEE 593,287 (115) 593,172
Other changes: Hithg) .

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into FARET I SFAEMES 2 HE

new lease during the period BRIE - 775 775
Reassessment of lease liabilities (Note 13)  EXfHEEEEME (H:£13) - (660) (660)
At 31 December 2019 and AZE —7L$+Zﬁ_+ =

1 January 2020 “T_FF—H—H 593,287 - 593,287
Change from financing cash flow: RERETENEE
Financing cash flows RERERE 20,000 - 20,000
Repayment of borrowings by lessees R BERR (ff3%37)

(note 37) (150,001) - (150,001)
Repayment &8 (20,283) - (20,283)
Foreign exchange differences ERELH 28483 - 284883
Total change from financing cash flow: ~ BIEREHEEEE) . 471,491 - 471,491
Other change: Hitesh .

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 43(a))  WE—RHEAT

(Hi3343(a) 1,898 - 1,898
At 31 December 2020 AZE-EF+-A=1+—H 473389 - 473389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

37.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2020, the Group entered into sale-leaseback
transaction and finance lease receivables transfer agreements
(the “Agreements”) and transferred certain sale-leaseback and
finance lease receivables (the “Transferred Lease Receivables”)
to banks and other financial institutions for financing. Under
the Agreements, the banks and other financial institutions have
recourse right and the Group has the obligation to reimburse
the banks and other financial institutions for loss of rental if any
lessees have late and default payment. As the Group has not
transferred the significant risks relating to these Transferred Lease
Receivables, it continues to recognise in their full carrying amount
and has recognised the cash received for the transfer as secured
borrowings.

The following tables provide a summary of carrying amounts
related to transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in
their entirety and the associated liabilities:

37.

BETHMEE
HRKREEELEIZEMEE

ATETEFE+"BA=+—H &rEE
S ERERARS RENEREEE
iz ()  EEA TEREHER S X
MEREREWE (EEEAERKEY)
FIRTT R E SRR B LUH R E o RIR
e IRTT R EME RIS EEE B R
WEARBAFBRNRBEN ~AEEE
SREMRITREMSRIEE S8
KoHNAERTEMILECEEEE
FEWE SR EE R FILSERDE
2IERMEE W RSB R AT URER BRI IR
SAFILIRER

THIRE A RREEAI R T2 &L
FESDRYE RIS A M ABRA & (RRVRRE(E

2020 2019

—EZEF —E—-NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Carrying amount of transferred assets DEREEEVIREE 168,045 409,222
Carrying amount of associated liabilities RS EZREE (471,774) (593,287)
Net position FEE (303,729) (184,065)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their
entirety (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had certain other finance
lease receivables transfer agreements (the “Non-recourse
Agreements”) and transferred certain finance lease receivables
with interests (the “Non-recourse Transferred Lease Receivables”)
to banks and other financial institutions for financing without
recourse with an aggregate amount of HK$3,292,778,000 (2019:
HK$5,909,295,000). Under the Non-recourse Agreements,
the banks and other financial institutions do not have recourse
right and the Group does not have the obligation to reimburse
the banks and other financial institutions for loss of rental if any
lessees have late and default payment. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Group has transferred all risks
and rewards relating to these Non-recourse Transferred Lease
Receivables. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Non-recourse Transferred Lease Receivables and
the associated liabilities. During the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group has not recognised any loss in
relation to the continuing involvement, both during the period or
cumulatively.

37.

HETMEE®

HERBEKLIEIZENEE (B

A TETEF+ A=+ —H KREE
BEETHMREREENTE:E RS

(MEERERR) EEETHERE
FAErRW (MEERECEEHERI
) FIRTREMSRIEELRE S
3,292,778 00087t EBERE) CZ—N
£ 1 5,909,295,000/87T) © IRIEHEBERE
e IRTT R EME R Fe R
MR A A BRI IEL K&
B S T ETIRIT R E M REE
FASBER - ANFERDA  AEBETM
IEFRBREEBEEHERERTERS
B3 B\ b K O3 o (Rl » AR IERESR AR
BRECEERERRE REREaEN
2EREE RNHE_ S -TZFEE T
—NE+ZB=+—HILEEE > ~EH
T AR 3 Rt B E 2 SRR T
A48
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 38.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Financial impact on disposal of interest in an associate

On 23 October 2020, the Group completed the disposal of the
remaining 25% equity interest in Rizhao Lanshan. Further details
are disclosed in note 16(d).

The financial impact on disposal of remaining 25% equity interest
in Rizhao Lanshan was as follows:

mERERERMEE

HER—XBKHEQATRZEZMERE
N_EBE_BF+HA+=H>K~EEBE
SEALHE B IRE L BYER T25% IR 1E o &
— LB EHIEEL6(d)

HER BIRE LR T25%RENTHF
BT

On 23 October

2020
TEIEE
+B=+=H
HK$'000
TFAET
Consideration from the Purchaser REBEHFNNE 340,834
Fair value of interest in an associate upon BENMNENRERILERDEAFERE
reclassification of equity interest in BEEARAERRRBEATERD
derecognised to assets classified as held for sale NEE (317,348)
Less: Direct transaction costs VER=EE 5% 7 )P (5,170)
Exchange difference bR RE (18,316)

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. B AR5
Same as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial EiREs =

statements, during the year the Group had the following

transactions with related parties.

(a)

(b)

M RRAMBOFTIRES
AEBFAN AR ETUTRS

The Group had the following transactions with the (a) ZAEBERAFHHE FEEHAKE
subsidiaries of the controlling shareholder of the Group’s BMEATERKRRZHMBR
associate during the period/year: FETUTRS .
2020 2019
—EIRFE =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Subsidiaries of the controlling KERBEARERRKRR
shareholder of the Group’s B AR (5D
associate (note)
Service charges paid EfIIREE 55,921 130,222
Leasing income FAEWA 60,482 154,813
Note:  The transaction amount in 2020 only covered the first six months e ZTEIEEPRZSHERSH

30 June 2020 as interest in an associate upon reclassification
to assets held for sale on 30 June 2020 (note 16d) while that in
2019 covered the entire year.

The remuneration of key management personnel of (b)
the Group, represented directors and chief executive,

during the year are set out in note 8. The remuneration

of directors and chief executive is determined by

the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trend.

EEZEFERA=ZTHNE

=+ HRRBE AR MERER
DEEREHEEE (fzE16d) -
M- NEFNRZEHARE
EEE-

FRAEHTIEZEEAES BESE
REZITHRAER) 2T HHIIH
A8 EERETEBITHABZHNETY
HHFMEZE S RBENATZERR
KRB BHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. FEMB AT Z:%1E
SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December N_ECEER_E—NE+_A
2020 and 2019 are as follows: —t+—H AxRENBABZEFENT :
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid value of issued share capital
Name of subsidiary registration share capital (note a) held by the Company ~ Principal activities
AR ERITRAERE FATMFEEIREZ
WEATAE e (Hiz%a) EfELLH IBLH
2020 2019
S303F C3NE
Indirectly held by the Company
FATRERE
Able Winner International Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERBERAERAR i LiERIET REER
Upmove International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREEERAT e EERIET REER
Elegant Basic Investments Limited ~ BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Investment
BERERRAR EREUHE  EERIOET ®E
TF Advances Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100%  Treasury investment activities
including money lending
B8 BERIET BEREXHOENE
Multi Kingdom Investment Limited ~ BVI Ordinary shares US$100 100% 100%  Property investment
(“Multi Kingdom”)
HEREUHEE  EERIOET MERE
Jumbo Hall International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 N/A 100% Property investment
(“Jumbo Hall")
ERERERAT B5 BERET REA WERE
(=)
Amaze Global Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$1,000 100% 100% Office management
EREUHE  EERI00ET WAEEE
BJ Ever Grand" The PRC US$36,000,000 51.39% 51.39% Provision of finance lease and related
consulting services in the PRC
TRIEE I 360000007 EFERERERSR
TERAAR

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR AT B AR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EMB AT ZH#1E @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BJ Ever Grand and its wholly owned subsidiary (Continued) TREEREZEMRBAT (B
Place of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid value of issued share capital
Name of subsidiary registration share capital (note a) held by the Company  Principal activities
B1Ave ERTREERE FAFMFEETREZ
WEARAE simtE (Mizta) EfELLA) IEBEH
2020 2019
—3I%f “ZnE
TJ Ever Grand The PRC RMB200,000,000 51.39% 51.39% Provision of finance lease and related
consulting services in the PRC
KEEE i B 200,000,0007T TEHEIR MR ERE RAMEAAR
%
Qikang Biological Technology Limited The PRC HK$130,376,000 100% 100% Research & development,
(“Qikang")* manufacturing and sales of food

additives and health beverage
products in the PRC

BERREMRRERAE i 130,376,0007T FEIR A R R A
Uz e ERSHE

Zhujian Biotechnology (Shanghai) The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100% Research & development of
Company Limited (“Zhujian”)* bioengineering technology and sales

of food additives and health beverage
products in the PRC

MEENRE (B8 BRAE  HE B #5,000,0007% PRI TR ATV &
(M) BB REREEE
Livingzone (Shanghai) Bio- The PRC HK$126,310,000 100% 100% Research & development of
Chem Technology Co., Ltd. bioengineering technology and
(“Livingzone”)* property investment in the PRC
T REMRRBRAT FE 126310,000/7T PRI TR AR
(M 2)) S
Ever Grand Healthcare Company ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% N/A " Provision of sale of medical and health
Limited products
EEREEEERAT B5 10087t MR REBERERNEE
Tripler Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% N/A Provision of sale of daily necessities and
personal hygiene products
HIIBLERAF &4 1,000,000t TER RUEEARREAELERNHEE
* English name for reference only " ZRBABBPIEERE

The subsidiary is a sino-foreign equity joint venture

Note: MEE :
(a) All principal subsidiaries operate principally in Hong Kong except BJ Ever (a) FMEFXEMBARHNEETEELE E
Grand, TJ Ever Grand and Qikang, Zhujian. IERIB% K EBE KA  TTREIFRIN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EMBAT Z#1E @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the BEEFALIRINHTEZERFEEE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year NS EEEE TEB D 2 AEER
or formed a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give B AR -EERA 25 EMKEB AT
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, 2 EREREFIERN TR
result in particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 RIEZZEFREZZE—NAFE+ZA
December 2020 and 2019 or at anytime during the year. =+ —HERAFEEAEHR KEA
BB EAIERE S
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material BEEAFERERZIEZERBA
non-controlling interests G
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of TRITAEBHEEEAIFERER
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: E=EMB AR
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting Loss allocated to Accumulated
principal place rights held by non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests interests interests
B ATR T JERR R A
WEARAE FEEEHY R RIRZHRLA AERTIEERER 25 EE EZ 5
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEI%E ZENE ZECEE “ENE ZEI%E “ENE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET FET TET FET
BJ Ever Grand The PRC
ITREE HE 48.61% 4861% (113,645) (16,831) 6,555 120,600

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
PEIEEREHEEEARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B B PR AR I E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

40. TEMBRTZFHE @

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

BJ Ever Grand and its wholly owned subsidiary

TRERREZERBEAR

2020 2019
ZEIEE ENE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current assets RENEE 416,594 684,114
Non-current assets IERENEE 132,634 196,676
Current liabilities mEas (492,655) (536,985)
Non-current liabilities ERHEasE (41,886) (94,506)
Equity attributable to owners of KNBVER AEE#EE

the Company 8,132 128,699
Non-controlling interests JEERR e T 6,555 120,600
Revenue WA 21,649 56,393
Expenses 553 (51,409) (59,232)
Other income and loss HAA K518 (204,029) (33,583)
Loss for the year FREE (233,790) (34,624)
Loss attributable to owners of KABEA NELEIE

the Company (120,145) (17,793)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling JEI R FE (L S 1R

interests (113,645) (16,831)
Loss for the year FNEE (233,790) (34,624)

Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. T EMB AT ZH#1E @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December A _ECEFER_E—NAE+ZA
2020 and 2019 are as follow: (Continued) —t+—H KRAENBRAEZFEUT !
€=
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Other comprehensive expense iN/NSTE 7= DN
attributable to owners of the Company Hh2mesx 422) (2,468)
Other comprehensive expense FEIERR R PG
attributable to the non-controlling interests B2 mERS (400) (2,333)
Other comprehensive expense FRHEMEEMAS
for the year (822) (4,801)
Total comprehensive expense KABHEE ANELEERZ 428
attributable to owners of the Company (120,567) (20,261)
Total comprehensive expense IR R S RS 4BER
attributable to the non-controlling interests (114,045) (19,164)
Total comprehensive expense FREEMASZAEZE
for the year (234,612) (39,425)
Net cash outflow from operating activites & EBIELE 2 RS R S5 (85,410) (130,125)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REFHEEZRERA i)
investing activities FER 66,479 (78,609)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEREES IS MAFEE - 151,011
Net cash outflow BE& R FE8 (18,931) (57,723)

230 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

41. BRABTZMBIK AR

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (]
2020 2019
—ECEHF “E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBARZKRE 11 11
Amounts due from subsidiaries U B ATFIE 439,051 537,084
439,062 537,095
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, deposits and HAEW I 125 K Fa s miE
prepayments 1,297 1,883
Amounts due from a subsidiary W —RMBATRIE 5,000 17,000
Bank balances and cash RTTEER IR 370 153
6,667 19,036
Current liabilities wENAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERI B ATIE 2 2
Other payables and accruals HMEI TR EsTE R 13,110 13,129
13,112 13,131
Net (current liabilities)/current assets (ReEhald) mEmEERE (6,445) 5,905
Total assets less current liabilities WEERRSEE 432,617 543,000
Capital and reserves B As Be &
Share capital [ilZiN 168,730 119,192
Reserves (B3] 263,887 423 808
Total equity R 432,617 543,000

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

WONG LIK PING
ENF

Director

EF

At

R —=

—F=A+MBEEERSg

HE > WA TFERARE

LAI KA FAI
HENE
Director

EFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. AT Z A FEAR AR B

232

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY Hw
(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves KTATZEEES
Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RiIVEE RS ZEEE 4ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hE—B—H 1,520,921 1,136 (1,095919) 426,138
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBENE AR AR
for the year - - (2,330) (2,330)
Share options lapsed BRELXN - (409) 409 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AE+-ZA=+—H 1,520,921 727  (1,097,840) 423,808
Loss and total comprehensive expense AEERERE TR R
for the year - - (196,598) (196,598)
Issue of shares upon completion FoE A& TR R
of placing 8,407 - - 8,407
Issue of shares upon acquisition Wi — B A R B BTG
of a subsidiary 28,270 - - 28,270
At 31 December 2020 RZZ2ZZF+-F=+—H 1,557,598 727 (1,294,438) 263,887

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 42.

On 13 July 2020, Multi Kingdom, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with Top Insight. Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement Multi Kingdom agreed to dispose of its
entire equity interest Jumbo Hall, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Multi Kingdom to subscribe for 350 subscription shares of Top
Insight. Completion of the subscription took place on 16 July
2020.

HE&E— K EAF]

RZEZEFLB+=B ARBEZzE
BIBABIMulti KingdomE2Top Insights T
U RERE (REHE) o REIED
% Mutti KingdomP R HHE E 55 (Mut
Kingdom 2 EHIBAE)) AEEBARIELL
SBEETop Insightfy350P&REERR (7 ° SR EE S
BN 2 -EFtB -+ HEE-

HK$'000

FHET

Investment property (note 14) BEYE ([5514) 61,500
Prepayments & Deposit B RIEREE 58
Net assets disposed of HENEEFE 61,558
Fair value of Top Insight Top InsightBY A& 64,300
Net assets disposal of HENEEFE (61,558)
Gain on derecognition of a subsidiary (note 7) BIFER—RWE AR 2 W= (EE7) 2,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

On 21 August 2020 (the “Completion Date”), Ever Grand
Healthcare Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, had completed the acquisition of Tripler.
Tripler is principally engaged in provision of sale of daily
necessities and personal hygiene products in Hong Kong.

The consideration for the acquisition is HK$47,802,000,
which satisfied by the allotment and issue of an aggregate
of 257,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Consideration Shares”) at issue price of HK$0.186 per
share of which 108,000,000 new shares were subjected to
the escrow arrangement according to the profit guarantee
requirement set out in the acquisition agreement. The fair
value of Consideration Shares at the date of acquisition
amount to HK$53,970,000 based on the closing market
price at the date of acquisition.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement, the vendor
guaranteed to the Group that the net profit after tax of
Tripler (the “Actual Profit”) for each of the two financial
years ending 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021
shall be as follows: (i) for the year ending 31 December
2020: not less than HK$6,000,000 and (ii) for the year
ending 31 December 2021: not less than HK$6,500,000
(collectively referred to as “Profit Guarantee”). Each of the
specified period is independent and no excessive amount
of Actual Profit can carry forward.

Such shares shall be released to the vendor if the business
of Tripier achieves the aforesaid profit guarantee within the
relevant financial period (i.e. 54,000,000 shares in respect
of each of two financial years). If Tripier fail to achieve the
Profit Guarantee within each of the relevant financial years,
the Group will receive cash compensation from the vendor
for any shortfall equivalent to the difference between the
Profit Guarantee within the relevant period and the Actual
Profit. In addition, 54,000,000 shares escrowed in respect
of the relevant period shall be returned to the Group and
cancelled thereafter.

At the Completion Date, the fair value of this contingent
consideration receivables and other reserve are estimated
at approximately HK$5,051,000 and HK$15,876,000
respectively, in respect of the possible outcome of each
of two financial years. Other reserve is not subjected to
remeasurement in subsequent years.

Further details are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 July 2020 and 21 August 2020.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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RZE2EZEENB-+—H (5%
BB  AATEERBAT
[ERREEIESREAT BRI
BRI -RNNEEREBUREIR
HEHBRREAEEE RN
&C

U BB B 1EE 447,802,000/ 7T
B TESENR0.186/8 T &
KB T4 A B & 3£257,000,0000%
ZER (MBI T B
108,000,0008& T A& AR 1= U BE 7755
s 2 B FREZ R ESTLER
BEFTIRR - R ER MU B B H
ZAETLEFRUWEE B ERRI U
B7553.970,0005 7T

RFWERZ BErRAEER
BRINBEE_E-_=F+_"A4
—t+—HERZZEZ—%+ZA
=+—H LB BEERBRR
é@ﬂ (MEREF) 2BA ()&

TECIEF+A=1+—HIE
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HE_Z_—F+°"HA=+—H
LEEERE T MEF6,500,00058 7T &7
B ORFRE) SIS CHEAS
Y HWEBRZHNERENT T4
BHo

57| BT A A R BRI
A BRI REE (B0t B R B
FEZE54,000,0000&8610) » B
MR FE ST B 5 o 578 5K
BENATE R BUE B PO AL AR
B AEES I ESRREFR
A P (R SR
Rz AR BRI
5> 7 REEARIET & 54,000,000
R RERET A EE TN HE
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REp B ZEREANER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES continuesy  43. BB 2AE @
(@  (Continued) @) =)
The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was UK S B BRRESD 2 P USRS ] 38 A
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows: BEMEENT
Fair value
NEE
HK$'000
TAET
Inventories =78 3,054
Trade and other receivables & 5 e U By E i FE U =R 3,173
Cash and bank balance RE RIRTT4ERR 4,609
Trade and other payables =07V INE A=kl INE (1,451)
Bank loans RITER (1,898)
Net identifiable assets at fair values BT EZ A HEEFE 7,487
Goodwill arising from the acquisition EEBWENEE 25,556
Total fair value consideration BN ERE 33,043
Consideration satisfied by: REZUATER
Fair value of consideration shares REROBVAFE 53,970
Less: b
Contingent consideration receivables EREIARE (5,051)
Other reserve HuhfEE (15,876)
33,043
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: ~ E4£ BURBEMIR S RA SRS ¢
Cash and cash equivalents acquired of ~ FrUBBIR & MRS EEY) 4,609

The revenue included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss since 21 August 2020 contributed by Tripler
was HK$6,961,000. The profit of HK$851,000 was
accounted for the same period.

Had this business combination been effected at 1
January 2020, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$101,146,000 and the loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$350,224,000. The
directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined Group on an annualised basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

The goodwill of HK$25,556,000, which is not deductible
for tax purposes, comprise the acquired workforce and the
value of the expected distribution networks arising from
the combination of the acquired business with the existing
operations of the Group.

BZZ-ZFNA+—HXU
o RNEBERMLE AGREERT
AU 5 436,961,000 7T © i A
851,000 8T ERFHIAM

HZEHBEHEN 2 TF—
B—BEX mEERN K-S
#9101,146,0007 7t » MERESE
FE#3#9350,224,00078 70 ° EE 5T
= ZETHREIBRFARERE
HAEEFCEERIRERS ST
> WRRKHBRHIERZE
R

MMBEMSAANENEE
25,556,0008 Tt BER EWEE
BHEAERIRBEFSHMES
B UL iS55 Eh ) K TR AR o HE 484
BEe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

On 22 February 2019, the Group had entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with Quantum
Power Limited (“Quantum Power”), a company
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability which is
ultimately owned by the Vendor's Guarantor, the son
of Mr. Wong, an executive Director and a substantial
Shareholder, and is a connected person of the Company,
to acquire 100% of issued share capital of Quantum
Power and its subsidiary at an aggregation consideration
of approximately HK$90,000,000. Shanghai Lizu is the
indirect subsidiary of Quantum Power which principal
assets are located at Shanghai. Having satisfied all the
terms and conditions of the agreement, the acquisition
was completed on 1 March 2019.

The consideration of approximately HK$90,000,000 was
satisfied by cash. This transaction has been accounted
for as an acquisition of assets as the acquisition does
not meet the definition of a business combination. The
assets acquired and liabilities assumed do not constitute
a business. The transaction was accounted for as an
acquisition of properties including mainly approximately
6,300 square meters property in Shanghai and facilities
and equipments used for research and studies of
biotechnology for development of food additives business.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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— RN B R L B B R ALY
BRAR LHEHERA B
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T) R AR ABIREA
1) sT A BE ek - LUAUESh
NREMB AR 2 28 B 21T
7> #8849 790,000,000 7T ©
EEBIRAHONBEENEA
g HFEEEEMN LB HER
i sERPT B IR R AR 18 Ui
FHEERZZ—hF=A—H5%

X °

H1B#990,000,00078 0 B UK &
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43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wRE MBI T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #E_Z _ZHF+_F=+—HILFE

(Continued)

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was
recognised at the date of acquisition as follows:

43. BB AE @

62

FRUREE B HRHESE 22 P Ui BT A
BEKRERENT:

HK$'000
FAET
Net assets acquired FT R E E 3 E
Plant, machinery and equipment 5= ~ 145 28 Re st 2,059
Motor vehicles RE 65
Self-occupied property in Shanghai RLEBENEEYE 86,333
Prepayments and other receivables BT IE R M EWER 3,468
Accruals and other payables FEEHE A R E IR (2,043)
Net assets BEFE 89,882
Net cash outflow in connection with BREAWERB AN
the acquisition of subsidiaries: IRE M FEE .
Cash and cash equivalent FRU IR S IR &
balance acquired EFEWER (1,399)
Consideration paid BARE 91,281
89,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ar BT AR It

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ~ 43.

(c) On 10 April 2019, the Group had entered into a
preliminary sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party relating to acquisition of 100%
equity interests of Jumbo Hall, which principal assets
comprise offices in Wan Chai at a total consideration of
HK$70,000,000 was satisfied by cash on completion.
Having satisfy all the terms and conditions, the acquisition
was completed on 12 April 2019.

This transaction has been accounted for as an acquisition
of assets as the acquisition does not meet the definition of
a business combination. The assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business. The transaction
was accounted for as an acquisition of investment
properties in the ordinary course of the company’s
property investment business.

The identifiable assets and liabilities acquired was

UIEBHI B 2B @

© AR -NFNA+H AER
B—BUE= AT EE
Wik AR ARIEEERZ 25
i EXEEECEEFIM
A= > #8X{870,000,0008 T 25
TR LR EN  RERPIA
IR IR TR IR EIRE R T
E—NFMUA+RH5Me

AR ERWEBL A aEBEH
ZEE WERRXZEARYE
BB - FTUUIB B 2 R PR AR
BRETEN—IBER BREXS
BARINWER AT EREE
BHAEEBBREPHRERE
ELS

PR B HRESD 2 P Ui BT 8 A

recognised at the date of acquisition as follows: BERBENT
HK$'000
FAET
Net assets acquired FTEE E R E
Investment property (note 14) SEME (fi5E14) 70,117
Deposits & 58
Accruals FESTE R )
Net assets BEFE 70,168
Net cash outflow in connection with BRAWEN B ABNIRE M5 ©
the acquisition of subsidiary:
Cash and cash equivalent FrUs B IR & M 3R & S EWAE R
balance acquired (1)
Consideration paid BRE 70,169
70,168
44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 44, i HA{8 515

On 12 January 2021, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with an individual, pursuant to which the Group provided a loan in
the principal amount of HK$56,000,000 for 12 months, interest
bearing at a fixed interest rate of 10% per annum, secured by
the entire equity interest of a company majority owned by the
individual.

CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B2
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_ZF+_F=+—HILFEE
RESULTS £ |
Year ended 31 December
HE+-RA=t+—HIEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“E-RE IE—+tE E-)N\E E-nE ZBIZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TERT
(Restated)
€y
Continuing operations RERICEER
Revenue WA 221,212 198,134 90,523 71,155 66,184
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREER /(58 96,844 (29,630) (359,626) (52,761) (342,603)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fisi i) /% (17,651) (6,059) (13,468) 1,798 (13,975)
Profit/(loss) for the year from FEERBFELEES
continuing operations 2R/ (B8 79,193 (35,689) (373,094) (50,963) (356,578)
Discontinued operation BAILREEHR
Loss for the year from FEERBEARLLE
discontinued operation %7 EE (27,365) (114) - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERH,/ (BB 51,828 (35,803) (373,094) (50,963) (356,578)
Profit/(loss) for the year OB IERGAEE
attributable to: ikl (598 .
- Owners of the Company B UNIEZ=DN 29,813 (42,654) (372,098) (34,132) (242,933)
— Non-controlling interests — R R ER 22,015 6,851 (99) (16,831) (113,645)
51,828 (35,803) (373,094) (50,963) (356,578)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
5 4 22

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_Z_ZF+_FB=+—HILFE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEKREE
As at 31 December
BK+ZR=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“FRE 2—tF E2-N\F EZ-hE CZEBIEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET FER

Total assets mEE 1,833,875 2,584,589 1,878,875 1,546,675 1,185,716
Total liabilities maeE (493,978) (1,230,181) (951,174) (685,656) (611,098)
1,339,897 1,354,408 927,701 861,019 574,618

Equity attributable to owners FARHEE NELER
of the Company 1,187,202 1,204,447 787937 740,419 568,063
Non-controlling interests JEERER RS 152,695 149,961 139,764 120,600 6,555
1,339,897 1,354,408 927,701 861,019 574,618

240 CHINA EVER GRAND FINANCIAL LEASING GROUP CO., LTD.
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